Public Document Pack

Licensing Sub-Committee

’
NORTH 1

NORFOLK

DISTRICT COUNCIL
Please contact: Lauren Gregory

Please email: lauren.gregory@north-norfolk.gov.uk
Please Direct Dial on: 01263 516108

Tuesday, 10 May 2022
A meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee — Premises and Gambling of North Norfolk District

Council will be held in the Council Chamber - Council Offices on Wednesday, 25 May 2022 at 10.00
am.

At the discretion of the Chairman, a short break will be taken after the meeting has been running for
approximately one and a half hours

Members of the public who wish to ask a question or speak on an agenda item are requested to arrive at
least 15 minutes before the start of the meeting. It will not always be possible to accommodate requests
after that time. This is to allow time for the Committee Chair to rearrange the order of items on the
agenda for the convenience of members of the public. Further information on the procedure for public
speaking can be obtained from Democratic Services, Tel:01263 516108, Email:lauren.gregory@north-
norfolk.gov.uk.

Anyone attending this meeting may take photographs, film or audio-record the proceedings and report
on the meeting. Anyone wishing to do so should inform the Chairman. If you are a member of the
public and you wish to speak on an item on the agenda, please be aware that you may be filmed or
photographed.

Emma Denny
Democratic Services Manager

To: ClIr J Rest, E Spagnola and N Pearce

All other Members of the Council for information.
Members of the Management Team, appropriate Officers, Press and Public

IN 4\
\ TRAN

communication for all

If you have any special requirements in order
to attend this meeting, please let us know in advance
If you would like any document in large print, audio, Braille, alternative format or in
a different language please contact us

Chief Executive: Steve Blatch
Tel 01263 513811 Fax 01263 515042 Minicom 01263 516005
Email districtcouncil@north-norfolk.gov.uk Web site www.north-norfolk.gov.uk



mailto:districtcouncil@north-norfolk.gov.uk

AGENDA
1. TO RECEIVE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
2. ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS
To determine any other items of business which the Chairman decides
should be considered as a matter of urgency pursuant to Section
100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972.
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Pages 1 - 6)
Members are asked at this stage to declare any interests that they may have in
any of the following items on the agenda. The Code of Conduct for Members

requires that declarations include the nature of the interest and whether it is a
disclosable pecuniary interest.

4.  APPLICATION FOR A NEW PREMISES LICENCE - NEW INN, 54 LOWER (Pages?9 -

STREET, HORNING, NORFOLK, NR12 8PF 102)
Summary: This is an application for a Premises Licence
Variation
Conclusions: That Members consider and determine the case

from the written and oral information provided.

Recommendations: That Members consider and determine this case

Clir P Butikofer — Ward(s) affected: Horning

Chairman Licensing Committee
Contact Officer, James Windsor
telephone number, and e-mail: 1263 516289

James.Windsor@north-norfolk.gov.uk

5. APPLICATION FOR A NEW PREMISES LICENCE - THE WOODYARD, (Pages 103 -

WORSTEAD PARK, WORSTEAD, NORFOLK NR28 9RT 214)
Summary: This is an application for a New Premises Licence
Conclusions: That Members consider and determine the case

from the written and oral information provided.

Recommendations: That Members consider and determine this case


mailto:James.Windsor@north-norfolk.gov.uk

Clir P Butikofer — Ward(s) affected: Worstead

Chairman Licensing Committee
Contact Officer, James Windsor
telephone number, and e-mail: 91263 516289

James.windsor@north-norfolk.gov.uk

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
To pass the following resolution:

“That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the
press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of
business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt
information as defined in paragraph 1 of Part | of Schedule 12A (as
amended) to the Act.”


mailto:James.windsor@north-norfolk.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 3

Registering interests

Within 28 days of becoming a member or your re-election or re-appointment to office you
must register with the Monitoring Officer the interests which fall within the categories set out
in Table 1 (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) which are as described in “The Relevant
Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012”. You should also register
details of your other personal interests which fall within the categories set out in Table 2
(Other Registerable Interests).

“Disclosable Pecuniary Interest” means an interest of yourself, or of your partner if you are
aware of your partner's interest, within the descriptions set out in Table 1 below.

"Partner"” means a spouse or civil partner, or a person with whom you are living as husband
or wife, or a person with whom you are living as if you are civil partners.

1. You must ensure that your register of interests is kept up-to-date and within 28
days of becoming aware of any new interest, or of any change to a registered
interest, notify the Monitoring Officer.

2. A ‘sensitive interest’ is as an interest which, if disclosed, could lead to the
councillor, or a person connected with the councillor, being subject to violence
or intimidation.

3. Where you have a ‘sensitive interest’ you must notify the Monitoring Officer with
the reasons why you believe it is a sensitive interest. If the Monitoring Officer
agrees they will withhold the interest from the public register.

Non participation in case of disclosable pecuniary interest

4. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to one of your Disclosable
Pecuniary Interests as set out in Table 1, you must disclose the interest, not
participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the room
unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not
have to disclose the nature of the interest, just that you have an interest.
Dispensation may be granted in limited circumstances, to enable you to participate
and vote on a matter in which you have a disclosable pecuniary interest.

5. Where you have a disclosable pecuniary interest on a matter to be considered or is
being considered by you as a Cabinet member in exercise of your executive function,
you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest and must not take any steps or
further steps in the matter apart from arranging for someone else to deal with it

Disclosure of Other Registerable Interests

6. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to one of your Other
Registerable Interests (as set out in Table 2), you must disclose the interest. You
may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at
the meeting but otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter
and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it
is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest.

Page 1



Disclosure of Non-Registerable Interests

7. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to your financial interest
or well-being (and is not a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest set out in Table 1) or a
financial interest or well-being of a relative or close associate, you must disclose the
interest. You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed
to speak at the meeting. Otherwise you must not take part in any discussion or vote
on the matter and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a
dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of
the interest.

8. Where a matter arises at a meeting which affects —
a. your own financial interest or well-being;
b. a financial interest or well-being of a relative, close associate; or
c. abody included in those you need to disclose under Other Registrable
Interests as set out in Table 2

you must disclose the interest. In order to determine whether you can remain in the
meeting after disclosing your interest the following test should be applied

9. Where a matter affects your financial interest or well-being:
a. to a greater extent than it affects the financial interests of the majority of
inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision and;
b. areasonable member of the public knowing all the facts would believe that it
would affect your view of the wider public interest

You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to
speak at the meeting. Otherwise you must not take part in any discussion or vote
on the matter and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a
dispensation.

If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest.

10.Where you have a personal interest in any business of your authority and you have
made an executive decision in relation to that business, you must make sure that any
written statement of that decision records the existence and nature of your interest.

Page 2



Table 1: Disclosable Pecuniary Interests

This table sets out the explanation of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests as set out in the
Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Requlations 2012.

Subject Description
Employment, office, trade, Any employment, office, trade,
profession or vocation profession or vocation carried on for

profit or gain.
[Any unpaid directorship.]

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other
financial benefit (other than from the
council) made to the councillor during the
previous 12-month period for expenses
incurred by him/her in carrying out
his/her duties as a councillor, or towards
his/her election expenses.

This includes any payment or financial
benefit from a trade union within the
meaning of the Trade Union and Labour
Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992.

Contracts Any contract made between the
councillor or his/her spouse or civil
partner or the person with whom the

Page 3


https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made

councillor is living as if they were
spouses/civil partners (or a firm in which
such person is a partner, or an incorporated
body of which such person is a director* or
a body that such person has a beneficial
interest in the securities of*) and the council
(a) under which goods or services are to be
provided or works are to be executed; and
(b) which has not been fully discharged.

Land and Property

Any beneficial interest in land which is
within the area of the council.

‘Land’ excludes an easement, servitude,
interest or right in or over land which does
not give the councillor or his/her spouse or
civil partner or the person with whom the
councillor is living as if they were spouses/
civil partners (alone or jointly with another)
a right to occupy or to receive income.

Licenses

Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to
occupy land in the area of the council for a
month or longer

Corporate tenancies

Any tenancy where (to the councillor's
knowledge)—

(a) the landlord is the council; and

(b) the tenant is a body that the councillor,
or his/her spouse or civil partner or the
person with whom the councillor is living as
if they were spouses/ civil partners is a
partner of or a director* of or has a
beneficial interest in the securities* of.

Securities

Any beneficial interest in securities* of a
body where—

(a) that body (to the councillor’'s
knowledge) has a place of business or

land in the area of the council; and

(b) either—

(i) ) the total nominal value of the
securities* exceeds £25,000 or one
hundredth of the total issued share

capital of that body; or

(i) if the share capital of that body is of
more than one class, the total nominal
value of the shares of any one class in
which the councillor, or his/ her spouse or
civil partner or the person with whom the
councillor is living as if they were

Page 4




spouses/civil partners has a beneficial
interest exceeds one hundredth of the
total issued share capital of that class.

* ‘director’ includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial and
provident society.

* ‘securities’ means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a
collective investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act
2000 and other securities of any description, other than money deposited with a building
society.

Table 2: Other Registrable Interests

You have a personal interest in any business of your authority where it relates to or is
likely to affect:

a) any body of which you are in general control or management and to which you
are nominated or appointed by your authority

b) any body
(i) exercising functions of a public nature
(if) any body directed to charitable purposes or
(iif) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion
or policy (including any political party or trade union)

Page 5



Guidance on Local Government Association Model Councillor Code of Conduct | Local Government Association

Does the matter directly relate to something in Part A of my register of interests?

You have a DPI and cannot take part Does the matter directly relate to the
without a dispensation finances or wellbeing of an organisation
on Part B of my Register?

Does it affect the financial

You have i ORI and must interests or wellbeing of things
withdraw on my register, my friends,
family or close associates?

|

Are you or they affected more
than most people and would
most people think you might

have your judgement clouded?

No, you have nointerest
to declare

[
Yes, you must not No, you declare it
take part without but can take part

a dispensation

Local Government Association

Guidance on LGA
Model Councillor
Code of Conduct

Page 6



Agenda Annex

NORTH NORFOLK DISTRICT COUNCIL

Licensing Sub-Committee Hearings - l

NORTH

Information to Accompany Notice of Hearing NORFOLK

1.
1)

2)

3)

4)

2.

DISTRICT COUNCIL

Consequences if the Party does not attend Hearing

If a party has informed the Authority that he does not intend to attend or be

represented at a Hearing, the Hearing may proceed in his absence.

If a party who has not so indicated fails to attend or be represented at a Hearing

the Authority may —

a) Where it considers it to be necessary in the public interest, adjourn the
Hearing to a specified date, or

b) Hold the Hearing in the party’s absence.

Where the Authority holds the Hearing in the absence of a party, the Authority

shall consider at the Hearing the application, representations or notice made by

that party.

Where the Authority adjourns the Hearing to a specified date it must forthwith

notify the parties of the date, time and place to which the Hearing has been

adjourned.

Procedure to be followed at the Hearing

Please note: before the Hearing begins the Licensing Representative will take the
names of everyone attending and find out if they want to speak.

1.

The Chairman introduces

a) Himself or herself and the Members of the Committee
b) The Legal Advisor

c) The Licensing Representative

d) The Committee Administrator.

The Legal Advisor

a) Introduces the subject of the Hearing

b) Notes attendances

c) Outlines the procedure and explains her part in it.

d) Asks if there are any preliminary matters, such as requests for adjournment.

The Chairman asks the Licensing Representative to explain the application.

The Licensing Representative refers the Sub Committee to the report, which
they have read beforehand, and updates them on any new information. S/he may
call witnesses.

The Licensing Representative invites questions on the report from all parties
(The Applicant, the Objectors, the Board Members and the Legal Advisor)

The Chairman asks the Applicant (or his/her representative) to put forward their
case. The Applicant may also call witnesses.

The Chairman invites questions to the Applicant from the Objectors, the Board
Members and the Legal Advisor.

Page 7



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

The Chairman invites the Objectors to put forward their case.

The Chairman invites questions to the Objectors from the Applicant, the Board
Members and the Legal Advisor. Any party may call witnesses or ask questions
of the witnesses.

Closing Statements

The Chairman invites closing statements:

FIRST: Objectors (or Objectors Spokesman)
LAST: Applicant (or his/her representative)

The Chairman will ask the Legal Advisor if there is any advice before the Sub-
Committee retires.

The Chairman thanks all those who have spoken and invites the Sub Committee
to retire to the Members’ Room to make a decision.

The Legal Advisor accompanies the Sub Committee to provide legal advice and
to assist them to formulate their reasons (but does not take part in the making of
the decision).

The Sub Committee makes the decision.

The Sub Committee returns. The Chairman reads out the decision and the
reasons for the decision.

Page 8



Agenda Item 4

Licensing Sub Committee

Author’s Title Licensing Enforcement Officer
Are there back ground papers DX Yes [] No
Exempt ] Yes X NoO

Ward(s) affected?

Responsible Members

Clir P Butikofer — Chairman Licensing
Committee

Clir N Lloyd — Portfolio Holder (Licensing)

Contact Officer

James Windsor

E-mail address

James.Windsor@north-norfolk.gov.uk

Telephone number

01263 516252

Are there Non Electronic Appendices

[] No

Yes

X

List of Background Papers and
Appendices

North Norfolk District Council Licensing
Policy

Statutory Guidance issued by the Home
Office

Appendices to the report containing
copies of correspondence from
Responsible Authorities and Other
Persons

Application and Current Application Form

This report has been subject to the following processes:

Consultation with:

Head of Financial Services (S151 Officer) [] Yes X Not apt
Solicitor to the Council/Legal X Yes [] Not apt
Others: Head of Environmental Health

File Location: | Assure Database WK/220003147

Licensing Sub-Committee 25 May 2022

Page 1 of 20

Page 9



Agenda Item No

Application for a new Premises Licence - New Inn, 54 Lower Street, Horning,
Norfolk, NR12 8PF

Summary: This is an application for a Premises Licence Variation

Conclusions: That Members consider and determine the case from the written
and oral information provided.

Recommendations: That Members consider and determine this case

Clir P Butifoker — Chairman

: : : Ward(s) affected: Horning
Licensing Committee

Contact Officer, telephone

) Lara Clare
number, and e-mail:

01263 516252

lara.clare@north-norfolk.gov.uk

1. Jurisdiction

1.1. North Norfolk District Council is the Licensing Authority under the Licensing
Act 2003 in respect of Premises licences for the sale of alcohol or regulated
entertainment. Where a valid application for a premises licence or variation is
received and relevant representations are made, before determining the
application, the authority must hold a hearing to consider the case.

1.2. The four licensing objectives to be considered when determining the
application, and relevant representations, are:

a. the prevention of crime & disorder

b public safety

C. the prevention of public nuisance, and
d the protection of children from harm

The Application

2.1  Stonegate Pub Company Limited has made an application for a Premises
Licence variation. The application can be seen in Appendix A and the
premises plan Appendix B.

2.2  The Premises are predominantly used as a public house.

Licensing Sub-Committee 25 May 2022
Page 2 of 20 Page 10



2.3  The applicant seeks permission to operate as follows:

Licensable activity Days Times

Opening Hours plus non standard Monday to Sunday | 10:00 - 00:30

timings of:

10:00 to 01:00 hours on the Friday-
Monday of each Bank Holiday
weekend; and 10:00 New Years Eve —
01:30 hours New Years Day

Indoor Sporting Event Monday to Sunday | 10:00 - 00:00
Live Music Monday to Sunday | 10:00 - 00:00
Recorded Music Monday to Sunday | 10:00 - 00:00
Sale of Alcohol On Premises Monday to Sunday | 10:00 - 00:00
Sale of Alcohol Off Premises Monday to Sunday | 10:00 - 00:00
Late Night Refreshment Monday to Sunday | 23:00 - 00:30

3. Conditions

3.1  The premises licence is subject to the following mandatory conditions:

a.

LIPO01 No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises
licence, at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor
in respect of the premises licence or at a time when the designated
premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence, or the
personal licence is suspended.

LIPO02 Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be
made or authorised by a person who holds a personal licence.

LIPO03 Where a premises licence includes the condition that at
specified times one or more individuals must be at the premises to
carry out a security activity; each such individual must be licensed
by the Security Industry Authority.

LIPO04 Where a premises licence authorises the exhibition of films,
the admission of children to the exhibition of any film to be restricted
in accordance with this section.

LIPOO6

(1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant
premises do not carry out, arrange or participate in any
irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or
more of the following activities, or substantially similar activities,
carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of
alcohol for consumption on the premises—

Licensing Sub-Committee 25 May 2022

Page 3 of 20

Page 11




(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are
designed to require or encourage, individuals to—

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to
drink alcohol sold or supplied on the premises before the
cessation of the period in which the responsible person is
authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or

(indrink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time
limit or otherwise);

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free
or for a fixed or discounted fee to the public or to a group
defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which carries a
significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a
prize to encourage or reward the purchase and consumption of
alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner which
carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional
posters or flyers on, or in the vicinity of, the premises which can
reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or glamorise
anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in
any favourable manner;

(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of
another (other than where that other person is unable to drink
without assistance by reason of disability).

f. LIPO08 The responsible person must ensure that free potable water
is provided on request to customers where it is reasonably
available.

g. LIP0O09
(1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder

must ensure that an age verification policy is adopted in
respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of
alcohol.

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises
licence must ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises
is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy.

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the
responsible person to be under 18 years of age (or such older
age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request,
before being served alcohol, identification bearing their
photograph, date of birth and either—

(a) a holographic mark, or

(b) an ultraviolet feature.

Licensing Sub-Committee 25 May 2022
Page 4 of 20 Page 12



LIP0O10 The responsible person shall ensure that:

a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for
consumption on the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or
supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or
supply in a securely closed container) it is available to
customers in the following measures —

) beer or cider: ¥z pint;
i) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25ml or 35ml; and
i) still wine in a glass: 125ml; and

b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other
printed material which is available to customers on the premises;
and

c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify
the quantity of alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware
that these measures are available.

LIPO11 A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or
supplied for consumption on or off the premises for a price which is
less than the permitted price.

3.2  The licence is subject to the following conditions which are consistent with the
operating schedule:

a.

LIPNO1 The Licensee/Designated Premises Supervisor shall ensure
that no nuisance is caused by noise emanating from the premise or
by vibration transmitted through the structure of the premises.

LIPN10 All (external doors/windows) must be kept closed, other
than for access and egress, in all rooms when events involving
amplified music or speech are taking place.

LIPN14 Prominent, clear notices shall be displayed at all exits
requesting customers to respect the needs of local residents and
leave the premises and the area quietly.

. The external events must not continue beyond 23:00 without prior

approval of the Licensing Authority.

The following times apply for licensable activities including: Indoor
sporting events, recorded music, live music, the supply of alcohol
and the hours the premises is open to the public

(a) 10:00 to 01:00 hours on the Friday-Monday of each Bank
Holiday weekend; and

(b) 10:00 New Years Eve — 01:30 hours New Years Day

CCTV will be in operation while the premises are open for
licensable activities. Images will be stored in a digital format, for at
least 28 days and made available to Police or regulating authorities
upon reasonable request, in accordance with Data Protection
legislation.

Licensing Sub-Committee 25 May 2022

Page 5 of 20

Page 13



4.2

Representations from Responsible Authorities

Section 13(4) of the Act defines the 'Responsible Authorities’ as the statutory
bodies that must be sent copies of an application. Representations made
must relate to the licensing objectives.

The following comments have been received from the Responsible Authorities
and can be seen in Appendix C:

Responsible Authority Comments Date
Trading Standards Nil Response
Fire Service No Objection 22/03/2022
Home Office (Immigration Nil Response
Enforcement)
EH - Commercial No Objection 23/03/2022
EH - Licensing No Objection 11/04/2022
Norfolk Safeguarding Nil Response
Childrens Board
EH - Environmental Having reviewed the 20/04/2022
Protection application, which is to
extend licensing hours by
30 minutes into the night
and in view of our records,
the Environmental
Protection Team consider
that there are no adverse
environmental protection
related concerns in relation
to this proposal. Therefore,
I have no objections or
adverse comments to
make. Please do not
hesitate to contact me with
any gueries or concerns
Parish Council Objection on public 07/04/2022
nuisance grounds
Planning Nil Response
Primary Care Trust, N C C | Nil Response
Norfolk Constabulary - No objection as applicant 24/03/2022
Licensing Team has accepted request for
CCTV condition
Broads Authority Objection on public 25/04/2022
nuisance and public safety
Licensing Sub-Committee 25 May 2022

Page 6 of 20

Page 14



Representations from Other Persons

5.1  Section 13(3) of the Act describes interested parties as local
residents/businesses (or their representatives) who live/are involved in a
business in the vicinity of the premises. Representations made must relate to
the licensing objectives.

5.2  There has been significant correspondence received from various residents
concerning this application. Copies of all the correspondence is attached for
information. The predominant issues raised has been that of public safety and
public nuisance. See the table below and Appendix C
Representations from Other Persons

Name Representation Date
Painswick Public Nuisance 23/03/2022
Bowden Public Nuisance 24/03/2022
Boshier Crime and Disorder 27/03/2022
Martin Crime and Disorder 28/03/2022
Sparrow Public Nuisance 28/03/2022
Briggs Public Nuisance 29/03/2022
Church Crime and Disorder 31/03/2022
Lake Crime and Disorder 30/03/2022
Thomson Public Nuisance 25/03/2022
Lennon Public Nuisance 25/03/2022
Kedik Public Nuisance 26/03/2022
James Public Nuisance 04/04/2022
Nicholson Public Nuisance 04/04/2022
Johnson Public Nuisance 02/04/2022
Elson Public Nuisance 04/04/2022
Lambourn Public Nuisance 04/04/2022
Schiebler Public Nuisance 04/04/2022
Gardner Public Nuisance 04/04/2022
Whiskin Public Nuisance 10/04/2022
Platten Public Nuisance 07/04/2022
Trevaskis Unsubstantiated 11/04/2022
McEwen Unsubstantiated 11/04/2022
Notices

6.1 The applicant is responsible for advertising the application by way of a notice
in the specified form at the premises for not less than 28 consecutive days
and in a local newspaper. The Public Notice appeared in the Eastern Daily
Press on the 18 March 2022 and a Notice should have been displayed on the
premises until 11 April 2022.

Plans
7.1  Alocation plan showing the general location of the premises is attached at

Licensing Sub-Committee
Page 7 of 20

Appendix D.

25 May 2022
Page 15



North Norfolk District Council Licensing Policy

The current Statement of Licensing Policy was approved by Council on 17
November 2021 and became effective on 31 January 2022 and the following
extracts may be relevant to this application:

3.0 Main Principles
3.1 Nothing in the ‘Statement of Policy’ will:

« undermine the rights of any person to apply under the 2003 Act
for a variety of permissions and have the application considered
on its individual merits, and/or

+ override the right of any person to make representations on any
application or seek a review of a licence or certificate where they
are permitted to do so under the 2003 Act

3.2 Licensing is about regulating licensable activities on licensed
premises, qualifying clubs and temporary events within the terms of the
2003 Act, and conditions that are attached to licences, certificates will
be focused on matters which are within the control of individual
licensee or club, i.e. the premises and its vicinity.

3.3 Whether or not incidents can be regarded as being ‘in the vicinity’ of
licensed premises is a question of fact and will depend on the particular
circumstances of the case. In dispute, the question will ultimately be
decided by the courts. When considering these conditions, the Council
will primarily focus on the direct impact of the activities taking place at
licensed premises on members of the public living, working or engaged
in normal activity in the area concerned.

3.4 Whether or not incidents can be regarded as being “in the vicinity”
of licensed premises is a question of fact and will depend on the
particular circumstances of the case. In cases of dispute, the question
will ultimately be decided by the courts. The Council, in addressing this
matter, will primarily focus on the direct impact of the activities taking
place at the licensed premises on members of the public living, working
or engaged in normal activity in the area concerned.

3.5 Licensing law is not the primary mechanism for the general control
of nuisance and anti-social behaviour by individuals once they are
away from the licensed premises and, therefore, beyond the direct
control of the individual, club or business holding the licence, certificate
or authorisation concerned. Nonetheless, it is a key aspect of such
control and licensing law will always be part of a holistic approach to
the management of the evening and night-time economy throughout
the district.

3.6 The Council acknowledges that the licensing function cannot be
used for the general control of anti-social behaviour by individuals once

Licensing Sub-Committee 25 May 2022

Page 8 of 20

Page 16



they are beyond the direct control of the licensee of any premises
concerned. In this respect, the Council recognises that, apart from the
licensing function, there are a number of other mechanisms available
for addressing issues of unruly behaviour that can occur away from
licensed premises, including:

3.7 -+ planning and environmental health controls
*«CCTV
* ongoing measures to create a safe and clean environment in
these areas in partnership with local businesses, transport
operators and other Council Departments
+ to designate of parts of the District as places where alcohol
may not be consumed publicly
* regular liaison with Police on law enforcement issues regarding
disorder and anti-social behaviour, including the issue of fixed
penalty notices, prosecution of those selling alcohol to people
who are drunk; confiscation of alcohol from adults and children
in designated areas and instantly closing down licensed
premises or temporary events on the grounds of disorder, or
likelihood of disorder or excessive noise from the premises
« the power of the police, other responsible authority or a local
resident or business or District Councillor to seek a review of the
licence or certificate

4 Crime and Disorder
4.1 The Council acknowledges that the Police are the main source of
advice on crime and disorder.

4.2 Licensed premises, especially those offering late night/early
morning entertainment, alcohol and refreshment for large numbers of
people, can be a source of crime and disorder problems. The Council
will expect Operating Schedules to satisfactorily address these issues
from the design of the premises through to the daily operation of the
business.

4.4  In addition to the requirements for the Council to promote the
licensing objectives, it also has a duty under Section 17 of the Crime
and Disorder Act 1998 to do all it reasonably can to prevent crime and
disorder in North Norfolk’s District. The Local Authority also
acknowledges powers contained within the Violent Crime Reduction
Act 2006.

4.5  The Council will consider attaching Conditions to licences and
permissions to deter and prevent crime and disorder both inside and
immediately outside the premises, and these may include Conditions

Licensing Sub-Committee 25 May 2022
Page 9 of 20 Page 17



drawn from the Model Pool of Conditions relating to Crime and
Disorder.

5 Public Safety

5.1 Licence holders have a responsibility to ensure the safety of those
using their premises, as part of their duties under the 2003 Act. This
concerns the safety of people using the relevant premises rather than
public health which is addressed in other legislation. Physical safety
included the prevention of accidents and injuries and other immediate
harms that can result from alcohol consumption such as
unconsciousness or alcohol poisoning.

5.2 A number of matters should be considered in relation to public
safety, these could include;
e Fire safety
e Ensuring appropriate access for emergency services such as
ambulances
e Good communication with local authorities and emergency
services
e Ensuring the presence of trained first aiders on the premises and
appropriate first aid kits
e Ensuring the safety of people when leaving the premises (for
example through the provision of information on late-night
transportation)
e Ensuring appropriate and frequent waste disposal, particularly of
glass bottles
e Ensuring appropriate limits on the maximum capacity of the
premises; and
e Considering the use of CCTV

5.3 The measures that are appropriate to promote public safety will
vary between premises and the matters listed above may not apply in
all cases. The Council expects applicants to consider, when making
their application, which steps it is appropriate to take to promote the
public safety objective and demonstrate how they will achieve that.

5.5 The Council will consider attaching Conditions to licences and
permissions to promote safety, and these may include Conditions
drawn from the Model Pool of Conditions relating to ‘Public Safety’

6 Prevention of Public Nuisance

6.1 Licensed premises, especially those operating late at night and in
the early hours of the morning, can cause a range of nuisances
impacting on people living, working or sleeping in the vicinity of the
premises.

Licensing Sub-Committee 25 May 2022
Page 10 of 20 Page 18



6.2 The concerns mainly relate to noise nuisance, light pollution and
noxious smells and due regard will be taken of the impact these may
have. The Council will expect Operating Schedules to satisfactorily
address these issues. Applicants are advised to seek advice from the
Council’'s Environmental Protection Service before preparing their plans
and Schedules. The Council expects operating schedules to
satisfactorily address these issues, as appropriate.

6.3 The Council will consider attaching Conditions to licences and
permissions to prevent public nuisance, and these may include
Conditions drawn from the Model Pool of Conditions relating to ‘Public
Nuisance’.

7 Prevention of Harm to Children

7.1 The wide range of premises that require licensing means that
children can be expected to visit many of these, often on their own, for
food and/or entertainment.

7.2 The 2003 Act makes it an offence to permit children under the age
of 16 who are not accompanied by an adult to be present on premises
being used exclusively or primarily for supply of alcohol for
consumption on those premises under the authorisation of a premises
licence, club premises certificate or where that activity is carried on
under the authority of a temporary event notice.

7.3 In addition, it is an offence to permit the presence of children under
16 who are not accompanied by an adult between midnight and 5am at
other premises supplying alcohol for consumption on the premises
under the authority of any premises licence, club premises certificate or
temporary event notice. Outside of these hours, the offence does not
prevent the admission of unaccompanied children under 16 to the wide
variety of premises where the consumption of alcohol is not the
exclusive or primary activity. Between 5am and midnight the offence
would not necessarily apply to many restaurants, hotels, cinemas and
even many pubs where the main business activity is the consumption
of both food and drink. This does not mean that children should
automatically be admitted to such premises and the following
paragraphs are therefore of great importance notwithstanding the new
offences created by the 2003 Act. (See the Licensing Policy for further
detail)

10 Standard Conditions

10.1 The Council will not impose conditions unless it has received a
representation form a responsible authority, such as the police,
environmental health officer or other persons, such as a local resident
or local business, which is a relevant representation, or is offered in the

Licensing Sub-Committee 25 May 2022
Page 11 of 20 Page 19



applicants Operating Schedule. Any conditions will be proportional and
appropriate to achieve the Licensing Objectives

11 Enforcement

11.1 Once licensed, it is essential premises are maintained and
operated so as to ensure the continued promotion of the licensing
objectives and compliance with the specific requirements of the 2003
Act and the Council will make arrangements to monitor premises and
take appropriate enforcement action to ensure this.

11.2 The Council has an enforcement protocol, agreed with all seven
Norfolk Local Authorities, Norfolk Constabulary, Norfolk Fire Service,
Customs and Excise and Trading Standards. This should provide for a
more efficient deployment of staff and police officers who are
commonly engaged in enforcing licensing law and inspection of
licensed premises. These protocols will provide for the targeting of
agreed problem and high-risk premises, but with a lighter touch being
applied to those premises, which are shown to be well managed and
maintained.

11.3 All enforcement actions taken by the Council will comply with the
Councils Enforcement Policy and the Enforcement Concordat, which
the Council has adopted. To this end the key principles of consistency,
transparency and proportionality will be maintained.

11.4 A closure power is provided for in the Anti-Social Behaviour,
Crime and Policing Act 2014 which replaces section 161 of the Act.
This new closure power can be used to protect victims and
communities by quickly closing premises that are causing nuisance or
disorder. Further guidance on this power can be found on the gov.uk
website, under the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act: anti-
social behaviour guidance.

Guidance Issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

9.1 The current Guidance was issued by the Home Office in April 2018 and offers
advice to Licensing authorities on the discharge of their functions under the
Licensing Act 2003.
9.2  The following extracts may be relevant to this application and assist the panel:
Licensing conditions — general principles
1.16 Conditions on a premises licence or club premises certificate are
important in setting the parameters within which premises can lawfully
operate. The use of wording such as “must”, “shall” and “will”, is
encouraged. Licence conditions:
» must be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives;
» must be precise and enforceable;

Licensing Sub-Committee 25 May 2022

Page 12 of 20 Page 20



* must be unambiguous and clear in what they intend to achieve;

* should not duplicate other statutory requirements or other duties or
responsibilities placed on the employer by other legislation;

» must be tailored to the individual type, location and characteristics of
the premises and events concerned,;

+ should not be standardised and may be unlawful when it cannot be
demonstrated that they are appropriate for the promotion of the
licensing objectives in an individual case;

* should not replicate offences set out in the 2003 Act or other
legislation;

* should be proportionate, justifiable and be capable of being met,

* cannot seek to manage the behaviour of customers once they are
beyond the direct management of the licence holder and their staff, but
may impact on the behaviour of customers in the immediate vicinity of
the premises or as they enter or leave; and

* should be written in a prescriptive format.

Each application on its own merits

1.17 Each application must be considered on its own merits and in
accordance with the licensing authority’s statement of licensing policy;
for example, if the application falls within the scope of a cumulative
impact policy. Conditions attached to licences and certificates must be
tailored to the individual type, location and characteristics of the
premises and events concerned. This is essential to avoid the
imposition of disproportionate and overly burdensome conditions on
premises where there is no need for such conditions. Standardised
conditions should be avoided and indeed may be unlawful where they
cannot be shown to be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing
objectives in an individual case

Crime and Disorder

2.1 Licensing Authorities should look to the police as the main source
of advice on crime and disorder. They should also seek to involve the
local Community Safety Partnership (CSP).

2.3 Conditions should be targeted on deterrence and preventing crime
and disorder including the prevention of illegal working in licensed
premises (see paragraph 10.10). For example, where there is good
reason to suppose that disorder may take place, the presence of
closed-circuit television (CCTV) cameras both inside and immediately
outside the premises can actively deter disorder, nuisance, anti-social
behaviour and crime generally. Some licence holders may wish to have
cameras on their premises for the prevention of crime directed against
the business itself, its staff, or its customers. But any condition may
require a broader approach, and it may be appropriate to ensure that
the precise location of cameras is set out on plans to ensure that
certain areas are properly covered and there is no subsequent dispute
over the terms of the condition.

Licensing Sub-Committee 25 May 2022
Page 13 of 20 Page 21



Public Safety

2.7 Licence holders have a responsibility to ensure the safety of those
using their premises, as a part of their duties under the 2003 Act. This
concerns the safety of people using the relevant premises rather than
public health which is addressed in other legislation. Physical safety
includes the prevention of accidents and injuries and other immediate
harms that can result from alcohol consumption such as
unconsciousness or alcohol poisoning. Conditions relating to public
safety may also promote the crime and disorder objective as noted
above. There will of course be occasions when a public safety condition
could incidentally benefit a person’s health more generally, but it should
not be the purpose of the condition as this would be outside the
licensing authority’s powers (be ultra vires) under the 2003 Act.
Conditions should not be imposed on a premises licence or club
premises certificate which relate to cleanliness or hygiene.

2.8 A number of matters should be considered in relation to public
safety. These may include:

* Fire safety;

» Ensuring appropriate access for emergency services such as
ambulances;

» Good communication with local authorities and emergency services,
for example communications networks with the police and signing up
for local incident alerts (see paragraph 2.4 above);

* Ensuring the presence of trained first aiders on the premises and
appropriate first aid kits;

* Ensuring the safety of people when leaving the premises (for
example, through the provision of information on late-night
transportation);

» Ensuring appropriate and frequent waste disposal, particularly of
glass bottles;

» Ensuring appropriate limits on the maximum capacity of the premises
(see paragraphs 2.12-2.13, and Chapter 10; and

* Considering the use of CCTV in and around the premises (as noted in
paragraph 2.3 above, this may also assist with promoting the crime and
disorder objective).

Public Nuisance

2.15 The 2003 Act enables licensing authorities and responsible
authorities, through representations, to consider what constitutes public
nuisance and what is appropriate to prevent it in terms of conditions
attached to specific premises licences and club premises certificates. It
is therefore important that in considering the promotion of this licensing

Licensing Sub-Committee 25 May 2022
Page 14 of 20 Page 22



objective, licensing authorities and responsible authorities focus on the
effect of the licensable activities at the specific premises on persons
living and working (including those carrying on business) in the area
around the premises which may be disproportionate and unreasonable.
The issues will mainly concern noise nuisance, light pollution, noxious
smells and litter.

2.16 Public nuisance is given a statutory meaning in many pieces of
legislation. It is however not narrowly defined in the 2003 Act and
retains its broad common law meaning. It may include in appropriate
circumstances the reduction of the living and working amenity and
environment of other persons living and working in the area of the
licensed premises. Public nuisance may also arise as a result of the
adverse effects of artificial light, dust, odour and insects or where its
effect is prejudicial to health.

2.17 Conditions relating to noise nuisance will usually concern steps
appropriate to control the levels of noise emanating from premises.
This might be achieved by a simple measure such as ensuring that
doors and windows are kept closed after a particular time, or persons
are not permitted in garden areas of the premises after a certain time.
More sophisticated measures like the installation of acoustic curtains or
rubber speaker mounts to mitigate sound escape from the premises
may be appropriate. However, conditions in relation to live or recorded
music may not be enforceable in circumstances where the
entertainment activity itself is not licensable (See Chapter 15). Any
conditions appropriate to promote the prevention of public nuisance
should be tailored to the type, nature and characteristics of the specific
premises. Licensing authorities should avoid inappropriate or
disproportionate measures that could deter events that are valuable to
the community, such as live music. Noise limiters, for example, are very
expensive to purchase and install and are likely to be a considerable
burden for smaller venues.

2.18 As with all conditions, those relating to noise nuisance may not be
appropriate in certain circumstances where provisions in other
legislation adequately protect those living in the area of the premises.
But as stated earlier in this Guidance, the approach of licensing
authorities and responsible authorities should be one of prevention and
when their powers are engaged, licensing authorities should be aware
of the fact that other legislation may not adequately cover concerns
raised in relevant representations and additional conditions may be
appropriate.

2.19 Where applications have given rise to representations, any
appropriate conditions should normally focus on the most sensitive
periods. For example, the most sensitive period for people being
disturbed by unreasonably loud music is at night and into the early

Licensing Sub-Committee 25 May 2022
Page 15 of 20 Page 23



morning when residents in adjacent properties may be attempting to
go to sleep or are sleeping. This is why there is still a need for a
licence for performances of live music between 11pm and 8am. In
certain circumstances, conditions relating to noise emanating from the
premises may also be appropriate to address any disturbance
anticipated as customers enter and leave.

2.20 Measures to control light pollution will also require careful
thought. Bright lighting outside premises which is considered
appropriate to prevent crime and disorder may itself give rise to light
pollution for some neighbours. Applicants, licensing authorities and
responsible authorities will need to balance these issues.

2.21 Beyond the immediate area surrounding the premises, these are
matters for the personal responsibility of individuals under the law. An
individual who engages in anti-social behaviour is accountable in their
own right. However, it would be perfectly reasonable for a licensing
authority to impose a condition, following relevant representations,
that requires the licence holder or club to place signs at the exits from
the building encouraging patrons to be quiet until they leave the area
or that, if they wish to smoke, to do so at designated places on the
premises instead of outside and to respect the rights of people living
nearby to a peaceful night.

Determining applications

9.37 As a matter of practice, licensing authorities should seek to focus
the hearing on the steps considered appropriate to promote the
particular licensing objective or objectives that have given rise to the
specific representation and avoid straying into undisputed areas. A
responsible authority or other person may choose to rely on their
written representation. They may not add further representations to
those disclosed to the applicant prior to the hearing, but they may
expand on their existing representation and should be allowed sufficient
time to do so, within reasonable and practicable limits.

9.38 In determining the application with a view to promoting the
licensing objectives in the overall interests of the local community, the
licensing authority must give appropriate weight to:

* the steps that are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives;

* the representations (including supporting information) presented by all
the parties;

* this Guidance;
« its own statement of licensing policy.
Relevant, Vexatious and Frivolous Representations

9.4 A representation is “relevant” if it relates to the likely effect of the
grant of the licence on the promotion of at least one of the licensing
objectives. For example, a representation from a local businessperson

Licensing Sub-Committee 25 May 2022
Page 16 of 20 Page 24



about the commercial damage caused by competition from new
licensed premises would not be relevant. On the other hand, a
representation by a businessperson that nuisance caused by new
premises would deter customers from entering the local area, and the
steps proposed by the applicant to prevent that nuisance were
inadequate, would be relevant. In other words, representations should
relate to the impact of licensable activities carried on from premises on
the objectives. For representations in relation to variations to be
relevant, they should be confined to the subject matter of the variation.
There is no requirement for a responsible authority or other person to
produce a recorded history of problems at premises to support their
representations, and in fact this would not be possible for new
premises.

9.5 It is for the licensing authority to determine whether a
representation (other than a representation from responsible authority)
is frivolous or vexatious on the basis of what might ordinarily be
considered to be vexatious or frivolous. A representation may be
considered to be vexatious if it appears to be intended to cause
aggravation or annoyance, whether to a competitor or other person,
without reasonable cause or justification. Vexatious circumstances may
arise because of disputes between rival businesses and local
knowledge will therefore be invaluable in considering such matters.
Licensing authorities can consider the main effect of the representation,
and whether any inconvenience or expense caused by it could
reasonably be considered to be proportionate.

9.9 It is recommended that, in borderline cases, the benefit of the doubt
about any aspect of a representation should be given to the person
making that representation. The subsequent hearing would then
provide an opportunity for the person or body making the
representation to amplify and clarify it.

Determining actions that are appropriate for the promotion of the
licensing objectives

9.42 Licensing authorities are best placed to determine what actions
are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives in their
areas. All licensing determinations should be considered on a case by
case basis. They should take into account any representations or
objections that have been received from responsible authorities or
other persons, and representations made by the applicant or premises
user as the case may be.

9.43 The authority’s determination should be evidence-based, justified
as being appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives and
proportionate to what it is intended to achieve.

9.44 Determination of whether an action or step is appropriate for the
promotion of the licensing objectives requires an assessment of what

Licensing Sub-Committee 25 May 2022
Page 17 of 20 Page 25



action or step would be suitable to achieve that end. While this does
not therefore require a licensing authority to decide that no lesser step
will achieve the aim, the authority should aim to consider the potential
burden that the condition would impose on the premises licence holder
(such as the financial burden due to restrictions on licensable activities)
as well as the potential benefit in terms of the promotion of the licensing
objectives. However, it is imperative that the authority ensures that the
factors which form the basis of its determination are limited to
consideration of the promotion of the objectives and nothing outside
those parameters. As with the consideration of licence variations, the
licensing authority should consider wider issues such as other
conditions already in place to mitigate potential negative impact on the
promotion of the licensing objectives and the track record of the
business. Further advice on determining what is appropriate when
imposing conditions on a licence or certificate is provided in Chapter
10. The licensing authority is expected to come to its determination
based on an assessment of the evidence on both the risks and benefits
either for or against making the determination.

Conditions attached to Premises Licences

10.2 Conditions include any limitations or restrictions attached to a
licence or certificate and essentially are the steps or actions that the
holder of the premises licence or the club premises certificate will be
required to take or refrain from taking in relation to the carrying on of
licensable activities at the premises in question. Failure to comply with
any condition attached to a licence or certificate is a criminal offence,
which on conviction is punishable by an unlimited fine or up to six
months’ imprisonment. The courts have made clear that it is particularly
important that conditions which are imprecise or difficult for a licence
holder to observe should be avoided.

10.3 There are three types of condition that may be attached to a
licence or certificate: proposed, imposed and mandatory. Each of these
categories is described in more detail below

Proposed Conditions

10.4 The conditions that are appropriate for the promotion of the
licensing objectives should emerge initially from the risk assessment
carried out by a prospective licence or certificate holder, which they
should carry out before making their application for a premises licence
or club premises certificate. This would be translated into the steps
recorded in the operating schedule or club operating schedule, which
must also set out the proposed hours during which licensable activities
will be conducted and any other hours during which the premises will
be open to the public.

10.5 It is not acceptable for licensing authorities to simply replicate the
wording from an applicant’s operating schedule. A condition should be
interpreted in accordance with the applicant’s intention

Licensing Sub-Committee 25 May 2022
Page 18 of 20 Page 26



Imposed Conditions

10.8 The licensing authority may not impose any conditions unless its
discretion has been engaged following receipt of relevant
representations and it is satisfied as a result of a hearing (unless all
parties agree a hearing is not necessary) that it is appropriate to
impose conditions to promote one or more of the four licensing
objectives. This provision also applies to minor variations.

10.9 It is possible that in some cases no additional conditions are
appropriate to promote the licensing objectives.

Proportionality

10.10 The 2003 Act requires that licensing conditions should be tailored
to the size, type, location and characteristics and activities taking place
at the premises concerned. Conditions should be determined on a case
by case basis and standardised conditions which ignore these
individual aspects should be avoided. For example, conditions should
not be used to implement general policy in a given area such as the
use of CCTV, polycarbonate drinking vessels or identity scanners
where they would not be appropriate to the specific premises. Licensing
authorities and other responsible authorities should be alive to the
indirect costs that can arise because of conditions. These could be a
deterrent to holding events that are valuable to the community or for the
funding of good and important causes. Licensing authorities should
therefore ensure that any conditions they impose are only those which
are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.

Hours of trading

10.13 The Government acknowledges that different licensing strategies
may be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives in
different areas. The 2003 Act gives the licensing authority power to
make decisions about the hours during which the premises can conduct
licensable activities as part of the implementation of its licensing policy
statement. Licensing authorities are best placed to make decisions
about appropriate opening hours in their areas based on their local
knowledge and in consultation with responsible authorities. However,
licensing authorities must always consider each application and must
not impose predetermined licensed opening hours, without giving
individual consideration to the merits of each application.

10.15 Shops, stores and supermarkets should normally be free to
provide sales of alcohol for consumption off the premises at any times
when the retail outlet is open for shopping unless there are good
reasons, based on the licensing objectives, for restricting those hours.

10. Determination

10.1 The Sub Committee are requested to consider the application for this review,
representations, and to determine this review application.

Licensing Sub-Committee 25 May 2022
Page 19 of 20 Page 27



10.2 When considering this application, the Sub Committee will need to have
regard to the North Norfolk District Council Licensing Policy and to statutory
guidance under the Licensing Act 2003 issued by the Secretary of State.

10.3 In determining the application for a Premises Licence the Sub Committee may
take the following actions:

a. Grant the application

b. Grant the application subject to conditions relevant to the promotion
of the licensing objectives

c. Refuse the application

10.4 This application must be determined and notified to the applicant within 5
working days from the conclusion of the hearing. Reasons for the Panel’s
decision must be given as both the applicant and objectors have a right of
appeal against that decision to the Magistrates Court.

10.5 There is a right of appeal to the decision of the Sub Committee to the
Magistrates court within 21 days.

Appendices:
A. Copy of Application
B. Plan of Premises

C. Letters/emails of objection or support from Responsible Authorities/ ‘Other
Persons’

D. Location Plan

Background Papers:

1. The Licensing Act 2003

2. North Norfolk District Council Statement of Licensing Policy (approved 17
November 2021)

3. Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 (April 2018)

Licensing Sub-Committee 25 May 2022
Page 20 of 20 Page 28



North Norfolk District Council
Application to vary a premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003
PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST
Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.
If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases
ensure that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional

sheets if necessary.
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

We Stonegate Pub Company Limited

being the premises licence holder, apply to vary a premises licence under section 34
of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in Part 1 below

Premises licence number
LN/000000918

Part 1 — Premises Details

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description

New Inn
54 Lower Street

Post town | Horning Post code NR12 8PF

Telephone number at premises (if any)

Non-domestic rateable value of

premises £30,000

Part 2 — Applicant details

Daytime contact
telephone number

E-mail address (optional)

Current residential
address if different from 3 Monkspath Hall Road
premises address

Post Solihull Postcode | B90 4SJ
Town

Page29




Part 3 - Variation
Please tick yes

Do you want the proposed variation to have effect as soon as possible? ™M

If not, from what date do you want the variation to take effect? | DTy |Mo|ntr|1 |Ye|a r | |

Do you want the proposed variation to have effect in relation to the introduction of the late
night levy? (Please see guidance note 1) [ ]Yes VINo

Please describe briefly the nature of the proposed variation (Please read guidance note
2)

1. To vary the layout of the premises in accordance with plans (drawing number 100
Revision B) supplied by the applicant. The only alteration being to license the
external area as shown on the plans submitted to permit sale of alcohol, both on and
off sales, within this area.

2. To permit the provision of Late Night Refreshment (indoors & outdoors) Mondays to
Sundays 23:00 to 00:30 hours the following morning.

3. To amend the opening hours for existing non-standard timings to provide 30 minutes
drinking up time.

4. To add a condition to the Premises Licence regarding CCTV, following consultation
with Police Licensing.

If your proposed variation would mean that 5,000 or more people
are expected to attend the premises at any one time, please ‘ N/A
state the number expected to attend

Part 4 Operating Schedule

Please complete those parts of the Operating Schedule below which would be subject to
change if this application to vary is successful.

Provision of requlated entertainment (Please read guidance note 3) Please tick all that

apply
a) plays (if ticking yes, fill in box A) ]
b) films (if ticking yes, fill in box B) ]
c) indoor sporting events (if ticking yes, fill in box C) ]
d) boxing or wrestling entertainment (if ticking yes, fill in box D) ]
e) live music (if ticking yes, fill in box E) ]
f)  recorded music (if ticking yes, fill in box F) ]
g) performances of dance (if ticking yes, fill in box G) ]
h) qnythipg of a si.m?lar description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g) (]
(if ticking yes, fill in box H)
Provision of late night refreshment (if ticking yes, fill in box I) M
Sale by retail of alcohol (if ticking yes, fill in box J) ]

In all cases complete boxes K, L and M

Page 39



A

Plays Will the performance of a play take place Indoors L]

Standard days and indoors or outdoors or both — please tick

timings (please read (please read guidance note 4) Outdooré ]

guidance note 8)

Day | Start | Finish Both []

Mon Please give further details here (pleaseréad guidance note 5)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for performing plays (please
read guidance noté 6)

Thur

Fri /Nén standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises
for the performance of plays at different times to those listed
in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance

Sat
note 7)

Sy

B

Films Will the exhibition of films take place Indoors L]

Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 8)

indoors or outdoors or both — please tick
(please read guidance note 4) Outdy&/ 0

Day Start Finish

_Both [

Mon

Please give further details here (please re&ad guidance note 5)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal)taﬁations for the exhibition of films
(please read guidahce note 6)

Thur

Fri on standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises
for the exhibition of films at different times to those listed in

Sat the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note

7)

Sy

Pages3l




C - NO CHANGE

Indoor sporting
events

Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 8)

Please give further details (please read guidance note 5)

Day Start Finish

Mon

Tue State any seasonal variations for indoor sporting events
(please read guidance note 6)

Wed

Thur Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises
for indoor sporting events at different times to those listed in

Eri the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note
7)

Sat

Sun

D

Boxing or wrestling
entertainments
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 8)

Will the boxing or wrestling entertainment /rj
take place indoors or outdoors or both — Indoors

please tick (please read guidance note 4)
Ws ]

Day Start Finish

Both []

Mon

Please give further details here (plegse read guidance note 5)

Tue

Wed State any seasonzl/variations for boxing or wrestling
entertainmeniAplease read guidance note 6)

Thur

Fri /I(on standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises
for boxing or wrestling entertainment at different times to

Sat those listed in the column on the left, please list (please read

guidance note 7)

Sun/

Page 32




E — NO CHANGE

Live music Will the performance of live music take Indoors []

Standard days and place indoors or outdoors or both — please

timings (please read tick (please read guidance note 4) Outdoors []

guidance note 8)

Day | Start | Finish Both ]

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 5)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for the performance of live
music (please read guidance note 6)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises
for the performance of live music at different times to those

Sat listed in the column on the left, please list (please read
guidance note 7)

Sun

F — NO CHANGE

Recorded music Will the playing of recorded music take Indoors ]

Standard days and place indoors or outdoors or both — please

timings (please read tick (please read guidance note 4) Outdoors []

guidance note 8)

Day | Start | Finish Both []

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 5)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for the playing of recorded
music (please read guidance note 6)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises
for the playing of recorded music at different times to those
listed in the column on the left, please list (please read

Sat .
guidance note 7)

Sun

Pages33




G

Performances of
dance

Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 8)

Will the performance of dance take place /17_4|
indoors or outdoors or both — please tick Indoors

(please read guidance note 4)
Ws ]

Day | Start | Finish Both ]

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 5)

Tue

Wed State any seasona( variations for the performance of dance
(please read gdidance note 6)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises
for the performance of dance at different times to those listed

Sat in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance
note 7)

]

H

Anything of a similar
description to that
falling within (e), (f) or
(9)

Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 8)

Please give a description of the type of entertainment you will be
providing

Day Start Finish

Will this entertainment take place indoo;s{r Indoors

Mon

Odjo

outdoors or both — please tick (pleasgfead Outdoors
guidance note 4) Both
o}

Tue Please give further detailsfiere (please read guidance note 5)

Wed

Thur State an{seasonal variations for entertainment of a similar
descfiption to that falling within (e), (f) or (q) (please read guidance

o |_riote 6)

Sat Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for

the entertainment of a similar description to that falling within (e),

(f) or (g) at different times to those listed in the column on the left,
please list (please read guidance note 7)

Page 34




Late night refreshment
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 8)

Day Start Finish

Will the provision of late night refreshment take | Indoors ]

place indoors or outdoors or both — please tick
(please read guidance note 4) Outdoors

O

Both |

Mon 23:00 00:30

Tue 23:00 00:30

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 5)

Hot food and drink provided as and when required including functions or
events

Wed 23:00 00:30

Thur 23:00 00:30

State any seasonal variations for the provision of late night
refreshment (please read guidance note 6)

Fri 23:00 00:30

Sat 23:00 00:30

Sun 23:00 | 00:30

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for
the provision of late night refreshment at different times, to those
listed in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note
7)

New Years Eve 23:00 hours to 01:00 hours the following morning

J — NO CHANGE

Supply of alcohol Will the supply of alcohol be for consumption On the ]

Standard days and (Please tick box) (please read guidance note 9) premises

timings (please read Off the

guidance note 8) premises [

Day Start Finish Both L]

Mon State any seasonal variations for the supply of alcohol (please read
guidance note 6)

Tue

Wed

Thur Non-standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for
the supply of alcohol at different times to those listed in the column

Fri on the left, please list (please read guidance note 7)

Sat

Sun

K

Please highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, other entertainment or matters
ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children (please

read guidance note 8)

None

Page735




L

Hours premises are State any seasonal variations (please read guidance note 6)
open to the public
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 8)

Day Start Finish

Mon

Tue

Wed

Non standard timings. Where you intend the premises to be open

Thur to the public at different times from those listed in the column on
the left, please list (please read guidance note 7)

Fri 10:00 to 01:00 hours on the Friday-Monday of each Bank Holiday
weekend; and

Sat 10:00 New Years Eve — 01:30 hours New Years Day

Sun

Please identify those conditions currently imposed on the licence which you believe could be
removed as a consequence of the proposed variation you are seeking

N/A

Please tick yes
® | have enclosed the premises licence 4
® | have enclosed the relevant part of the premises licence 4

If you have not ticked one of these boxes please fill in reasons for not including the licence,
or part of it, below

Reasons why | have failed to enclose the premises licence or relevant part of premises
licence
N/A

M Describe any additional steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives
as a result of the proposed variation:

a) General - all four licensing objectives (b,c,d,e) (please read guidance note 11)

[The information provided in this box is solely for information only and not intended to be
converted into conditions on the licence.]

We have considered the impact of the proposed variation which allows for the creation of an
external bar servery and “chip shop” within existing outbuildings of the premises, adds late
night refreshment and inclusion of a CCTV condition agreed in consultation with Police
Licensing.

Page 36




The applicant has carefully considered the application, the effect upon the licensing
objectives and the Council’s Licensing Policy, and believes the variation and changes
sought are unlikely to undermine the licensing objectives. In particular the bar
servery/dispense area will be of benefit to aid customer and staff flow and aid social
distancing and service in the existing external area. The Company have a number of
premises where gardens and outside areas are licensed and operate a number of external
bar serveries and their experience is that the outside areas gain in customer supervision
and overall flow of staff and customers.

Steps have been taken to ensure promotion of the licensing objectives if the application is
granted and this includes consultation with police licensing prior to submission. As a result
of that consultation, an additional condition as to CCTV provision, not currently on the
licence, has been offered to further bolster the operating schedule to ensure promotion of
licensing objectives if the application is granted.

Additionally, in respect of the external bar servery the following internal measures will be in
place to ensure continued promotion of the licensing objectives:
¢ the bar will be manned at all times it is trading by at least one person
o staff will monitor the external area at times the bar is trading,
e existing measures, policies and procedures in place internally would also apply to
the outside bar, such as age verification checks, challenge policies, refusals logs.
e Stonegate operate many sites with an external servery, including in close proximity
to residents, and the company’s noise management and outside areas policies will
continue to be implemented and adapted at site level as appropriate.

Considering the above, we believe that the variation will not undermine the Licensing
Objectives. The Applicant believes that the proposed internal measures, amended and
existing conditions within the current licence, alongside the experience of the applicant in
operating premises with external an external servery and policies in place as to managing
external areas, will ensure the premises continue to promote the Licensing Objectives if the
application is granted and further conditions are not required.

b) The prevention of crime and disorder

See a) above and also to add the following condition:

1. CCTV will be in operation while the premises are open for licensable activities.
Images will be stored in digital format, for at least 28 days, and made available to
Police or regulating authorities upon reasonable request, in accordance with Data
Protection legislation.

c) Public safety

See a) above

d) The prevention of public nuisance

See a) above

e) The protection of children from harm

See a) above

Paged37




Please tick yes
® | have made or enclosed payment of the fee or o

® | have not made or enclosed payment of the fee because this application has (M|
been made in relation to the introduction of the late night levy

® | have sent copies of this application and the plan to responsible authorities and o
others where applicable

® | understand that | must now advertise my application M

® | have enclosed the premises licence or relevant part of it or explanation o

® | understand that if | do not comply with the above requirements my application o

will be rejected

IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE A
FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE WHO
MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION TO A
FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.

Part 5 — Signatures (please read guidance note 12)
Signature of applicant (the current premises licence holder) or applicant’s solicitor or

other duly authorised agent (please read guidance note 13). If signing on behalf of the
applicant please state in what capacity.

Date 14 March 2022

Capacity Poppleston Allen — Solicitors for & on behalf of the applicant

Where the premises licence is jointly held signature of 2nd applicant (the current
premises licence holder) or 2nd applicant’s solicitor or other authorised agent (please
read guidance note14). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what
capacity.

Signature

Date

Capacity

Page 38



Contact name (where not previously given) and address for correspondence
associated with this application (please read guidance note 15)

Michelle Peach

Poppleston Allen Solicitors

37 Stoney Street

The Lace Market

Post town | Nottingham Post NG1 1LS
code

Telephone number (if any) ‘ 0115 953 8509

If you would prefer us to correspond with you by e-mail your e-mail address (optional)
m.peach@popall.co.uk

Pagei 89




Notes for Guidance

This application cannot be used to vary the licence so as to extend the period for
which the licence has effect or to vary substantially the premises to which it relates. If
you wish to make that type of change to the premises licence you should make a new
premises licence application under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003.

1. You do not have to pay a fee if the only purpose of the variation for which you are
applying is to avoid becoming liable for the late night levy

2. Describe the premises. For example the type of premises, its general situation and
layout and any other information which could be relevant to the licensing objectives.
Where your application includes off-supplies of alcohol and you intend to provide a
place for consumption of these off-supplies you must include a description of where
the place will be and its proximity to the premises.

3. Interms of specific regulated entertainments please note that:

e Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day,
provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

e Films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in community
premises between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day provided that the audience does not
exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets consent to the screening from a person who is
responsible for the premises; and (b) ensures that each such screening abides by
age classification ratings.

e Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and
23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not exceed 1000.

e Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment: no licence is required for a contest, exhibition or
display of Greco-Roman wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between 08.00 and 23.00 on
any day, provided that the audience does not exceed 1000. Combined fighting sports
— defined as a contest, exhibition or display which combines boxing or wrestling with
one or more martial arts — are licensable as a boxing or wrestling entertainment
rather than an indoor sporting event.

e Live music: no licence permission is required for:

o a performance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any
day, on any premises.

o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day
on premises authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on those premises,
provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day,
in a workplace that is not licensed to sell alcohol on those premises, provided
that the audience does not exceed 500.

o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day,
in a church hall, village hall, community hall, or other similar community
premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell alcohol, provided
that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets
consent for the performance from a person who is responsible for the
premises.

o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day,
at the non-residential premises of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a
hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the
organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i)
the local authority concerned, or (ii) the school or (iii) the health care provider
for the hospital.

e Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for:

o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on
premises authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on those premises,
provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a
church hall, village hall, community hall, or other similar community premises,
that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell alcohol, provided that (a) the
audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the
performance from a person who is responsible for the premises.

o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the
non-residential premises of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a
hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the

Page



10.

11.
12.
13.
14.

15.

organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i)
the local authority concerned, or (ii) the school proprietor or (iii) the health
care provider for the hospital.

e Dance: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day,
provided that the audience does not exceed 500. However, a performance which
amounts to adult entertainment remains licensable.

e Cross activity exemptions: no licence is required between 08.00 and 23.00 on any
day, with no limit on audience size for:

o any entertainment taking place on the premises of the local authority where
the entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the local authority;

o any entertainment taking place on the hospital premises of the health care
provider where the entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the health
care provider;

o any entertainment taking place on the premises of the school where the
entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the school proprietor; and

o any entertainment (excluding films and a boxing or wrestling entertainment)
taking place at a travelling circus, provided that (a) it takes place within a
moveable structure that accommodates the audience, and (b) that the
travelling circus has not been located on the same site for more than 28
consecutive days.

Where taking place in a building or other structure please tick as appropriate.
Indoors may include a tent.

For example state type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give
relevant further details, for example (but not exclusively) whether or not music will be
amplified or unamplified.

For example (but not exclusively), where the activity will occur on additional days
during the summer months.

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a
particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

Please give timings in 24 hour clock (e.g. 16:00) and only give details for the days of
the week when you intend the premises to be used for the activity.

If you wish people to be able to consume alcohol on the premises please tick on, if
you wish people to be able to purchase alcohol to consume away from the premises
please tick off. If you wish people to be able to do both please tick both.

Please give information about anything intended to occur at the premises or ancillary
to the use of the premises which may give rise to concern in respect of children
regardless of whether you intend children to have access to the premises, for
example (but not exclusively) nudity or semi-nudity, films for restricted age groups or
the presence of gaming machines.

Please list here steps you will take to promote all four licensing objectives together.
The application form must be signed.

An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf
provided that they have actual authority to do so.

Where there is more than one applicant, both applicants or their respective agents
must sign the application form.

This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application.

Pagei4l



This page is intentionally left blank



JOB REFERENCE

22011

s
i 2

Seating
Area
B

[Jpink

D [who
i
Pergol
Bar Chip U
Server Shol J o
i P 100mm

Kitchen/Store

80mm

Covered Deck

S Ared

Planfing

PATIO AREA

Up uP
90mm

Seating
Area

seating

L

|
|
|
|
|
| Store
|
|
|
|
|
Liquor
| st

E )

CAR PARK

Renote
Contralies

BURE COURT

uP
150mm

Fire alarm Break glass' call point
Chemical fire exfinguisher
Fire blanket
Foam fire exfinguisher
Water fire extinguisher
Carbon dioxide fire exfinguisher
Powder fire extinguisher
Fire Blanket
Foam Exfinguisher
Fire alarm sounder

smoke detector
Heat detector
Emergency Light
lluminated Exit Sign

LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES.

Anything shown on this plan which is not required by the.
plan regulations s for ilustrative purposes only and does
not form part of the Premises License.

The location and type of any fire safety and any other
safety equipment is shown as at present. This may be

varied from fime to time with the agreement of the Fire
Officer or after a fire risk assessment.

3. The contactr s respor

Ground Fioor GA Plan
Scale 17100 @A

NoTES
This

most care

ouid i be disclosed, sibued, publshed or

and consideration, an i no clrcumatances s

Dovelopment L

commencement of workor associated manufacting

i partes. the

onsring hat al works comply wih Local Authriy

recrements and natonal reguistons.

rev [ nores [owre [or

ADS

ADS DESIGN & BRAND DEVELOPMENT Ltd
King John's Gallery, King John's Island, Mythe Road,

Tel: +44 (0) 1684 870 870 Fax: +44 (0) 1684 878 202
email: info@ads-design.co.uk

CLIENT

Stonegate Group

PROJECT
The New Inn
Horning
NR12 8PF

DRAWING TITLE

GA Plan Ground Floor
Licensing Plan

SHEET A\ q

SCALE 1,100

DATE DRAWN
February 2022 From Survey

TICK & DATE IF PRELIMINARY

DRAWING NUMBER

100 B




This page is intentionally left blank



Lara Clare

From: Brooks, Christopher <Christopher.BROOKS1@norfolk.police.uk>
Sent: 23 March 2022 11:53

To: Licensing

Cc: Licensing Team (Norfolk)

Subject: Variation to Premises Licence - The New Inn, 54 Lower Street, Horning

Dear licensing team,

This email confirms police have received the application to vary the premises licence at the above premises.

There are no police objections.

Chris Brooks

This e-mail carries a disclaimer

Go here to view Norfolk Constabulary Disclaimer

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



“w Norfolk County Councll NORFOLK FIRE & RESCUE SERVICE
»

Group Manager Eastern
Friars Lane

GREAT YARMOUTH,
NR30 2RP

Website: www.norfolk.gov.uk/safety/norfolk-fire-
and-rescue-service

Licensing Department Please ask for: Sarah Palmer
North Norfolk District Council Direct Dial: 0300 123 1254
Council Offices Email: sarah.palmer@norfolk.gov.uk
(H:fétmi?ad My Ref: 00009512
Norfolk Your Ref: WK/220003147
NR27 9EN

18 March 2022
Dear Sir

The Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005
With reference to — Licensing Act 2003
Premises: New Inn Public House, 54 Lower Street, Horning, NR12 8PF

| acknowledge receipt of the application for the above premises.

As these premises fall within the scope of the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005,
I would like to draw your attention to the following guidance documents:

Small and Medium Places of Assembly: This guide is for all employers, managers,
occupiers, and owners of small (accommodating up to 60 people) and medium
(accommodating up to 300 people) places of assembly including:

Public houses; Clubs; Village halls; Community centres; Libraries; Marquees; Churches;
and other placaes of worship or study. ISBN 13: 978 1 85112 820 4

Large Places of Assembly: This guide is for all employers, managers, occupiers, and
owners of larger premises where more than 300 people could gather including: Shopping
Centres (not the individual shop unit), Night Clubs and Public Houses, Exhibition and
Conference Centres, Sports Stadia, Marquees, Museums, Libraries, Churches, Cathedrals
and other places of worship or study. ISBN 13: 978 1 85112 821 1

Both of these publications are available to download from;

www.norfolkfireservice.gov.uk/nfrs/prevention/fire-safety-regulations/38-fire-risk-
assessment-guides

It is necessary where material alterations are proposed to comply with the Building
Regulations 2000. In this case an application must be submitted to the Local Building
Control Authority or an Approved Inspector.

Page 45



http://www.norfolk.gov.uk/safety/norfolk-fire-and-rescue-service
http://www.norfolk.gov.uk/safety/norfolk-fire-and-rescue-service
http://www.norfolkfireservice.gov.uk/nfrs/prevention/fire-safety-regulations/38-fire-risk-assessment-guides
http://www.norfolkfireservice.gov.uk/nfrs/prevention/fire-safety-regulations/38-fire-risk-assessment-guides

Should you require any further assistance please do not hesitate to contact me on the
number shown above.

Yours faithfully

S e

Sarah Palmer
Fire Safety Officer

Page 46



Lara Clare

From: Horning Parish Clerk <horningparishclerk@hotmail.com>
Sent: 07 April 2022 15:38

To: Licensing

Cc: Adam Varley

Subject: LN/000000918

Categories: Sarah

You don't often get email from horningparishclerk@hotmail.com. Learn why this is important

Ref: WK/220003147. The New Inn

Dear Licensing team
As you will know, the Parish Council has been inundated with complaints and concerns regarding this application.

The Parish Council, following the licensing team not allowing an extension of time for further clarification of the
application, must OBJECT to the application on the basis of an inevitable increase in antisocial behaviour and noise
disturbance relating to item 1 of the application: ‘To vary the layout of the premises in accordance with plans
(drawing number 100 Revision B) supplied by the applicant. The only alteration being to license the external area as
shown on the plans submitted to permit sale of alcohol, both on and off sales, within this area’

The Parish Council was grateful to the New Inn management for attending a recent Parish Council meeting, and
recognises that in relation to item 2 of the application regarding hours it is simply tidying up an anomaly, but it does
object to the licensing of an outdoor bar.

In order to minimise light pollution, the Parish Council recommends that any outdoor lights associated with this
proposed development should be:

1. fully shielded (enclosed in full glass cut-off fitments)

2. directed downwards (mounted horizontally to the groundand not tilted upwards)

3. switched on only when needed (no dusk to dawn lamps)

4. white light low energy lamps (Philips Cosmopolis or fluorescent) and not orange or pink sodium sources)

Please see below relevant history

Kind regards
Jo

From: Licensing
Sent: 05 April 2022 11:15

To: 'Horning Parish Clerk’
Cc: Cllr. Adam Varley
Subject: RE: The New Inn license application

Dear Jo
Thank you for your email,

Unfortunately we are unable to allow an extension time. The licence application is given 28 days statutory
consultation period, to make a decision and allow time for any objections to be made.

Page 47



Therefore the closing date for any objections should be made no later than 5pm on the 11 April 2022.
Kind Regards

Sarah

From: Horning Parish Clerk <horningparishclerk@hotmail.com>

Sent: 05 April 2022 10:53

To: Licensing <licensing@north-norfolk.gov.uk>

Cc: Adam Varley <adam_varley@yahoo.com>; Clir. Adam Varley <Adam.Varley@north-norfolk.gov.uk>
Subject: The New Inn license application

Dear Licensing Team
The Parish Council and the parish of Horning have been discussing this application at length and | know that you will
have read hundreds of emails on the subject.

As this is so controversial, | would like to ask please for an extension of time until after the next Parish Council
meeting so that parishioners and Councillors may have more time to discuss the application, which is absolutely not
what we all thought it was!

The next meeting is Wednesday 4™ May and | would be able to let you have a response the following day.
Please would you let me know?

I’'ve copied the District Councillor, who is also a Parish Councillor

With thanks
Jo

Dear all

At the Parish Council meeting last night Steve McMahon (Area Manager, Stonegate Pub Company Limited) and
Steve Tresant (General Manager of the New Inn) explained to Councillors and parishioners more about the licensing
application that many parishioners in Horning have been in contact with the Parish Council and the District Council
about. For your information, both gave their mobile numbers and were keen for parishioners to contact them. Steve
Tresant’s number is 07710252073. The Council and parishoners were grateful that the New Inn and engaged so
readily with the village.

The application is as follows:

1. To vary the layout of the premises in accordance with plans (drawing number 100 Revision B) supplied by
the applicant. The only alteration being to license the external area as shown on the plans submitted to
permit sale of alcohol, both on and off sales, within this area.

2. To permit the provision of Late Night Refreshment (indoors & outdoors) Mondays to Sundays 23:00 to 00:30
hours the following morning.

3. To amend the opening hours for existing non-standard timings to provide 30 minutes drinking up time.

4. To add a condition to the Premises Licence regarding CCTV, following consultation with Police Licensing

The complaints have in general been focussing on item 2 above. It was interesting to learn that the New Inn already
has a license to 0030 hours and doesn’t use it or have any intention of using it. Because the New Inn were putting in
an application for the other 3 items they also wished to ‘tidy up’ the licensing which hadn’t previously made sense.
Up until now, the New Inn had a license for customers to drink alcohol at the bar after 12 midnight, but not tea or

Page 48



coffee or soft drinks. This was an anomaly which they hope to tidy up with this application. Parishioners and
Councillors were satisfied with this element of the application.

You may be interested to learn that the other pubs in the village have licenses to 3am and 1.30am. Again, being
village pubs, this license is not maximised for obvious reasons

After lengthy discussion the publicans left the meeting, as did some members of the public.

The Parish Council also discussed the element of the application which focusses on the outdoor sales of alcohol, and
the Parish Council suspects that it is this element which it may find more controversial. Noise, risk and anti-social
behaviour are some of the obvious concerns with an outdoor license. As parishioners explained at the meeting, the
noise travels over the water and most of the village can hear noise from the New Inn at times.

The Parish Council resolved to ask the NNDC licensing team for an extension of time on the response required from
the Council, in order to give parishioners time to understand the detail of the application and to wait for the next
Parish Council meeting.

In the meantime, | will be asking NNDC for a time extension on the consultation, and contacting the New Inn to find
out more about their application for an outdoor license.

Kind regards
Jo

Fkdkkdkkokkk ok

North Norfolk District Council

This E-mail and any files transmitted with it are private and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom they are addressed.

It may contain sensitive or protectively marked material up to OFFICIAL-SENSITIVE and should be handled accordingly.

If you are not the intended recipient,the E-mail and any files have been transmitted to you in error and any copying, distribution or other use of

the information contained in them is strictly prohibited. Please notify the sender immediately if you have received it in error.

Nothing in this E-mail message amounts to a contractual or other legal commitment on the part of the Council unless confirmed by a communication signed
by a

properly authorised officer of the Council.

We may have to make this message and any reply to it public if asked to under the Freedom of Information Act 2000, Data Protection Act 1998 or for
litigation.

All emails maybe monitored in accordance with relevant legislation.

http://www.north-norfolk.gov.uk
Follow us on Twitter - http://twitter.com/NorthNorfolkDC

Fedededk ok ek ok

Think before you ink - do you really need to print this?

Pade 49



This page is intentionally left blank



Telephone: (N
Email:

27 March, 2022

Application by The New Inn, Horning to extend their licensing hours
(Reference WKJ/220003147)

We are very disappointed that the New Inn in Horning, owned by Stonegate Pub Company
Limited, based in Solihull, wishes to extend its licence hours from 11pm to 12.30 a.m., plus an
extra half an hour drinking-up time, seven days a week, and it demonstrates their limited
understanding of the nature of the area in which the pub is situated. Horning is a residential
village and not an urban town where many other Stonegate pubs are situated.

We also note that according to some publicity they already presume their licensing application
is a fait accompli but in itself proves they have done little to consult or address the concerns of
residents.

Therefore, we object to the extension of the licence on the following grounds:
Public Safety.

We are concerned about the combination of late-night drinking next to the River Bure and the
potential danger to life and limb. Alcohol next to water is never a good combination and
peoples’ understanding of safety disappears under the influence of late-night drinking.

Regarding Parking. The New Inn has very few (12) parking spaces and river moorings. The
consequence must be that customers will drive to the New Inn and park on either the narrow
Lower Street or in nearby residential streets. Lower Street is already an area where little
attention is paid to the speed limit of 20 miles per hour and there are already potential dangers
inherent where there are limited footpaths (much of the area leading to and from the New Inn
has limited pathways.

We believe that if on-road parking increases it is not only dangerous to pedestrians, but it has
the potential of impeding emergency vehicles including fire engines, ambulance, and staff from
safety boats in reaching their destinations.

We have already noted drinking glasses being left in the street.

Crime and Disorder.

The New Inn in Lower Street is set in the middle of a residential area and next to the River
Bure.

An extension of their licencing hours is likely to attract customers from far and wide, possibly
attracting ‘stag’ and ‘hen’ parties where their local pub closes earlier.

The request from the New Inn by Stonegate Pub Company to instal CCTV cameras
immediately suggests that they themselves are concerned about potential crime and violence

Page 51



that late night drinking might cause. We note that Stonegate is a company that owns many
pubs, so this must reflect their experiences elsewhere.

At least one resident on Lower Street already has experienced late-night revellers trying to get
into her house on more than one occasion because they mistook her home for their holiday
accommodation.

Prevention of Public Nuisance
One must presume that the application to extend the licensing hours is to increase trade.

We have already mentioned the public nuisance caused by limited parking space at the New
Inn and the overspill onto Lower Street and the surrounding area.

For those driving and walking to the pub it will inevitably bring with it noise from late night
revellers calling out to each other and slamming car doors, added to which it is well known that
water increases the volume and noise drift.

We suggest that the New Inn has little interest in the effects on neighbours and will do little to
control it. An example of which was during the recent football Cup Final when they played
outdoor music and TV commentary at vastly increased volume which could be heard far and
wide, attracting the attention of the Parish Council chairman who spoke with them about this
matter.

Protection of Children

There are children in the village, some of whom live close by. Expressions of concern have
already been noted by parents whose children have been woken by late night parties and
gatherings ant the pub. Opening even later will bring addition strain. Families on boats mooring
at the New Inn with children on board are unlikely to welcome noise from late-night revellers,
some of whom may also be staying on boats.

We urge the council to refuse this planning application.

cc Horning Parish Council

Public Protection Team
North Norfolk District Council
Holt Road

Cromer

Norfolk

NR27 9EN

Page 52



The Broads Authority
Yare House

62-64 Thorpe Road
NORWICH

NR1 1RY

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



Objection to The New Inn application to extend its licensing hours.
[NORTH NORFOLK D.C.

31 MAR 2022

POSTAL Q\Eb’!l‘;t L"_‘
I object to the proposed licence application to allow The Néw Inn, Lower
Street, Horning NR12 8PF (Premises licence number LN/000000918) to extend
its opening hours until 12.30am with half an hours drinking up time.
I have lived opposite The New Inn for almost 30 years and have witnessed and
personally felt the impact of the behaviour of people who have been enjoying a
visit to the pub.
I object to this proposed licence application on the following grounds:

Public Safety

With this extension to licensing hours The New Inn will become the late night
drinking venue for the area. The extra customers, attracted by late night
drinking, will necessarily come and go by car. Parking is very limited on The New
Inn premises and along the very narrow access road through the village - a road
that has no pavements or street lighting. Customers walking back to their cars
in the pitch black and others driving out of the entrance of The New Inn, which
has a very restricted view of the road, create a safety issue for all concerned.

Prevention of Public Nuisance

Customers will be finishing drinking at 1a.m. and then leaving the premises to
find their cars or to start walking home. The noise of cars revving and people
calling out which inevitably follows turning out time will go on way past la.m.
when most residents will be fast asleep. To be woken by such sounds and at this
time in the morning is quite distressing. And this extension is for every night
not just for special occasions or at the weekend.

Crime _and Disorder

When people imbibe in alcohol their behaviour can become unpredictable and
sometimes dangerous. Although it may be termed minor crime I have had my car
damaged by drunkards who threw the bench outside my cottage against the
boot of my car. I have also been woken up by people screaming obscenities. Such
incidents could become more frequent if The New Inn's licence is extended and
it becomes the go-to pub for late night drinking.

Signed

—




This page is intentionally left blank



Lara Clare

From: N
Sent: 02 April 2022 16:21

To: Licensing

Subject: Public Protection Team

Categories: [ ]

[You don't often get email from (D <2 Why this is important at

http://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderldentification.]

Re.

The New Inn

54 Lower Street

Application for outdoor licence extension LN/000000918

| would like to object to the above license bring granted. | live at no. 59 Lower Street which is a residential area. At
numbers, 36, 40, 46 and 69 live residents who are over 85 years old and go to bed before 10pm. An outdoor licence
until 12.30am will create a severe public nuisance for those of us who live nearby. It is a quiet road in the evenings
and sound reverbs around. With people drinking and socialising outside there is the potential for serious noise -
laughter, shouting, slamming of car doors etc. This application is not for the benefit of locals but for holidaymakers,
especially those on boats who moor up at the New Inn. They have one week of fun, we will have to endure this
every night for weeks. An occasional late night licence is acceptable but not for 7 days a week.

The pub needs the locals to keep it going during the winter, this proposal will alienate us.

Yours sincerely,

Sent from my iPad

Page 57


lara.clare
Highlight

lara.clare_1
Highlight

lara.clare_2
Highlight

lara.clare_3
Highlight

lara.clare_4
Highlight

lara.clare_5
Highlight

lara.clare_6
Highlight


This page is intentionally left blank



Lara Clare

From: [
Sent: 30 March 2022 15:45

To: Licensing

Subject: Objections to The New Inn’s application to extend the Licensing hours in Horning
Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Flagged

Categories: [ ]

[You don't often get email fron (D - why this is important at

http://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderldentification.]
From (- n - D
]

Dated 30th March 2022

G < by object to the proposed licence application by The New Inn, 54 Lower Street,
Horning, NR12 8PF (Premises Licence number LN/000000918), to extend its opening hours until 12.30 am with half

an hours ‘drinking up time’ on the following grounds.
Prevention of Public Nuisance

Horning is a small Broadland village with a narrow road running through it with residential properties and businesses
side by side. We strongly oppose the extension of opening hours of the New Inn as this would bring unwanted late
night revellers to the village. It would only attract the ‘hen and stag night parties’ who will drink too much and
become rowdy as is the case when they are fuelled by alcohol. The visiting boats moored at the New Inn quay are
mainly families who will not benefit with late night opening. Horning village is not a night club nor a party village but
a pretty Broads village and does not want a night club atmosphere disturbing residents or family holiday makers.

Crime and Disorder

We are concerned that when the Swan Inn and the Ferry Inn at either end of the village close at 11 pm, the drinkers
there will move on to the New Inn to continue drinking then return to their boats or cars worse for wear causing
rowdy behaviour and vandalism through the village disturbing the residents and holiday makers alike. It could also
attract holiday makers and locals from other Broadland villages to descend on Horning knowing the New Inn was
open later causing even more noise and pollution. We are not aware of any other Broad’s village pubs open beyond
11 pm.

Public safety

We have concerns towards the public safety as too much alcohol and being on the water on a boat is never a good
mix. If boaters want to continue drinking into the night they can do so in the safety of the cabin on their boat
without disturbing their neighbours. We are also concerned about the parking. There is only limited parking in the
vicinity of the New Inn and should cars park along the narrow road through Horning this could severely restrict the
road for emergency services.

Page 59


lara.clare_7
Highlight

lara.clare_8
Highlight

lara.clare_9
Highlight

lara.clare_10
Highlight

lara.clare_11
Highlight

lara.clare_12
Highlight

lara.clare_13
Highlight


Protection of children

Throughout the holiday season and during school holidays many families rent the numerous properties available in
Horning, many of which are situated on Lower Street and we feel the children should not be disturbed and woken
up by late night noise of revellers returning to their boats or cars. They have probably chosen their holiday

destination for a quiet stay, especially the evenings and night.

Sent from my iPad

Page 60


lara.clare_14
Highlight

lara.clare_15
Highlight


Lara Clare

From: N

Sent: 03 April 2022 12:36

To: Licensing

Subject: The New Inn 54 Lower Street Horning NR12 8PF. Premises Licence Number
LN/000000918

Categories: [ ]

[You don't often get email from (D <2 why this is important at
http://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderldentification.]

Good Morning

We have seen the Notice proposing that The New Inn Horning be allowed an extension to their Licence to extend its
opening hours until 12.30 with drinking up time of 30 minutes.

We do not think this is a suitable extension in a quiet residential village on the Broads. The extension not only means
drinking until late but will be accompanied by bright lights in the car park and grounds of the inn and onto the river.
We understood that this is a conservation and dark area in the National Park and we feel that the lights and noise
will unfortunately mean that part of the area will become like a theme park and not an area of conservancy.

There we object to this proposed extension.

Sent from my iPad

Page 61


lara.clare_16
Highlight

lara.clare_17
Highlight

lara.clare_18
Highlight

lara.clare_19
Highlight

lara.clare_20
Highlight

lara.clare_21
Highlight

lara.clare_22
Highlight


This page is intentionally left blank



Te[ei/ione Number

Public Protection Team

North Norfolk District Council
Holt Road

Cromer

Norfolk.

NR27 9EN

27" March 2022

Premises Licence Number LN/000000918
Dear Sirs,

Further to the application to extend the licensing hours of the New Inn, Lower Street, Horning, NR12 8PF, we wish to
note our objections.

We believe the proposed extension of opening hours from11pm until 12.30pm, with 30 minutes drinking up time, will
impact on the village regarding Crime and Disorder. The New Inn is in the centre of the village surrounded by
residential and holiday let properties. We are fearful of the potential rise in crime and also anti-social behaviour. We
already experience some disturbance, particularly in the summer months, with noise from the customers. As many of
our neighbours in the direct vicinity of the New Inn are very elderly, we have concerns regarding alcohol fuelled
vandalism.

We also have a concern for Public Safety if this application is granted. We frequently witness disturbances on the
moored boats at the New Inn due to alcohol fuelled behaviour. We have seen many boats leaving erratically and to our
mind dangerous to other river users. The road frontage of the New Inn is particularly narrow with vety little parking in
the carpark or the surrounding roadside, it also has no pavements or street lights in the area. We believe this would
again impact on the safety of residents, especially if emergency vehicles were needed.

We feel that granting this application would provoke a Public Nuisance for both residents and holidaymakers alike. The
voice and conversations of people walking along can often be heard and this is especially true late at night, when groups
of people whether sober or inebriated go by.

We have particular concerns regarding the Protection of Children. During the summer months we attract many families

both in the holiday cottages and on the boats. Our concern is that they could possibly be disturbed and also see
behaviour and hear language that is not conducive to being on holiday in a picturesque village on the Norfolk Borads.

We thank you for your consideration and service.

Yours faithfully,




This page is intentionally left blank



Lara Clare

From:

Sent: 11 April 2022 12:55

To: Licensing

Cc: planning@broads-authority.gov.uk

Subject: Fwd: License extension at The New Inn. Lower Street Horning. License no

000000918.

[You don't often get email fromil] I <2 Why this is important at

http://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderldentification.]
Principle objections to the licence application as detailed above.

> Following the Horning Parish Council meeting on Monday 4th of April. | would like to register my concerns
regarding this proposal.

>

> Two persons, the current manager of the premises and an area manager from the Stonegate Pub Group, who
have, in the last six or so months taken ownership of the premises, kindly came to a Horning parish council
committee meeting to explain their intentions and any material changes in their procedures at the premises going
forward.

>

> It was explained by them both, that the intention was to work with the village and the residents in the surrounding
area and to be good neighbours.

>

> All the councillors present at the meeting and the small group of local residents who also attended were assured
that they could expect a minimal change of business practices from that previously seen in the past and that they
should gauge the business policies of the new management team from the the first six months of their trading in
the village since the late autumn.

>

> No longer business hours were envisaged and the requested adjustment of some of the timing periods, within
their existing license which were already in place was just to ‘tidy up’ small anomalies and discrepancies between
the late selling of drinks which strangely were different between alcoholic and non alcoholic varieties.

>

> Looking at their Facebook page it has been observed that only three days before the council meeting it was
announced by the New Inn that new additional opening hours should be noted and that these had just been
increased. This change with later opening hours was to take place immediately.

>

> This illustrates the ease with which any further alteration and lengthening of the opening hours can, at a whim, be
extended by them within the current licence conditions.

>

> Another part of the proposed planning application was to add additional licensing to a wooden building in the
waterside garden part of the premises away from the currently licensed public house brick building. This area of the
premises is shown on the application plan and described as Patio.

Interestingly there was no seating or table plan shown on this otherwise very comprehensive document, just the
positioning of some raise flower beds.

>

> The existing wooden shed type building was proposed to include a fish and chip frying unit both for customers of
the New Inn and for off site consumption sales as well as an additional public bar facility for the sale of alcoholic and
non alcoholic beverages

Page 65



(1 cannot recall seeing notice of any application to the Broads Authority for change of use for this structure.
Perhaps such a change of use permission is not required within planning law / conditions.)

>

> | understand that this licensing application would enable the current business to expand over the site to increase
sales of both food and liquor when presently, due to restricted space within the currently licensed premises, it had
been unable to satisfactorily do so.

This, in my opinion is a change of use to enable expansion of footfall and a far larger number of customers to be
served within the footprint of the existing premises. There was no mention of this that | can recall at the council
meeting.

>

> It is noticeable how during this last few days the number of fine new tables and chairs in the outside patio area
seem to have been increased from those old ones which have been replaced.

> This would indicate that they are expecting to substantially grow the number of covers in this waterside part of the
premises which can only contribute to extra outside noise during the days but particularly during the long summer
evenings. On a quick walk through last night | estimated outside seating on this patio area to contain about one
hundred and twenty covers.

> A proper inspection by the necessary interested parties concerned with this application would confirm the exact
number.

>

> At the parish council meeting It was explained by a resident present that noise carries over water and functions
previously carried out on the premises of the New Inn could clearly be heard by residents living on Crabbets Marsh
some three or four hundred meters away across the marshes and down the river Bure.

>

> Many of the residents living in Horning are in their twilight years with at least twenty residents living within less
than two hundred meters of the New Inn who are over eighty years old.

> Any unwanted extra disturbance in their lives would be an unwelcome imposition and should not have to be
tolerated.

> ee—————

> Anticipated traffic and road safety related problems.

>

> Currently driving on Lower Street, which is historically very narrow, is very haphazard.

> Most of Lower Street, because of its narrow roadways with very few pavements and often busy pedestrian activity
is restricted to a twenty mile per hour speed limit.

> This unfortunately is not very well observed and the traffic often exceeds this speed quite considerably.

> Walking in safety on the roadway from one end of Lower Street to the other, ( approximately a distance of about a
mile ) particularly at busy times during the holiday season is already, without coming into conflict with motor
vehicles, an impossibility.

> This established street has seen no improvements in width or access for at least seventy years and has got to pose
more of a problem as visitors and traffic flow has increased year on year.

>

> There are only two or three places where pedestrians are afforded the luxury of a single file pavement and
holidaymakers mostly walk the length of Lower Street exploring the village on the public highway often in family
groups along with children, push chairs and dogs both on and off the lead.

>

> Parking in the village particularly in the summertime is already at a premium. Parking particularly at any point
along Lower Street can be virtually impossible.

>

> The New Inn itself will probably currently employ upward of ten to fifteen people, chefs, kitchen preparation staff
and bar staff along with supervisors and cleaning staff.

Page 66



The addition of a second bar area outside of that which is currently licensed, will require two or three more staff to
man it, at a minimum. Additionally the proposed fish and chip shop will add, in my opinion, at least another two or
three staff members to the quota.

>

> | would suggest that a good number of these staff will arrive for work by car and will require somewhere to park.

> As there seem to be just twelve parking spaces within the grounds of the New Inn | would suggest that all the
employees of the company will be encouraged to park outside the premises so as to leave space within the
premises for paying customers to park when they visit by car.

>

> The three parking spaces on the roadway directly adjacent the New Inn already service the Chinese take away and
the two or three adjoining terraced cottages. These three or four spaces are from experience full for most of the
day and in the evenings.

>

> Parking spaces along the road in front of the New Inn premises are clearly marked to be left vacant for the many
deliveries for both the food for the restaurant and of course for the almost daily liquid refreshment delivery
requirements of a busy establishment.

> There is also parking restrictions in front of the adjoining boatyard premises where both their service vehicles and
their customers park. Parking in these spaces at night when the business is closed is clearly forbidden by the owners
due for the need to have space available for their staff who can be called back to the premises at night for customer
emergency breakdown work and of course for emergency services as a large amount of inflammable materials
including marine fuel is kept on site.

> The roadway for one hundred meters either side of the New Inn entrance is already often restricted to one way
traffic due to parking and road width considerations.

>

> In short Lower Street is often overcrowded and not really fit for purpose.

>

> | am very concerned that the parking requirements of a dining and drinking establishment with what appears to be
over one hundred and sixty covers, plus casual drinkers, ( with just twelve parking bays on site) will cause chaos on
the already overloaded and overcrowded roadway in the close vicinity to the premises and it will not be at all
adequate to cope particularly in the busy summer months.

>

> Add to this casual outside parking requirements, ( just for five to ten minutes to collect fish and chips ) and | start
to envisage serious congestion problems particularly if there is any need for fire, ambulance and other emergency
services.

> With so many boats moored in Horning village ( well over five hundred ) and with the many off river mooring plots
with three or four major marinas and boatyards it is not unusual to hear the sirens of the emergency services.

>

> Unhindered access and safe traffic flow is essential for the safety of all residents and visitors at such times.

>

> Any vehicle parked on one side of the narrow street immediately restricts the roadway to single file and much of
lower street, probably for this reason, is controlled by yellow line parking restrictions.

>

> Might | suggest a visit to the vicinity by the emergency services and the Norfolk County Council traffic planners of
the Norfolk County Council and Broads Authority to gauge the suitability of the public roadway to cope with any
additional traffic, which is bound to increase should this extra licensed area and proposed fish and chip shop be
granted planning permission.

>

> We already have two licensed public Houses, , one at each end of Lower Street, which are served with their own
multi spaced car parking facilities adjacent to their premises.

Pade 67



>
> Should the lack of a staff parking facility at the New Inn combined with the lack of any real adjacent safe roadway
parking for more than twelve customers vehicles restrict any additional activities at these premises as requested, at
this present time.?

>

>
> Sent from my iPad

Page 68



T TNORFOLK D.C|

-7 APR 2022

i

POSTAL SERVICES

The North Norfolk District Council

Dear Sirs,

i

The New Inn have applied for a late licence.

Please may we object to this application.
Our grounds are.

The increase in noise and probable disorder.

Danger to children and elderly people

Yours faithfully,

Page 69

5.4.22



This page is intentionally left blank



Lara Clare

From:

Sent: 04 April 2022 14:34

To: Licensing; Cllr. Adam Varley

Subject: Application for the extension of licence, The New Inn, Horning.

Categories: -

North Norfolk District Council, licensing dept, ,

Please take our concerns into consideration when considering the New Inn application for an extension of their
licence.

We understand there are four areas to consider when objecting.

Crime, Disorder and the prevention of public nuisance.

With more time to drink and become inebriated peoples inhibitions often leave them and so does the need to have consideration
for others often causing exessive noise and, at times vandalism. The pub is next to the water and those drinkers from moored
boats need to be extra vigilent when accessing their vessels, in many deaths on the broads alcohol is a contributory factor to the
tragedy, I am concerned that by 00.30 the amount of alcohol consumed may increase the risks of a tragedy occurring.
Protection of children and public nuisance.

Previous extensions have led to extreme noise traveling throughout the village and on the water. Adults and children

have work and school to get up for. On previous ocassion the football coverage could be heard well enough to follow
it indoors by those living nearby and music has rocked the houses with sound. .

This can easily lead to disorderly conduct by those trying to relax or sleep. When tired conflict between the New Inn
staff and others is likely to erupt causing further disturbance and bad feeling.

To run a pub in a village needs the consideration of those living nearby as well as business for the pub, good relations
with neighbours is key to keeping busy for the whole of the year . A balance between commerce and living standards

must be considered.

Kind regards,

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



Lara Clare

From: Cllr. Adam Varley

Sent: 28 March 2022 14:29

To: I

Cc: Licensing

Subject: RE: Late night opening of New Inn

Categories: ]

Thank you for your email. | have copied in NNDC licensing, who will make note of your objection.

| am getting a lot of correspondence on this matter and the determination of this application would be best going to
committee - this is a more transparent and democratic process for applications which need further scrutiny and
discussion. This is what | would consider to be a high profile and contentious application.

| hope this helps?
Take care,

Adam

From: I

Sent: 28 March 2022 14:16
To: Cllr. Adam Varley <adam.varley@north-norfolk.gov.uk>
Subject: Late night opening of New Inn

[You don't often get email fron (L <2~ Why this is important at

http://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderldentification.]

| wish to make an objection to the late night opening of the New Inn public house of Lower Street, Horning.

| object on the grounds of owning a property atj I W hich is opposite theNew Inn.

The late night opening will impact on the peacefulness of the village and the general disturbance to elderly
neighbours who will be hoping to rest at the time the pub will be closing.

The general rowdiness of visiting holiday makers will impact on the surrounding neighbours as they leave the pub by
both cars and by foot.

There are also fears for the influence of alcohol on this late night visitors with possible violence and antisocial
behaviour.

| am hoping that this application will be rejected and that the general peacefulness of the village can be maintained.
Regards,

Sent from my iPad

Page 73



This page is intentionally left blank



Lara Clare

From: I
Sent: 25 March 2022 17:45

To: Licensing

Cc: horningparishclerk@hotmail.com; planning@broards-authority.gov.uk
Subject: Objection to extension to licence LN/000000918

Categories: ]

|

Dear sir,
I wish to object to the extension of the licensing hours of the New Inn public house number LN/000000918
On the grounds of public nuisance and safety.

Horning is a quiet country village not a city or party hub.
Why do you need to extend the opening hours of a country pub?

We who live here have long enjoyed the fact that we have 3 pubs,but they are places to eat and drink and
socialise and this can be completed by 11 p.m. easily.

So that children and holiday makers and residence can enjoy a peaceful night sleep.

I think longer hours would mean boats of stag and hen parties would make a beeline and party the night
away on the moorings outside the pub long into the night.

The pub is on the river which means an increased risk of danger from drowning from too much alcohol.
longer drinking hours must increase the risk.

There is only one road from the pub so all traffic would go past houses of both residence and holiday
makers who come to the village for the peace and quiet.

If you need CCTV you are expecting an increased risk of anti-social behaviour there is no anti-social
behaviour in Horning at the moment.

If you allow one pub to open late the other pubs may ask to do the same.Turning Horning into a party hub
with all the noise and coming and going this entails.

I hope that common sense prevails and the New Inn will continue to be a country pub.

Your sincerel

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank



Objection to The New Inn’s application to extend its licencing hours in Horning

]
]
Dated 24™ March 2022

Horning, NR12 8PF (Premises licence number LN/000000918 ) to extend its opening hours until 12.30 am
with half an hours ‘drinking up time’ on the following grounds

Crime and Disorder.

We object to the application for an extension of licencing hours for the New Inn in Horning which is
situated in the middle of what is a residential area. The application would mean the New Inn wi\gh

those who want to socialise late into the night. We object on the grounds of a potentia
crime and anti-social behaviour in the heart of our village community. Such beha
documented in other areas with late night venues. Specifically, alcohol related igggiden
demand for the sale of illegal drugs and vandalism.

increase in

Public Safety.

We have serious concerns about public safety. Anger and alco
especially near rivers and lakes. Be it from disturbed residents 0
goers, there is a serious public safety concern here. We a, f
Parking limitations. There is very limited parking in t
that extended hours will generate on Lower Street
a small car park for a maximum of around 12 cars
application is granted and once late-night drinkg
surrounding area to the New Inn, are likely o bqa
areas have closed. We are concerned that ¢ ked by pub-goers near the New Inn could cause
access problems for emergency service €ghicles. We think that if the application for the variation in
the New Inn’s licencing hours is al council will be ignoring their social responsibility
towards residents of Horning a alth and safety of visitors as well.

limited street parking in that area. If this
ring it is advertised, people from the
ed to the Horning venue once pubs in their own

Prevention of Public Nuisance

Horning has many re@)er 1es and people on holiday are likely to be attracted to a venue that
offers late night gfink and {&®d. Most will walk to the New Inn. This granting of this application will

mean that thgse falkin@back to their properties in the early hours of the morning, some inebriated or

simply chggffn ill disturb many residents trying to sleep. Because of the later closing hours,
possibl argy this change has the capacity to bring residents and holidaymakers awakened by
noise fr stomers, into direct conflict.

Protect ren

r final objection pertains to the protection of Children. Throughout the holiday season many
ilies come to Horning for their holidays, including those on boats. We feel that children deserve not
to be disturbed or woken up at late at night. Granting the New Inn permission to extend its opening
hours to half an hour past mid-night and possibly as late as 1am, with added drinking up time, seven
days a week is likely to precisely have this affect.

Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank



Lara Clare

From:

Sent: 29 March 2022 08:23

To: Cllr. Adam Varley; Licensing; planning@broads-authority.gov.uk
Cc: I

Subject: New Inn, Horning

Categories: ]

You don't often get email from | Lc:n why this is important

Dear Sirs E
I write with regard to the application to extend the New Inn's opening times untilglam.

I believe this would cause a public nuisance, be a cause for concern for pu@ and potentially lead to

an increase in crime and disorder.

Horning is a quiet and pleasant village, there is no need to keep the that late. To do so would
encourage anti-social behaviour from people visiting the Vlllage pose a risk to public safety
(drunken people falling in the river) and an increase in crime order (acts of vandalism, graffiti etc).

I also understand that there are proposals to install CCT
this is anticipated. I find such a proposal intrusive an
opening hours.
Whilst Horning is a tourist destination, it also h&ga res1

N)m or said behaviour which indicates that
be unnecessary if the pub kept to normal

ntial population, a number of whom are elderly.

To have a pub with longer hours where ther other such pubs in the vicinity would encourage people
to come to Horning to drink and potentigmea®¥g¢ disturbances and disorder which would be unwelcome
and potentially change the integrity of t @

Please take this as our objectio@ly.

Regards

g¢€.

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank



Lara Clare

From: T

Sent: 04 April 2022 15:50

To: horningparishclerk@hotmail.com; adamvarley@north-norfolk.gov.uk; Licensing
Subject: Extension to Licensing hours Ref: WK22003147

Categories: )

To Whom it may concern:

Ref: WK/22003147

| am writing to lodge my objection to the proposed extension of the licensing hours at t Inn, Lower Street,
Horning, Norfolk.
e Noise and Disruption: The New Inn is in a central position within a reside in a small village. The

noise and disruption caused by late night drinkers and people leavig€ inWgeMcars in the early hours of the
morning will be unacceptable, disturbing and worrying for the % residents nearby as well as for
families with young children.

e Public Safety: The New Inn is riverside. There is an issue ofubMgsafety with regard to late night drinking at
a riverside location — this will particularly attract groups©&f ng People off the boats, hen and stag parties
who, having drunk too much and larking about, will Mea danger of falling in the river and drowning, as
has so often been the case elsewhere.

e Public Safety and Parking: There will also be a
Inn which is also on a narrow, unlit road wi
well as a pedestrian hazard.

The ability to hold functions is given as par, @ ir Motive on their application. To positively attract parties to such
a quiet, rural, dark and potentially dangfgo¥ ion shows lack of concern and knowledge of the area.

Yours Sincerely

parking. There is very limited parking at the New
ments. Cars parking on the road will create a driving as

A %email has been checked for viruses by Avast antivirus software.

WWW.avast.com

Page 81



This page is intentionally left blank



Public Protection Team,

North Norfolk District Council,
Holt Road,

Cromer,

Norfolk,

NR27 9EN \>~
28" March 2022 Q~

Dear Sir/Madam,
The New Inn 54 Lower Street Horning Norfolk NR12
Variation Application WK/220003147

| refer to the above application which relates to g a viNjation of the license for these
premises to inter alia permit an external bar icular the provision of Late night
Refreshment (indoors and outdoors) Monda days 23hrs to 00:30 plus 30 minutes
drinking up time.

The New Inn is situated in a den jal area in a village setting with the application
premises in very close proximjpf™wjdential homes both permanent residential and
residential holiday lettings. T @ al application site area is extensive and

)

accommodates a large n vers. In addition during the holiday season there are
regularly a large num&i boats moored stern on to the quay that is adjacent to the

application area. CJ

Although I w, balance) object to the provision of the external bar I do object
to later o oyes which should be regarded as unacceptable in a dense residential
area such asNuWRoise nuisance has been commonly experienced in residential areas in
€ those some distance away from the application site.

~
y | believe that extending the operating hours of these premises will lead to
I

\ bnal noise nuisance which is unacceptable in this area and does not meet the
icensing objective to prevent public nuisance.

For the above reasons I object to the application.



lara.clare_23
Highlight

lara.clare_24
Highlight

lara.clare_25
Highlight

lara.clare_26
Highlight

lara.clare_27
Highlight

lara.clare_28
Highlight

lara.clare_29
Highlight

lara.clare_30
Highlight

lara.clare_31
Highlight


This page is intentionally left blank



30" March 2022

Public Protection Team,
North Norfolk District Council,
Holt Road,

Cromer,

Norfolk,

NR27 9EN

Dear Sir/Madam,
The New Inn 54 Lower Street Horning Norfolk NR12 8PF v

Variation Application WK/220003147 Q~
| write to object to the above application which relates to the the license for these

premises to permit an external bar and in particular the prowgi®g ate night Refreshment
(indoors and outdoors) Monday to Sundays 23hrs to OO:% ¥hinutes drinking up time.
The New Inn is situated in a residential area in a vil&e} with the application premises
in very close proximity to residential homes. The rnaNgpplication site area is extensive
and accommodates a large number of covers gln N during the holiday season there

are regularly a large number of hire boats rgo rn on to the quay that is adjacent to the
application area.

Noise and anti social behaviour, ofte
boats with single sex groups, is hemeag

Broads Authority safety guidand @ .
application were to be appr N

al by alcohol, particularly from the larger hire

that alcohol and boating is a hazard. If this
ch late night drinking allowed | can envisage Horning

I note that the a@plj un a number of City Centre premises and may not be aware of the

ging a water side pub with particular water based risks.

issues invoIvB
Noise water and noise nuisance is already commonly experienced in residential
¥d

areggal lage even those some distance away from the application site. There are
thft premises in Horning. Should this application be granted can we expect the
otigrs gJfo be approved to extend their opening hours?

| note that the Police have requested that CCTV be installed. Presumably because they
anticipate and increased risk of crime and disorder.

In my view extending the operating hours of these premises will lead to additional public
nuisance - noise, anti social behaviour, litter (I note reference on the application to a ‘chip
shop’) and issues of public safety given the proximity to the river. Horning is already
beginning to suffer from the negative impact experienced by other popular tourist areas —
second and holiday homes which do not contribute to the village.

The approval of applications such as these simply serve to undermine the residential

Page 85



community further.

For the above reasons | object to the application.

Yours Faithfully

cc

Broads Authority

Horning Parish Council

Clir A Varley — Parish and NNDC

Page 86



Lara Clare

From: N
Sent: 26 March 2022 14:17

To: Licensing

Cc: Cllr. Adam Varley; planning@broads-authority.gov.uk
Subject: Representation

Categories: -

[You don't often get email fron (D - \why this is important at

http://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderldentification.]
Re The New Inn 54 Lower Street,Horning, NR12 8PF
Premises Licence Number is LN/O00000918

| am concerned about the proposed extension to the licence and would like tggm a representation on the
grounds that the proposed extension to 00:30am will cause a public nuisang€e duso®xcessive noise, particularly
during the Summer months when customers sit and stand outside. The nQ€ egitavely affect local permanent

residents, holiday cottage residents living in the area nearby an(Xy on boats with their young families

who are trying to sleep.

Best regards, @\

N

G
NG
2

Page 87


lara.clare_32
Highlight

lara.clare_33
Highlight


This page is intentionally left blank



Lara Clare

From: I

Sent: 25 March 2022 10:22

To: Licensing

Subject: Variation application - WK/220003147 - The New Inn, 54 Lower Street, Horning,

Norfolk, NR12 8PF

Categories: I

You don't often get email from (N Lc2r why this is important

Variation application - WK/220003147 The New Inn, 54 Lower Street, Horning, Norfolk, PF

We object to the proposal to extend the opening hours of the New Inn Horning from 23 00.30 each day as it
will cause unnecessary noise and disturbance to local households.

Ft bbb+ &

Virus-free. www.avg.com \O

Page 89



This page is intentionally left blank



Lara Clare

From: A

Sent: 03 April 2022 16:06

To: Licensing

Cc: horningparishclerk@hotmail.com; Clir. Adam Varley; planning@broads-
authority.gov.uk

Subject: New Inn Horning

Categories: )

Some people who received this message don't often get email from i L c2n hy TS \mportant
Re Objection to Application by The New Inn, Horning Premises licence number LN/000000Q18 nd opening
hours

Horning, NR12 8PF (Premises licence number LN/000000918 ) to extend its opeg Puntil 12.30 am with half
an hours ‘drinking up time’ on the following grounds

Crime and Disorder.

the middle of what is a residential area. The application the New Inn which currently closes at
11pm would be allowed to remain open until 12.30a
into account. This is likely to bring those who wan
into the night. We object on the grounds of a poten
of our village community. Such behaviour is we
Specifically, alcohol related incidents, an in&ggase in

We obiject to the application for an extension of Iicencing& the New Inn in Horning which is situated in
me
ven

m if half an hour’s drinking up time is taken
eAto conflict with those who want to socialise late
W\ ease in crime and anti-social behaviour in the heart
mehted in other areas with late night venues.
mand for the sale of illegal drugs and vandalism.

Public Safety.

We have serious concerns abo ety. Anger and alcohol is never a good combination, especially
near rivers and lakes. Be it f N d residents or holiday makers or late-night pub goers, there is a
serious public safety conc re. VWe also object to this application because of Parking limitations. There is
very limited parking in rea. are concerned about the extra traffic that extended hours will generate on
Lower Street which is garro here the New Inn is located. It has a small car park for a maximum of around
12 cars and there g1im eet parking in that area. If this application is granted and once late-night
drinking and cat is,advertised, people from the surrounding area to the New Inn, are likely to be
attracted to thego enue once pubs in their own areas have closed. We are concerned that cars parked
h& New Inn could cause access problems for emergency service vehicles. We think that if

e variation in the New Inn’s licencing hours is allowed, the council will be ignoring their
Pility towards residents of Horning and the health and safety of visitors as well.

Preventionic Nuisance

Horning has many rental properties and people on holiday are likely to be attracted to a venue that offers late
night drink and food. Most will walk to the New Inn. This granting of this application will mean that those
walking back to their properties in the early hours of the morning, some inebriated or simply chatting loudly
will disturb many residents trying to sleep. Because of the later closing hours, possibly up to 1am, this change
has the capacity to bring residents and holidaymakers awakened by noise from pub customers, into direct
conflict.

Protection of Children

Our final objection pertains to the protection of Children. Throughout the holiday season many families come
to Horning for their holidays, including those on boats. We feel that children deserve not to be disturbed or
woken up at late at night. Granting the New Inn permission to extend its opening hours to half an hour past

Page 91



mid-night and possibly as late as 1am, with added drinking up time, seven days a week is likely to precisely
have this affect.

Page 92



From: I

Sent: 22 March 2022 22:31
To: Licensing <licensing@north-norfolk.gov.uk>
Subject: New inn Horning .Licenced hours extension 11pm to 00.30am

Dear Sirs I have a 53 years connection with Horning and its pubs I have never felt any of the
3 pubs in Horning needed a late licence. I object on the grounds that the application is going
to create lots of noise late at night in a very quiet rural village .Regards

Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank



€ o, 1 203

. : ot NORTH NORFOLK D.
- t\-’ pl}-\: (\' a 9&‘0{'9(’{1 D 5 { €dam C

NN =i~ N c-q\{-\r{k 0 W !\:(_"‘t“ LC'LLJ’\C'. \ 1 1 APR 2022
it Roed POSTAL SERVICES

Ceovrte R
N oz

NR e o £ ix

Jljaj, ii‘C_O__t{ o, L] +—A— Nas fr\nl

[\ cam 3wy ouart (‘.le,tu- wd l«(/‘llo«co

| e atTn +
| g 2Ty C’\GSQ_P’JU‘\\'("*Q n f T <

J Qw i~ AW l':s ot ot cu—k* st W Sy

A o la me Shet hipbdd

sl ople < lot = ¢

Cuf)r) 1|.C— ('_‘h. :'J-\—\ (‘3"

i £ l»«".t.:r—r-ft‘—\ @ cs ¥ c~

l\\:ej L*‘L., - l--t lJ"\—-.J A L“.f

oY

I 4 -D:i—#aTJ? 4 s (T

. A A
g e R -2

ingé nj" LL) ; '.B QLY ]’-1 U :"{-L "(1: €3

Em Ut 0 u\aie’ > L <
9 A_k LYl Nobhes  t+lhare ot Emwmm ekt olond

Ua

m(ho { 0: o hooed 94\1-;\-1—! Ao o Qiurc_(L) .

L Huom q.‘__, +hs o ~(:' (JJ'—‘QJ"% ot e B A

a g 1‘{*—\’ P S —~ ad o - 'f—“l'\:fn_-{-; na s S‘f-{\) ow ng

e

> A ’—_lr-LE.,h‘a . Lol Srbeast o S weay: g
1 H c‘fﬂu_f— ayg o £ UiHfe e sved @nes t oldr—e 7 p
20 o pln S‘(ft\x LL\-“‘“‘W’L 4 \J Mage — peshopr we nesat ay.
R 08 ‘s 3 mNoay I & ena run 0w N Thoedt, 2
\ Slintd i (=  appe \ = Cowneid o
ACA D lann -_{-3 ay PIJM C o h T

\-( [ 1 € L b '

")(\-_J\GL’\ (,c-n.‘_;_\c.‘ \




This page is intentionally left blank



10t April 2022

Public Protection Team

North Norfolk District Council
Holt Road

Cromer

Norfolk

NR27 9EN
Reference WK/220003147: Application by The New Inn, HornirQe‘gnd their licensing
hours

| am very disappointed that the New Inn in Horning, own
Limited, wishes to extend its licence hours from 11pm
drinking-up time, seven days a week, and it demongffat

nature of the area in which the pub is situated. H\j is

egate Pub Company
.m., plus an extra half an hour
thelr I|m|ted understanding of the
residential village and not an urban
town where many other Stonegate pubs are sit

Therefore, | object to the extension of the e On the following grounds:

Detrimental to Family Holidays

Families on boats mooring at thnn with children on board are unlikely to welcome noise
[ may also be staying on boats, which will deter families

from late-night revellers, so
returning to the area for t&) ys. With a knock-on effect to the local economy.

Public Safety

| am concerne %e combination of late-night drinking next to the River Bure and the
potential dangers and limb. Alcohol next to water is never a good combination and
peoples’ ing of safety disappears under the influence of late-night drinking.

Regs % P3king. The New Inn has very few parking spaces and river moorings. The
conseuegrce must be that customers will drive to the New Inn and park on either the narrow
Lower Street or in nearby residential streets. Lower Street is already an area where little
attention is paid to the speed limit of 20 miles per hour and there are already potential dangers
inherent where there are limited footpaths (much of the area leading to and from the New Inn
has limited pathways).

| believe that if on-road parking increases it is not only dangerous to pedestrians, but it has the

potential of impeding emergency vehicles including fire engines, ambulance, and staff from
safety boats in reaching their destinations.

Page 97



Crime and Disorder

The New Inn in Lower Street is set in the middle of a residential area and next to the River
Bure.

An extension of their licencing hours is likely to attract customers from far and wide, possibly
attracting ‘stag’ and ‘hen’ parties where their local pub closes earlier.

The request from the New Inn by Stonegate Pub Company to instal CCTV cameras
immediately suggests that they themselves are concerned about potential crime and violence
that late night drinking might cause.

In addition, the lack of lighting on Lower Street leads to many dark shadowy areas where late
night drinkers leaving the New Inn may well be subject to robbery or violence.

Public Nuisance

| have already mentioned the public nuisance caused by limited parkigg s at the New Inn
and the overspill onto Lower Street and the surrounding area.

For those driving and walking to the pub it will inevitably bring w@ﬂse from late night
revellers calling out to each other and slamming car doors, which it is well known that

water increases the volume and noise drift.

Please refuse this planning application, as this wil*!hawg a particularly detrimental impact on a
quiet residential Broads village.

Page 98






This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 5

Licensing Sub Committee

Author’s Title Licensing Enforcement Officer
Are there back ground papers X Yes [l No
Exempt [] Yes X NoO

Ward(s) affected?

Responsible Members

Clir P Butikofer — Chairman Licensing
Committee

Clir N Lloyd — Portfolio Holder (Licensing)

Contact Officer

James Windsor

E-mail address

James.windsor @north-norfolk.gov.uk

Telephone number

01263 516289

Are there Non Electronic Appendices

[] No

Yes

X

List of Background Papers and
Appendices

North Norfolk District Council Licensing
Policy

Statutory Guidance issued by the Home
Office

Appendices to the report containing
copies of correspondence from
Responsible Authorities and Other
Persons

Application and Current Application Form

This report has been subject to the following processes:

Consultation with:

Head of Financial Services (S151 Officer) [] Yes X Not apt
Solicitor to the Council/Legal X Yes [] Not apt
Others: Head of Environmental Health

File Location: | Assure Database WK/220003602

Licensing Sub-Committee 25 May 2022

Page 1 of 19

Page 101




Agenda Item No

Application for a new Premises Licence — The Woodyard, Worstead Park,
Worstead, Norfolk NR28 9RT

Summary: This is an application for a New Premises Licence

Conclusions: That Members consider and determine the case from the written
and oral information provided.

Recommendations: That Members consider and determine this case

Clir P Butikofer — Chairman

i . . Ward(s) affected: Worstead
Licensing Committee

Contact Officer, telephone

) James Windsor
number, and e-mail:

01263 516289

James.windsor@north-norfolk.gov.uk

1. Jurisdiction

1.1. North Norfolk District Council is the Licensing Authority under the Licensing
Act 2003 in respect of Premises licences for the sale of alcohol or regulated
entertainment. Where a valid application for a premises licence or variation is
received and relevant representations are made, before determining the
application, the authority must hold a hearing to consider the case.

1.2. The four licensing objectives to be considered when determining the
application, and relevant representations, are:

a. the prevention of crime & disorder

b public safety

C. the prevention of public nuisance, and
d the protection of children from harm

The Application

2.1 Worstead Farms Limited have made an application for a New Premises
Licence. The application and method statement can be seen in Appendix A
and the premises plan Appendix B.

2.2  The Premises are predominantly to be used as a wedding/party venue.

Licensing Sub-Committee 25 May 2022
Page 2 of 19 Page 102



2.3  The applicant seeks permission to operate as follows:

Licensable activity Days Times

Opening Hours

Saturday to Sunday | 08:00 - 23:55

Live Music Saturday to Sunday | 08:00 - 23:00
Recorded Music Saturday to Sunday | 08:00 - 23:55
Sale of Alcohol On Premises Saturday to Sunday | 08:00 - 23:55

3. Conditions

3.1  The premises licence is subject to the following mandatory conditions:

a.

LIPO0O1 No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises
licence, at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor
in respect of the premises licence or at a time when the designated
premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence, or the
personal licence is suspended.

LIP002 Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be
made or authorised by a person who holds a personal licence.

LIPO03 Where a premises licence includes the condition that at
specified times one or more individuals must be at the premises to
carry out a security activity; each such individual must be licensed
by the Security Industry Authority.

LIPO04 Where a premises licence authorises the exhibition of films,
the admission of children to the exhibition of any film to be restricted
in accordance with this section.

LIPOO6

(1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant
premises do not carry out, arrange or participate in any
irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or
more of the following activities, or substantially similar activities,
carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of
alcohol for consumption on the premises—

(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are
designed to require or encourage, individuals to—

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to
drink alcohol sold or supplied on the premises before the
cessation of the period in which the responsible person is
authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or

(iiydrink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time
limit or otherwise);

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free
or for a fixed or discounted fee to the public or to a group

Licensing Sub-Committee 25 May 2022

Page 3 of 19

Page 103




defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which carries a
significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a
prize to encourage or reward the purchase and consumption of
alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner which
carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional
posters or flyers on, or in the vicinity of, the premises which can
reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or glamorise
anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in
any favourable manner;

(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of
another (other than where that other person is unable to drink
without assistance by reason of disability).

f. LIPO08 The responsible person must ensure that free potable water
is provided on request to customers where it is reasonably
available.

g. LIPO09
(1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder
must ensure that an age verification policy is adopted in
respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of
alcohol.

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises
licence must ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises
is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy.

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the
responsible person to be under 18 years of age (or such older
age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request,
before being served alcohol, identification bearing their
photograph, date of birth and either—

(a) a holographic mark, or
(b) an ultraviolet feature.

i. LIP010 The responsible person shall ensure that:

a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for
consumption on the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or
supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or
supply in a securely closed container) it is available to
customers in the following measures —

i) beer or cider: ¥ pint;
i) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25ml or 35ml; and
i) still wine in a glass: 125ml; and

Licensing Sub-Committee 25 May 2022
Page 4 of 19 Page 104



b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other
printed material which is available to customers on the premises;
and

c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify
the quantity of alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware
that these measures are available.

LIPO11 A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or
supplied for consumption on or off the premises for a price which is
less than the permitted price.

3.2 The licence will be subject to the following conditions which are consistent
with their operating schedule:

a.

LIPN14 Prominent, clear notices shall be displayed at [all exits/in the
beer garden] requesting customers to respect the needs of local residents
and leave the premises and the area quietly.

LIPN19 The Designated Premises Supervisor or a nominated
representative shall receive and respond to complaints throughout the
duration of all noisy events and will have full control at all times over the
sound amplification.

LICD25 Variation/video equipment will be installed inside/outside the
premises and maintained in working order.

LICD28 Monitoring tapes will be retained for a minimum period of 28
days and will be produced to an authorised officer on demand.

LICD15 Any person selling or supplying alcoholic drink under the
authority of a personal licence holder will ask for a photo ID proof of age
where they have reason to suspect that the individual may be under 18
years of age.

Representations from Responsible Authorities

4.1  Section 13(4) of the Act defines the 'Responsible Authorities’ as the statutory
bodies that must be sent copies of an application. Representations made
must relate to the licensing objectives.

4.2  The following comments have been received from the Responsible

Authorities:
Responsible Authority Comments Date
Trading Standards Nil Response
Fire Service No Objection 28/03/2022
Home Office (Immigration Nil Response
Enforcement)
EH - Commercial Nil Response
Licensing Sub-Committee 25 May 2022

Page 5 of 19

Page 105



5.2

Responsible Authority

Comments

Date

EH - Licensing

| have no objections to this
application however please
attach the following
conditions that are
consistent with their
operating schedule:
-Challenge 25 Policy and
Proof of ID

-Notices at exits requesting
patrons leave the area
quietly

-CCTV indoors and
outdoors

-List of appropriate contact
details on site

14/04/2022

Norfolk Safeguarding
Childrens Board

Nil Response

EH - Environmental
Protection

Nil Response

Planning

No Objection

04/04/2022

Primary Care Trust, NC C

Nil Response

Norfolk Constabulary -
Licensing Team

With those conditions
offered in the application to
promote the licensing
objectives there are no
police objections.

14/04/2022

Representations from Other Persons

Section 13(3) of the Act describes interested parties as local
residents/businesses (or their representatives) who live/are involved in a
business in the vicinity of the premises. Representations made must relate to

the licensing objectives.

There has been significant correspondence received from various residents
concerning this application. Copies of all the correspondence is attached for
information. The predominant issues raised has been that of public safety and
public nuisance. See the table below and Appendix C.

Representations from Other Persons

Name Representation Date
Patterson Crime and Disorder 06/04/2022
Butcher Public Nuisance 19/04/2022
Lewis Public Nuisance 19/04/2022

Licensing Sub-Committee
Page 6 of 19

Page 106

25 May 2022



Notices

The applicant is responsible for advertising the application by way of a notice
in the specified form at the premises for not less than 28 consecutive days
and in a local newspaper. The Public Notice appeared in the North Norfolk
News on the 25 March 2022 and a Notice should have been displayed on the
premises until 21 April 2022.

Plans

A location plan showing the general location of the premises is attached at
Appendix D.

North Norfolk District Council Licensing Policy

The current Statement of Licensing Policy was approved by Council on 17
November 2021 and became effective on 31 January 2022 and the following
extracts may be relevant to this application:

3.0 Main Principles
3.1 Nothing in the ‘Statement of Policy’ will:

« undermine the rights of any person to apply under the 2003 Act
for a variety of permissions and have the application considered
on its individual merits, and/or

» override the right of any person to make representations on any
application or seek a review of a licence or certificate where they
are permitted to do so under the 2003 Act

3.2 Licensing is about regulating licensable activities on licensed
premises, qualifying clubs and temporary events within the terms of the
2003 Act, and conditions that are attached to licences, certificates will
be focused on matters which are within the control of individual
licensee or club, i.e. the premises and its vicinity.

3.3 Whether or not incidents can be regarded as being ‘in the vicinity’ of
licensed premises is a question of fact and will depend on the particular
circumstances of the case. In dispute, the question will ultimately be
decided by the courts. When considering these conditions, the Council
will primarily focus on the direct impact of the activities taking place at
licensed premises on members of the public living, working or engaged
in normal activity in the area concerned.

3.4 Whether or not incidents can be regarded as being “in the vicinity”
of licensed premises is a question of fact and will depend on the
particular circumstances of the case. In cases of dispute, the question
will ultimately be decided by the courts. The Council, in addressing this
matter, will primarily focus on the direct impact of the activities taking
place at the licensed premises on members of the public living, working
or engaged in normal activity in the area concerned.

Licensing Sub-Committee 25 May 2022
Page 7 of 19 Page 107



3.5 Licensing law is not the primary mechanism for the general control
of nuisance and anti-social behaviour by individuals once they are
away from the licensed premises and, therefore, beyond the direct
control of the individual, club or business holding the licence, certificate
or authorisation concerned. Nonetheless, it is a key aspect of such
control and licensing law will always be part of a holistic approach to
the management of the evening and night-time economy throughout
the district.

3.6 The Council acknowledges that the licensing function cannot be
used for the general control of anti-social behaviour by individuals once
they are beyond the direct control of the licensee of any premises
concerned. In this respect, the Council recognises that, apart from the
licensing function, there are a number of other mechanisms available
for addressing issues of unruly behaviour that can occur away from
licensed premises, including:

3.7 < planning and environmental health controls
*«CCTV
* ongoing measures to create a safe and clean environment in
these areas in partnership with local businesses, transport
operators and other Council Departments
* to designate of parts of the District as places where alcohol
may not be consumed publicly
* regular liaison with Police on law enforcement issues regarding
disorder and anti-social behaviour, including the issue of fixed
penalty notices, prosecution of those selling alcohol to people
who are drunk; confiscation of alcohol from adults and children
in designated areas and instantly closing down licensed
premises or temporary events on the grounds of disorder, or
likelihood of disorder or excessive noise from the premises
* the power of the police, other responsible authority or a local
resident or business or District Councillor to seek a review of the
licence or certificate

4 Crime and Disorder
4.1 The Council acknowledges that the Police are the main source of
advice on crime and disorder.

4.2 Licensed premises, especially those offering late night/early
morning entertainment, alcohol and refreshment for large numbers of
people, can be a source of crime and disorder problems. The Council
will expect Operating Schedules to satisfactorily address these issues
from the design of the premises through to the daily operation of the
business.

Licensing Sub-Committee 25 May 2022

Page 8 of 19

Page 108



4.4  In addition to the requirements for the Council to promote the
licensing objectives, it also has a duty under Section 17 of the Crime
and Disorder Act 1998 to do all it reasonably can to prevent crime and
disorder in North Norfolk’s District. The Local Authority also
acknowledges powers contained within the Violent Crime Reduction
Act 2006.

4.5  The Council will consider attaching Conditions to licences and
permissions to deter and prevent crime and disorder both inside and
immediately outside the premises, and these may include Conditions
drawn from the Model Pool of Conditions relating to Crime and
Disorder.

5 Public Safety

5.1 Licence holders have a responsibility to ensure the safety of those
using their premises, as part of their duties under the 2003 Act. This
concerns the safety of people using the relevant premises rather than
public health which is addressed in other legislation. Physical safety
included the prevention of accidents and injuries and other immediate
harms that can result from alcohol consumption such as
unconsciousness or alcohol poisoning.

5.2 A number of matters should be considered in relation to public
safety, these could include;
e Fire safety
e Ensuring appropriate access for emergency services such as
ambulances
e Good communication with local authorities and emergency
services
e Ensuring the presence of trained first aiders on the premises and
appropriate first aid kits
e Ensuring the safety of people when leaving the premises (for
example through the provision of information on late-night
transportation)
e Ensuring appropriate and frequent waste disposal, particularly of
glass bottles
e Ensuring appropriate limits on the maximum capacity of the
premises; and
e Considering the use of CCTV

5.3 The measures that are appropriate to promote public safety will
vary between premises and the matters listed above may not apply in
all cases. The Council expects applicants to consider, when making
their application, which steps it is appropriate to take to promote the
public safety objective and demonstrate how they will achieve that.

Licensing Sub-Committee 25 May 2022
Page 9 of 19 Page 109



5.5 The Council will consider attaching Conditions to licences and
permissions to promote safety, and these may include Conditions
drawn from the Model Pool of Conditions relating to ‘Public Safety’

6 Prevention of Public Nuisance

6.1 Licensed premises, especially those operating late at night and in
the early hours of the morning, can cause a range of nuisances
impacting on people living, working or sleeping in the vicinity of the
premises.

6.2 The concerns mainly relate to noise nuisance, light pollution and
noxious smells and due regard will be taken of the impact these may
have. The Council will expect Operating Schedules to satisfactorily
address these issues. Applicants are advised to seek advice from the
Council’'s Environmental Protection Service before preparing their plans
and Schedules. The Council expects operating schedules to
satisfactorily address these issues, as appropriate.

6.3 The Council will consider attaching Conditions to licences and
permissions to prevent public nuisance, and these may include
Conditions drawn from the Model Pool of Conditions relating to ‘Public
Nuisance’.

7 Prevention of Harm to Children

7.1 The wide range of premises that require licensing means that
children can be expected to visit many of these, often on their own, for
food and/or entertainment.

7.2 The 2003 Act makes it an offence to permit children under the age
of 16 who are not accompanied by an adult to be present on premises
being used exclusively or primarily for supply of alcohol for
consumption on those premises under the authorisation of a premises
licence, club premises certificate or where that activity is carried on
under the authority of a temporary event notice.

7.3 In addition, it is an offence to permit the presence of children under
16 who are not accompanied by an adult between midnight and 5am at
other premises supplying alcohol for consumption on the premises
under the authority of any premises licence, club premises certificate or
temporary event notice. Outside of these hours, the offence does not
prevent the admission of unaccompanied children under 16 to the wide
variety of premises where the consumption of alcohol is not the
exclusive or primary activity. Between 5am and midnight the offence
would not necessarily apply to many restaurants, hotels, cinemas and
even many pubs where the main business activity is the consumption
of both food and drink. This does not mean that children should

Licensing Sub-Committee 25 May 2022
Page 10 of 19 Page 110



automatically be admitted to such premises and the following
paragraphs are therefore of great importance notwithstanding the new
offences created by the 2003 Act. (See the Licensing Policy for further
detail)

10 Standard Conditions

10.1 The Council will not impose conditions unless it has received a
representation form a responsible authority, such as the police,
environmental health officer or other persons, such as a local resident
or local business, which is a relevant representation, or is offered in the
applicants Operating Schedule. Any conditions will be proportional and
appropriate to achieve the Licensing Objectives

11 Enforcement

11.1 Once licensed, it is essential premises are maintained and
operated so as to ensure the continued promotion of the licensing
objectives and compliance with the specific requirements of the 2003
Act and the Council will make arrangements to monitor premises and
take appropriate enforcement action to ensure this.

11.2 The Council has an enforcement protocol, agreed with all seven
Norfolk Local Authorities, Norfolk Constabulary, Norfolk Fire Service,
Customs and Excise and Trading Standards. This should provide for a
more efficient deployment of staff and police officers who are
commonly engaged in enforcing licensing law and inspection of
licensed premises. These protocols will provide for the targeting of
agreed problem and high-risk premises, but with a lighter touch being
applied to those premises, which are shown to be well managed and
maintained.

11.3 All enforcement actions taken by the Council will comply with the
Councils Enforcement Policy and the Enforcement Concordat, which
the Council has adopted. To this end the key principles of consistency,
transparency and proportionality will be maintained.

11.4 A closure power is provided for in the Anti-Social Behaviour,
Crime and Policing Act 2014 which replaces section 161 of the Act.
This new closure power can be used to protect victims and
communities by quickly closing premises that are causing nuisance or
disorder. Further guidance on this power can be found on the gov.uk
website, under the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act: anti-
social behaviour guidance.

Licensing Sub-Committee 25 May 2022
Page 11 of 19 Page 111



9.2

Guidance Issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

The current Guidance was issued by the Home Office in April 2018 and offers
advice to Licensing authorities on the discharge of their functions under the
Licensing Act 2003.

The following extracts may be relevant to this application and assist the panel:

Licensing conditions — general principles

1.16 Conditions on a premises licence or club premises certificate are
important in setting the parameters within which premises can lawfully
operate. The use of wording such as “must”, “shall” and “will”, is
encouraged. Licence conditions:

» must be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives;

» must be precise and enforceable;

* must be unambiguous and clear in what they intend to achieve;

+ should not duplicate other statutory requirements or other duties or
responsibilities placed on the employer by other legislation;

» must be tailored to the individual type, location and characteristics of
the premises and events concerned,

+ should not be standardised and may be unlawful when it cannot be
demonstrated that they are appropriate for the promotion of the
licensing objectives in an individual case;

* should not replicate offences set out in the 2003 Act or other
legislation;

* should be proportionate, justifiable and be capable of being met,

* cannot seek to manage the behaviour of customers once they are
beyond the direct management of the licence holder and their staff, but
may impact on the behaviour of customers in the immediate vicinity of
the premises or as they enter or leave; and

* should be written in a prescriptive format.

Each application on its own merits

1.17 Each application must be considered on its own merits and in
accordance with the licensing authority’s statement of licensing policy;
for example, if the application falls within the scope of a cumulative
impact policy. Conditions attached to licences and certificates must be
tailored to the individual type, location and characteristics of the
premises and events concerned. This is essential to avoid the
imposition of disproportionate and overly burdensome conditions on
premises where there is no need for such conditions. Standardised
conditions should be avoided and indeed may be unlawful where they
cannot be shown to be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing
objectives in an individual case

Crime and Disorder

2.1 Licensing Authorities should look to the police as the main source
of advice on crime and disorder. They should also seek to involve the
local Community Safety Partnership (CSP).

Licensing Sub-Committee 25 May 2022
Page 12 of 19 Page 112



2.3 Conditions should be targeted on deterrence and preventing crime
and disorder including the prevention of illegal working in licensed
premises (see paragraph 10.10). For example, where there is good
reason to suppose that disorder may take place, the presence of
closed-circuit television (CCTV) cameras both inside and immediately
outside the premises can actively deter disorder, nuisance, anti-social
behaviour and crime generally. Some licence holders may wish to have
cameras on their premises for the prevention of crime directed against
the business itself, its staff, or its customers. But any condition may
require a broader approach, and it may be appropriate to ensure that
the precise location of cameras is set out on plans to ensure that
certain areas are properly covered and there is no subsequent dispute
over the terms of the condition.

Public Safety

2.7 Licence holders have a responsibility to ensure the safety of those
using their premises, as a part of their duties under the 2003 Act. This
concerns the safety of people using the relevant premises rather than
public health which is addressed in other legislation. Physical safety
includes the prevention of accidents and injuries and other immediate
harms that can result from alcohol consumption such as
unconsciousness or alcohol poisoning. Conditions relating to public
safety may also promote the crime and disorder objective as noted
above. There will of course be occasions when a public safety condition
could incidentally benefit a person’s health more generally, but it should
not be the purpose of the condition as this would be outside the
licensing authority’s powers (be ultra vires) under the 2003 Act.
Conditions should not be imposed on a premises licence or club
premises certificate which relate to cleanliness or hygiene.

2.8 A number of matters should be considered in relation to public
safety. These may include:

* Fire safety;

» Ensuring appropriate access for emergency services such as
ambulances;

» Good communication with local authorities and emergency services,
for example communications networks with the police and signing up
for local incident alerts (see paragraph 2.4 above);

» Ensuring the presence of trained first aiders on the premises and
appropriate first aid kits;

* Ensuring the safety of people when leaving the premises (for
example, through the provision of information on late-night
transportation);

» Ensuring appropriate and frequent waste disposal, particularly of
glass bottles;

Licensing Sub-Committee 25 May 2022
Page 13 of 19 Page 113



» Ensuring appropriate limits on the maximum capacity of the premises
(see paragraphs 2.12-2.13, and Chapter 10; and

* Considering the use of CCTV in and around the premises (as noted in
paragraph 2.3 above, this may also assist with promoting the crime and
disorder objective).

Public Nuisance

2.15 The 2003 Act enables licensing authorities and responsible
authorities, through representations, to consider what constitutes public
nuisance and what is appropriate to prevent it in terms of conditions
attached to specific premises licences and club premises certificates. It
is therefore important that in considering the promotion of this licensing
objective, licensing authorities and responsible authorities focus on the
effect of the licensable activities at the specific premises on persons
living and working (including those carrying on business) in the area
around the premises which may be disproportionate and unreasonable.
The issues will mainly concern noise nuisance, light pollution, noxious
smells and litter.

2.16 Public nuisance is given a statutory meaning in many pieces of
legislation. It is however not narrowly defined in the 2003 Act and
retains its broad common law meaning. It may include in appropriate
circumstances the reduction of the living and working amenity and
environment of other persons living and working in the area of the
licensed premises. Public nuisance may also arise as a result of the
adverse effects of artificial light, dust, odour and insects or where its
effect is prejudicial to health.

2.17 Conditions relating to noise nuisance will usually concern steps
appropriate to control the levels of noise emanating from premises.
This might be achieved by a simple measure such as ensuring that
doors and windows are kept closed after a particular time, or persons
are not permitted in garden areas of the premises after a certain time.
More sophisticated measures like the installation of acoustic curtains or
rubber speaker mounts to mitigate sound escape from the premises
may be appropriate. However, conditions in relation to live or recorded
music may not be enforceable in circumstances where the
entertainment activity itself is not licensable (See Chapter 15). Any
conditions appropriate to promote the prevention of public nuisance
should be tailored to the type, nature and characteristics of the specific
premises. Licensing authorities should avoid inappropriate or
disproportionate measures that could deter events that are valuable to
the community, such as live music. Noise limiters, for example, are very
expensive to purchase and install and are likely to be a considerable
burden for smaller venues.

Licensing Sub-Committee 25 May 2022
Page 14 of 19 Page 114



2.18 As with all conditions, those relating to noise nuisance may not be
appropriate in certain circumstances where provisions in other
legislation adequately protect those living in the area of the premises.
But as stated earlier in this Guidance, the approach of licensing
authorities and responsible authorities should be one of prevention and
when their powers are engaged, licensing authorities should be aware
of the fact that other legislation may not adequately cover concerns
raised in relevant representations and additional conditions may be
appropriate.

2.19 Where applications have given rise to representations, any
appropriate conditions should normally focus on the most sensitive
periods. For example, the most sensitive period for people being
disturbed by unreasonably loud music is at night and into the early
morning when residents in adjacent properties may be attempting to
go to sleep or are sleeping. This is why there is still a need for a
licence for performances of live music between 11pm and 8am. In
certain circumstances, conditions relating to noise emanating from the
premises may also be appropriate to address any disturbance
anticipated as customers enter and leave.

2.20 Measures to control light pollution will also require careful
thought. Bright lighting outside premises which is considered
appropriate to prevent crime and disorder may itself give rise to light
pollution for some neighbours. Applicants, licensing authorities and
responsible authorities will need to balance these issues.

2.21 Beyond the immediate area surrounding the premises, these are
matters for the personal responsibility of individuals under the law. An
individual who engages in anti-social behaviour is accountable in their
own right. However, it would be perfectly reasonable for a licensing
authority to impose a condition, following relevant representations,
that requires the licence holder or club to place signs at the exits from
the building encouraging patrons to be quiet until they leave the area
or that, if they wish to smoke, to do so at designated places on the
premises instead of outside and to respect the rights of people living
nearby to a peaceful night.

Determining applications

9.37 As a matter of practice, licensing authorities should seek to focus
the hearing on the steps considered appropriate to promote the
particular licensing objective or objectives that have given rise to the
specific representation and avoid straying into undisputed areas. A
responsible authority or other person may choose to rely on their
written representation. They may not add further representations to
those disclosed to the applicant prior to the hearing, but they may
expand on their existing representation and should be allowed sufficient
time to do so, within reasonable and practicable limits.

Licensing Sub-Committee 25 May 2022
Page 15 of 19 Page 115



9.38 In determining the application with a view to promoting the
licensing objectives in the overall interests of the local community, the
licensing authority must give appropriate weight to:

* the steps that are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives;

* the representations (including supporting information) presented by all
the parties;

* this Guidance;
« its own statement of licensing policy.
Relevant, Vexatious and Frivolous Representations

9.4 A representation is “relevant” if it relates to the likely effect of the
grant of the licence on the promotion of at least one of the licensing
objectives. For example, a representation from a local businessperson
about the commercial damage caused by competition from new
licensed premises would not be relevant. On the other hand, a
representation by a businessperson that nuisance caused by new
premises would deter customers from entering the local area, and the
steps proposed by the applicant to prevent that nuisance were
inadequate, would be relevant. In other words, representations should
relate to the impact of licensable activities carried on from premises on
the objectives. For representations in relation to variations to be
relevant, they should be confined to the subject matter of the variation.
There is no requirement for a responsible authority or other person to
produce a recorded history of problems at premises to support their
representations, and in fact this would not be possible for new
premises.

9.5 It is for the licensing authority to determine whether a
representation (other than a representation from responsible authority)
is frivolous or vexatious on the basis of what might ordinarily be
considered to be vexatious or frivolous. A representation may be
considered to be vexatious if it appears to be intended to cause
aggravation or annoyance, whether to a competitor or other person,
without reasonable cause or justification. Vexatious circumstances may
arise because of disputes between rival businesses and local
knowledge will therefore be invaluable in considering such matters.
Licensing authorities can consider the main effect of the representation,
and whether any inconvenience or expense caused by it could
reasonably be considered to be proportionate.

9.9 It is recommended that, in borderline cases, the benefit of the doubt
about any aspect of a representation should be given to the person
making that representation. The subsequent hearing would then
provide an opportunity for the person or body making the
representation to amplify and clarify it.

Licensing Sub-Committee 25 May 2022
Page 16 of 19 Page 116



Determining actions that are appropriate for the promotion of the
licensing objectives

9.42 Licensing authorities are best placed to determine what actions
are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives in their
areas. All licensing determinations should be considered on a case by
case basis. They should take into account any representations or
objections that have been received from responsible authorities or
other persons, and representations made by the applicant or premises
user as the case may be.

9.43 The authority’s determination should be evidence-based, justified
as being appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives and
proportionate to what it is intended to achieve.

9.44 Determination of whether an action or step is appropriate for the
promotion of the licensing objectives requires an assessment of what
action or step would be suitable to achieve that end. While this does
not therefore require a licensing authority to decide that no lesser step
will achieve the aim, the authority should aim to consider the potential
burden that the condition would impose on the premises licence holder
(such as the financial burden due to restrictions on licensable activities)
as well as the potential benefit in terms of the promotion of the licensing
objectives. However, it is imperative that the authority ensures that the
factors which form the basis of its determination are limited to
consideration of the promotion of the objectives and nothing outside
those parameters. As with the consideration of licence variations, the
licensing authority should consider wider issues such as other
conditions already in place to mitigate potential negative impact on the
promotion of the licensing objectives and the track record of the
business. Further advice on determining what is appropriate when
imposing conditions on a licence or certificate is provided in Chapter
10. The licensing authority is expected to come to its determination
based on an assessment of the evidence on both the risks and benefits
either for or against making the determination.

Conditions attached to Premises Licences

10.2 Conditions include any limitations or restrictions attached to a
licence or certificate and essentially are the steps or actions that the
holder of the premises licence or the club premises certificate will be
required to take or refrain from taking in relation to the carrying on of
licensable activities at the premises in question. Failure to comply with
any condition attached to a licence or certificate is a criminal offence,
which on conviction is punishable by an unlimited fine or up to six
months’ imprisonment. The courts have made clear that it is particularly
important that conditions which are imprecise or difficult for a licence
holder to observe should be avoided.

10.3 There are three types of condition that may be attached to a
licence or certificate: proposed, imposed and mandatory. Each of these
categories is described in more detail below

Licensing Sub-Committee 25 May 2022

Page 17 of 19 Page 117



Proposed Conditions

10.4 The conditions that are appropriate for the promotion of the
licensing objectives should emerge initially from the risk assessment
carried out by a prospective licence or certificate holder, which they
should carry out before making their application for a premises licence
or club premises certificate. This would be translated into the steps
recorded in the operating schedule or club operating schedule, which
must also set out the proposed hours during which licensable activities
will be conducted and any other hours during which the premises will
be open to the public.

10.5 It is not acceptable for licensing authorities to simply replicate the
wording from an applicant’s operating schedule. A condition should be
interpreted in accordance with the applicant’s intention

Imposed Conditions

10.8 The licensing authority may not impose any conditions unless its
discretion has been engaged following receipt of relevant
representations and it is satisfied as a result of a hearing (unless all
parties agree a hearing is not necessary) that it is appropriate to
impose conditions to promote one or more of the four licensing
objectives. This provision also applies to minor variations.

10.9 It is possible that in some cases no additional conditions are
appropriate to promote the licensing objectives.

Proportionality

10.10 The 2003 Act requires that licensing conditions should be tailored
to the size, type, location and characteristics and activities taking place
at the premises concerned. Conditions should be determined on a case
by case basis and standardised conditions which ignore these
individual aspects should be avoided. For example, conditions should
not be used to implement general policy in a given area such as the
use of CCTV, polycarbonate drinking vessels or identity scanners
where they would not be appropriate to the specific premises. Licensing
authorities and other responsible authorities should be alive to the
indirect costs that can arise because of conditions. These could be a
deterrent to holding events that are valuable to the community or for the
funding of good and important causes. Licensing authorities should
therefore ensure that any conditions they impose are only those which
are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.

Hours of trading

10.13 The Government acknowledges that different licensing strategies
may be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives in
different areas. The 2003 Act gives the licensing authority power to
make decisions about the hours during which the premises can conduct
licensable activities as part of the implementation of its licensing policy

Licensing Sub-Committee 25 May 2022
Page 18 of 19 Page 118



statement. Licensing authorities are best placed to make decisions
about appropriate opening hours in their areas based on their local
knowledge and in consultation with responsible authorities. However,
licensing authorities must always consider each application and must
not impose predetermined licensed opening hours, without giving
individual consideration to the merits of each application.

10.15 Shops, stores and supermarkets should normally be free to
provide sales of alcohol for consumption off the premises at any times
when the retail outlet is open for shopping unless there are good
reasons, based on the licensing objectives, for restricting those hours.

10. Determination

10.1 The Sub Committee are requested to consider the application for this new
premises licence application.

10.2 When considering this application, the Sub Committee will need to have
regard to the North Norfolk District Council Licensing Policy and to statutory
guidance under the Licensing Act 2003 issued by the Secretary of State.

10.3 In determining the application for a Premises Licence the Sub Committee may
take the following actions:

a. Grant the application

b. Grant the application subject to conditions relevant to the promotion
of the licensing objectives

c. Refuse the application

10.4 This application must be determined and notified to the applicant within 5
working days from the conclusion of the hearing. Reasons for the Panel’'s
decision must be given as both the applicant and objectors have a right of
appeal against that decision to the Magistrates Court.

10.5 There is a right of appeal to the decision of the Sub Committee to the
Magistrates court within 21 days.

Appendices:

A. Copy of Application

B. Plan of Premises

C. Letters/emails of objection or support from Responsible Authorities/ ‘Other
Persons’

D. Location Plan

Background Papers:

1.
2.

3.

The Licensing Act 2003

North Norfolk District Council Statement of Licensing Policy (approved 17
November 2021)

Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 (April 2018)

Licensing Sub-Committee 25 May 2022
Page 19 of 19 Page 119



This page is intentionally left blank



Licensing Team Reference number

North Norfolk District Council

—-‘i Council Offices (office use only)
- Holt Road
NORTH cCromer

NORFOLK Norfolk
DISTRICT COUNCIL  NR27 SEN

Schedule 2

Application for a premises licence to be granted
under the Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance booklet.

If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure that
your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary.
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

1/ We....... O L S TS B apply for a

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

(Insert name(s) of applicant)
premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in

Part 1 below (the premises) and l/we are making this application to you as the relevant
licensing authority in accordance with section 12 of the Licensing Act 2003

Part 1 — Premises Details

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description

B el VY ARD
oR STERD CARL_

w&m
Post town Post code
WJORTH LWL BHEAMA NEE AR>S

Telephone number of Premises (if any)
o\ sRe226

Non-domestic rateable value of premises

2 E <, 150
(This can be obtained from the Valuation Office
website www.voa.gov.uk) Page 121

1 of 20




Part 2 — Applicant Details

In state whether you are applying for a premises licence as

Please tick ¥
a) An individual or individuals* D Please complete Section A
b) A person other than an individual®
I. as a limited company [E/Please complete Section B
i. as a partnership D Please complete Section B
ii. as an unincorporated association I:] Please complete Section B
iv. other (for example a statutory [:] Please complete Section B
corporation)
c) A recognised club D Please complete Section B
d) A charity D Please complete Section B
e) The proprietor of an educational establishment D Please complete Section B
f) A Health Service Body L] Please complete Section B
ag) An individual who is registered under Part 2 of
the Care Standards Act 2000 (c14) in respect of D Please complete Section B
an independent hospital in Wales
ga) a person who is registered under Chapter 2 of . . Py
Part 1 of the Health and Social Care Act 2008 D Please complete Section B
(within the meaning of that Part) in an A o 2 e
independent hospital in England e
h) The Chief Officer of Police of a police force in D Please complete Section B

England and Wales

* If you are applying as a person described in (a) or (b) please confirm:

“Please tick V' yes

| am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which [E/
Involves the use of the premises for licensable activities; or

| am making the application pursuant to a

O statutory function or

O A function discharged by virtue of Her Majesty’s prerogative |:|

Page 122

2 of 20



 SECTION A - INDIVIDUAL APPLICANTS (fill in as applicable)

Mr [] Mrs [ ] Miss L[] ms [ ] Othertitle

(please state)

Surname First names
Date of Birth

Yes
Nationality I am 18 years old or over D

Current residential address if different from premises address

Post Town: Postcode:

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address (optional)

Second individual applicant (if applicable)

+

Mr [] Mrs [] Miss [] Ms [] Othertitle

(please state)

Surname * - ‘Firstnames . .
Date of Birth

Yes
Nationality I am 18 years old or over D

Current residential address if different from premises address

Post Town: Postcode:

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address (optional)

3 of




Section B - OTHER APPLICANTS

Please provide name and registered address of applicant in full. Where appropriate please give any
registered number. In case of a partnership or other joint nature (other than a body corporate), please

give the name and address of each party concerned.

Name
WO RBT AT gARMS D

Address
Yooy tosse

€ MAU_BORA Y
g O 2o\ ik
oL U
el b

Registered number (where applicable) AOS\ 2\

Description of applicant (for example, partnership, company, unincorporated association etc)

LINALTETD CowmPa™

Telephone number (if any)

oAbqQ2L S2e 226

E-mail address (optional)
BRO (£ @ LS EWD ETTAIE . cov

Page 124
4 of 20



Part 3 - Operating Schedule

Day Month Year
When do you want the premises licence to start? .............
Y & LLdfol4] z2]e]2]>]

Day Month Year
If you wish the licence to be valid only for a period, L ] [ ] [ ] | _|

Please give a general description of premises (please read guidance note 1)

[+DoRR. & oV TDOOR. LOWI N0 ARENS  w it 0w =G
ATz EACILITIES, gA. AREA MDD T ILaETd  owSweo
B CALT W~ CETLULANS WS, THE SITE \S Lec&TED /4 Mug
FRONMA o THEE. 2455 \DBRVCE  WTWW A& 3o Aeec PAR LA

If 5,000 or more people attend the premises at any one time, please state the number
expected to attend.

What licensable activities do you intend to carry on from the premises?
(Please see sections 1 and 14 of the Licensing Act 2003 and Schedule 1 and 2 to the Licensing Act

2003)

Provfsmn;ofre uTaie&éﬁféFtamment (please read guidance note 2)
Please tick any that apply

a) Plays (if ticking Yes, fil in BOX A)........c..ooioeoeo oo []
b) Films (if ticking yes, fill in BOX B).............ooove oo []
c) Indoor sporting events (if ticking yes, fill N BOX C).............ccooviiiri i [:]
d) Boxing or wrestling entertainmént (if ticking yes, fil in BoxXD)............oooovviiiei D
e) Live music (If ticking yes, fill in BOX E)..............coouuue i &d
f) Recorded music (if ticking yes, fill in BOX F)..........ooooiiiiii [E’
g) Performances of dance (if ticking yes, fillin BoX G)...............ocooeiiieiie D

h) Anything of a similar description to that falling within e,f or g (if ticking yes, fill in Box H)... ,:]

Provision of late night refreshment (if ticking yes, fill in Box 1)............ocooooioi... Eg
The supply of hot food or hot drink to the public for consumption on or off the
premises between 11.00pm and 5.00am.

Supply of alcohol (i ticking yes, fill in BoX J)............oovooooooo

IN ALL CASES PLEASE COMPLETE B&»©ES k20 AND M
50of 20



Indoors

Box A Will the performance of a play take place

Plays indoors or outdoors or both — please tick v

Standard days and timings (Please read guidance note 3) Outdoors

(Please read guidance note-7) SR

Day Start Finish Eoth

Mon Please give further details here (read guidance note 4)

Tue

Wed i |

g ST | State any’seasonal variations for performing plays (read guidance. note 5)

Thur g | .

Fri
Non_standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the

Sat performance of plays at different times to those listed in the column on the left,
please list (read guidance note 6)

Sun

Box B Will the exhibition of films take place Indoors

Films indoors or outdoors or both — please tick V

Standard days and timings (Please read guidance note 3) Qutdoors

(Please read guidance note 7)

Day Start Finish Both

Mon Please give further details here (read guidance note 4)

Tue

Wed
State any seasonal variations for exhibition of films (read guidance note 5)

Thur

Fri
Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the exhibition

Sat of films at different times to those listed in the column on the left, please list
(read guidance note 6)

Sun

Page 126

6 of 20




Box C
Indoor sporting events

Standard days and timings
(Please read guidance note 7)

Day Start Finish Please give further details here (read guidance note 4)
Mon
Tue
Wed
State any seasonal variations for indoor sporting events (read guidance note 5)
Thur
Fri
Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the indoor
Sat sporting events at different times to those listed in the column on the left,
please list (please read guidance note 6)
Sun

Box D Boxing or

wrestling entertainment
Standard days and timings
Please read guidance note 7)

Will the boxing or wrestling entertainment Indoors
take place indoors or outdoors or both —
please tick Outdoors

(Please read guidance note 3)

Day Start Finish Both
Mon Please give further details here (read guidance note 4)
Tue
Wed
State any seasonal variations for boxing or wrestling entertainment (read
guidance note 5)
Thur
Fri
Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for boxing or
Sat wrestling entertainment at different times to those listed in the column on the
left, please list (please read guidance note 6)
Sun
Page 127

7 of 20




Box E Will the performance of live music take place | Indoors /
Live music indoors or outdoors or both — please tick v
Standard days and timings (Please read guidance note 3) Outdoors
(Please read guidance note 7)
Day Start Finish Both
Mon Please give further details here (read guidance note 4)
Tue
Wed
State any seasonal variations for the performance of live music (read guidance
note 5)
Thur
Fri
Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the
yoo o performancg of live music at dl‘fferent times to those listed in the column on the
Sat & 250 left, please list (please read guidance note 6)
Sun O ¥OO (2300

Page 128

8 of 20




Box F Will the playing of recorded music take place | Indoors val
Recorded music indoors or outdoors or both — please tick V
Standard days and timings (Please read guidance note 3) Outdoors
(Please read guidance note 7)
Day Start Finish Both
Mon Please give further details here (read guidance note 4)
Tue
Wed
State any seasonal variations for playing recorded music (read guidance note
5)
Thur
Fri
Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the playing of
Sat recorded music at different times to those listed in the column on the left,
oEFES |2 please list (please read guidance note 6)
(& =1 2138
Sun ot=n | odew
O¥oe | 2355
Box G Will the performance of dance take place Indoors
Performance of dance indoors or outdoors or both — please tick
Standard days and timings (Please read guidance note 3) Outdoors
(Please read guidance note 7)
Day Start Finish Both
Mon Please give further details here (read guidance note 4)
Tue
Wed
State any seasonal variations for performance of dance (read guidance note 5)
Thur
Fri
Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the
Sat performance of dance at different times to those listed in the column on the left,
please list (please read guidance note 6)
Sun

Page 129

9 of 20




Box H

Anything of a similar
description to that falling
withine,forg

Standard days and timings

(Please read guidance note 7)

Please give a description of the type of entertainment you will be
providing

Day Start Finish Will this entertainment take place indoors Indoors
or outdoors or both — please tick Outd
Mon (Please read guidance note 3) oors
Both
Please give further details here (read guidance note 4)
Tue
Wed
State any seasonal variations for entertainment of a similar description to that
falling within e, f or g (read guidance note 5)
Thur
Fri -
Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the
Sat entertainment _of similar description to that falling within e, f or g at different
times to those listed in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance
note 6)
Sun

Page 130
10 of 20




Box | Will the provision of late night refreshment | Indoors

Late night refreshment take place indoors or outdoors or both —

Standard days and timings please tick V _ Outdoors

(Please read guidance note 7) (Please read guidance note 3)

Both

Day Start Finish Please give further details here (read guidance note 4)

Mon

Tue
State any seasonal variations for the provision of late night refreshment (read
guidance note 5)

Wed

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to ‘use the premises for the provision
of late night refreshment entertainment at different times to.those listed in the
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

il S3eee | aSeo

Sun ooz |sS=e

Page 131

11 of 20




Box J Will the supply of alcohol be for consumptionf On premises| _~
Supply of alcohol — please tick ¥ _
Standard days and timings (Please read guidance note 8) Off premises
(Please read guidance note 7)
Day Start Finish Both
Mon State any seasonal variations for the supply of alcohol (read guidance note 5)
Tue
Wed
Thur Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the supply of
alcohol at different times to those listed in the column on the left, please list
(read guidance note 6)
Fri
Sat e —— =~ —-—=
OB |23<S
Sun e | 23S
oxce (225S

State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the licence as designated
premises supervisor (please see declaration about the entitlement to work in the checklist at the end

of the form):

Page 132
12 of 20




Box K

Please highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, other entertainment or
matters ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of
children (please read guidance note 9)

I « R 2 < , uep 2 s Wl . PR e

L

Afon

Box L

Hours premises are open

to the public
Standard days and timings
(Please read guidance note 7)

Day

Start

- Finish

Mon

Tue

Wed

State any seasonal variation (read guidance note 5)

Thur

Fri

Sat

|ogeo

22ES -

Sun

oTwFOO

2255

_Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises to be open to the
public at different times to those listed in the column on the left, please list
(please read guidance note 6)

Page 133
13 of 20




M Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives

a) General — all four licensing objectives (b,c,d,e) (please read guidance note 10)

- GPetdTING  ScKEDAL | 24s% ASTESIMAEDTS AT uEsr
RACTICE AUUES, <SEE WTAchD Poesvt T 1 arAil)

b) The prevention of crime and disorder

—cctU  [-ReoRs ARD cOTDeoR3
= foleyY MANED STHWes o SALE oF ALcodoc
— CLERE. ACTIOS AW TRAWNNG Ow MADAC WG il ESc ALATION

ofF A =smhANONS.

c) Public safety

— QLT M BulD) v e 0 ATIOWS
— TREWIED st AMDee. ows SaTE.
— E2ST MDD PamTS gert ue e oA

— AMEW LAWCE BAT DESIGNWRED weeT o e Ve e
— (\ST of ARPROPRUAATE O+ TWCT TETAUS O SME.

— SACEYY RllereS AT eVERy Jsoacllor & SOAFE M) QUESTS .

d) The prevention of public nuisance

—SIGRAGE  ABRAG  CUTTOMERS  ® 2 ESPE A AL ERIDENCE

e T BOUTES  LEWRL WARKED ol uESTS AR TAKS T
Lo - -

— STAEFF EIRDEES Lo CEANWIC .

e) The protection of children from harm

_ICEM G E 250 ULy DEUMIZED LATW WG LALDCE AT WL Q\MLS,
— REGUUAR. STWEE TRAINIVD G 0N REASIN,  ASALL.

— o fRwfE, o sAL LMY
— cC™V  PUSTRLLED

- = PO WJT SV \SIoN AU A
acﬂaz&arxzb U\H\%age ™5h g TR |

14 of 20



= g

= W ]

i 10041

00G T ze @ sjeos 220g yoasy aep

usld 22U

plIe) pooy ayj

Ethl

qol

PY1 SWaB] PEIISION  jueip

snjeis

oY ey [ Nuswey auep

‘3(E0% Jou op
UBUIOIUBLWO o Joyd sepurduissip
AT J0 PO ROYYAIE PUE B3 UO PEXIBYD 0 ) SUDISUNIP JIE

“Suossod

28410 AQ OPTL SULIPUOIE 0] POIEEIOE By | AYIGE]] 0U ‘UoISSLL0d

uanii Aq jdeoxe popumuE 10 posnpaidel og Jou AR pus pr ey
PeojsicnA jo JyBikdos oy oie poRidep syiam BUPING 0w pue Buwwp s @

] 330153

NiWMos

8SNOH 1009



Page 136



asre - 100" AT

0011 . s s 410z AON  om
UB[d 80UBOT]  am
PLwL pooy ayy

Pil SULIBY PRANSION o

SNOILVINOHY ONIATING s

un i P

i

Y}I6N

44444

uosss
U3 50 U3 SAEUSIN ) PIFIITE 84 e A 04 SOt
=

[ ey
Ty “ K _uxwml : .‘!u“.»....u.u.er y i'n___
A / ./ — e

% S
_ n
. [EE]
1
5 |
o 1] |
-
m L
e “m—\.. =
| 1@
]
£0 Jois -

s Boeg

Page 137



Page 138



ADVERTISEMENT OF NEW PREMISES LICENCE

Worstead Farms Ltd
Is seeking a new premises licence to premises licence for
The Woodyard, Worstead Park, Worstead, Norfolk NR28 9RS

for Live Music, Recorded Music, Sale of Alcohol for
consumption on premises, on Saturdays & Sundays

If you wish to object to this application written representations
with full contact details should be made to the Licensing
Authority below:

Licensing Section, North Norfolk District Council, Council
Offices, Holt Road, Cromer, Norfolk, NR27 9EN

Representations should be made by 21/04/2022 (28 days
starting day after the day on which the application was given to
the authority by the applicant)

This application may be viewed during office hours at the above
offices.

N.B It is an offence, liable on conviction to a fine up to
level 5 on the standard scale (£5,000), under Section 158 of
the Licensing Act 2003 to make a false statement in or in
connection with this application

Page 139



Page 140



N Consent of individual to being specified

,'\\.'c%l;&',}' as premises supervisor

DISTRICT COUNCIL

R BRCE . PATERQSeY
(Full name of prospective premises supervisor)

AIPETTES OSN3 0RF LK AR ASE ..
(home address of prospective premises supervisor) 3 g 5 o ,

hereby confirm that | give my consent to being specified as the deéignated |
premises supervisor in relation to the application for

bY oo DR LE | PATERSO™ — LoRS=ToAD AARMI (IO,

(name of applicant)

relating to a premises liCeNCe ..................ooooiiiiiiii i
(number of existing licence, if any)

for . THE. .. LI2QPNALD, . R OAD.. 2ARK .. o0 E5%R0AD, .

SRETE W AAREOM.,  NoZfoltle. | W R22%.. . ARS . ...

(name and address of premises to which the application relates)

and any premises licence to be granted or varied in respect of this application made
by

e BV CATERON N o S

(name of applicant)

concerning the supply of alcohol at

THE . L20ePYARD, . LeesEvh. | ALK, .. 20 TEAD, ..
WOV LLMASHAM | woRfocle . WRRX.. AL,

(name and address of premises to which application relates)

Page 141




| also confirm that | am entitled to work in the United Kingdom and am applying for,
intend to apply for or currently hold a personal licence, details of which | set out

below.

Personal licence number ... 4= N(@OOO\ A e S e
(personal licence number, if any)

Personal licence issuing authority

HORTH. | WoRFoLK.  DIRTRLCA. | Cadmitn. .o ke I

(insert name, address and telephone number of personal licence issuing guthority,‘if any) .

COVRG ... CFALLS,. YO (L. COAR, . C2an &R, WORMLK,

GBI G BN o .. ecscrmnnmsmoser s s s SR A A R A A SR S5

........ PO~ oIeD S22

(please print)

w - 3

Page 142




NORTH NORFOLK DISTRICT COUNCIL
Licensing Act 2003

PREMISES LICENCE - CERTIFICATE OF PUBLIC NOTICE

This is to certify that | ... 8822 Gt A TR RO

residing at .. DERL D €. .. LATRERGATE. GoAD, . LRRIEARD |, MR2¥.. ASE. .

have placed the required public notice advertisement in one locally circulating newspaper, namely:

(1) L QRTKE NI COl DD
On {(date:Of PUBHEEYOR v vmm wums vammanme s v s s S E IR rTEH e 55 A mscn st srcr a1 At AR

and | have exhibited a similar notice on the proposed premises in a prominent position at

LRESTEWS. . ORRK. . BT R e AN Y U
from (date notice displayed) ......... .o

NORTH NORFOLK DISTRICT COUNCIL
Licensing Act 2003

PREMISES LICENCE - CERTIFICATE OF PUBLIC NOTICE

This is to certify that | ...... 50820 | EATERDSN

residing at .. XA RS, .. 2D, ... LATHORGATE. RoAR), (oo STEAD DE2Y. ASE. ..

have placed the required public notice advertisement in one locally circulating newspaper, namely:

(1) R ST b R D
on (date of publiCation) ... ...

and | have exhibited a similar notice on the proposed premises in a prominent position at

AR ETERD . PARIC, DR AN

Page 143



Page 144




v

WORSTEAD

ESTATE

Metirod Stotement

Page 145



v

WORSTEAD

ESTATE

The Woodyawrd

Version 1.2, e date 13t September 2021

Page 146



WORSTEAD

ESTATE
1 Contents
1 CONTENTS 3
2 INTRODUCTION 5
2.1 KEY INFORMATION ..ucutticsiriesssssessssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssasssssssssssasassssassssssatessssasssssssesssssssssesatessssssssssatasasssssssssasasssss 5
2.2 COMPANY DETALLS uttuiuissessssssssssssessssssssssssssssssssssssssssssesssssssssssssssssssssssssssesssssssssssssesssssssssssatesssssssssssssasessssssssssbesssssssssssstasssssssssnssans 5
2.3 START DATE eevcrecreerereernesresseenes
2.4 SITE ADDRESS .uvvsrerresssessnsseseenas
2.5 CONTACT DETAILS covverrereeerseseesesseseenas
2.6 DOCUMENT AUTHOR .ootectireessisesssssssssssssssssssssssessssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssasssssssssssessssssassssssabessssasssssssassssssssssssbessssssssssssbesassassssssasassssns 6
2.7 HEALTH AND SAFETY CONTACT .ucuttetuiuissessesesssssssessssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssassssssssssssssssssssssssssessssasssssssssssssssssssesesssssssssssssasssssssssssasassssns 7
3 MAIN HAZARDS 8
3.1 TRAFFIC ON SITE INCLUDING FARM TRAFFIC
3.2 USE OF KITCHEN EQUIPMENT INCLUDING GAS APPLIANCES
3.3 GAS STORAGE ..overeresrresssssssesinnas
3.4 USE OF MECHANICAL LIFTS
3.5 USE OF ELECTRICAL PLANT INCLUDING VENTILATION SYSTEMS AND HEATING SYSTEMS
3.6 OVER CAPACITY/OVERCROWDING
3.7 VIOLENT BEHAVIOUR....cceuirreecrierrsrienens
3.8 USE OF ELECTRICAL APPLIANCES BY STAFF
3.9 MANAGEMENT OF WASTE ON SITE INCLUDING SEWAGE
3.10 USE OF AUDIO EQUIPMENT
3.11 SLIPS TRIPS AND FALLS ..cvuveuresrrereesssesssnns
3.12 RISK OF FIRE ..ucuvviririereereeeeneneneans
4 PROCEDURES AND TRAINING 14
4.1 STAFF TRAINING .cocecrirecrereercnerieennanns
4.2 CLIENT COMMUNICATION
4.3 BEFORE AN EVENT ...cvcvciverecrneercsnnn.
4.4 STAFF INDUCTIONS....ccvurirsrrersenenesenas
4.5 DURING AN EVENT..........
4.6 FOLLOWING AN EVENT
4.7 ACCESS TO THE BUILDING OUTSIDE AN EVENT
4.8 ON-GOING IMPROVEMENT
ACCESS 20
6 APPENDICES 21
6.1 APPENDIX 1: FIRE EVACUATION PLAN ..cuttitiiiiesssteesnsressssssssssessssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssessssssssssssssnssessssssnssesssessssssssenssssssasas 21
6.3 APPENDIX 2: NOISE MANAGEMENT PLAN .ttt ss st st sssssasbssesassssssassssassssssssssssasanes 22
6.5 APPENDIX 3: TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT PLAN ettt bsss s bbbt st s s s ssssas s sssasssssnssasasanes 23
6.7 APPENDIX 4: WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN ..ttt ss st bbbt st st ssassssssss e sassssssssnsssasanes 24
6.9 APPENDIX 5: ACCESS STATEMENT ..vcuiiiiteitiisrssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssissesssssssesssssssassssssbessssssbessssssssssssssasssssssssssssssssssas 25
6.10 APPENDIX 6: EVENT CHECKLIST 1uvtutuesresessssesssssresssssesssssssesssssssssssssesssssssssssssssssssesssssssssssssesssssssssssasssssssssssssasessssssssnssssssssssssssssasssssas 26
6.11 APPENDIX 7: INSPECTION SCHEDULE ...cvtetiusssesssseessssssesssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssassssssssssssssssssssssssnssesessssssssnssasssasas 30
6.12 APPENDIX 8: INFORMATION FOR FIRE SERVICES...ceceiiurivisirersssesesssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssasssssssssesssases 36

6.13 APPENDIX 9: INSURANCE ENDORSEMENTS

Page 147



6.14
6.15
6.16

WORSTEAD

ESTATE
APPENDIX 10: FIRE SAFETY PoLICY
APPENDIX 11: FIRE RISK ASSESSMENT
APPENDIX 12: FIRE SAFETY BRIEFING
Page 148



WORSTEAD

ESTATE

2 Introduction

The method statement hay been dirafted to- provide a clear wnderstonding
of good practice wien operating The Woodyard as o wedding or exvents
venue. It shhouwdod be adopted ay stondord operating procednre. This
statement i concerned witiv e delivery of a wedding or event on the site
v a safe manner that does not place the public, cients, staff or thirol-
porty operatory at risk: This unclundes travel to- and. from the site,

2.1 Key Information

e Fure Alarm code: [5678]

o Intruder Alarm (VotalVale) code: [ENTRE CODE]
e Key Lotk Code: [ENTRE CODE]

o Pork Gates: 4201

o Hold Open: 2591 enter

o Close: 2591 clear

2.2 Company details

Worstead Farms Liumited,
Holly howse,
Smallburghv,

Norwici,

Novfolk
NR12 9NB

T: 01692 536226
Page 149



WORSTEAD

ESTATE

W: wwwsworsteadestote.com
E: hello@wovrsteadestote.com

2.3 Start date

174 September 2021

2.4 Site address

The Woodyard,
Worstead Pork,
Worstead,
Norwich,

Novrfolk
NR2g 9RS

2.5 Contact details

Emily Hardesty, Venune Manager (VM)
M: 07795 503514

E: weddings@worsteadestate.com

T: 01692 535682 (ow sife land line)

2.6 Document author

Gonin Paterson (Durector, Worstead: Farms)
T: 01692 536226

M: 07815 776746

E: ganvin@worsteadestote.com

Page 150


http://www.worsteadestate.com/
mailto:hello@worsteadestate.com
mailto:weddings@worsteadestate.com
mailto:gavin@worsteadestate.com

WORSTEAD

ESTATE

2.7 Health and safety contact

Michoel Fowrrow-

T: 01603 218384

M: 07917 412418

E: mforrow@Rolanboswell.com

Page 151


mailto:mfarrow@alanboswell.com

WORSTEAD

ESTATE

3 Main Hazards

3.1 Traffic on site including farm traffic

Traffie travelling thuroughh the site for several purposes unclnding: clienty
attending events ow sife, residents ow site, holiday let residents on site,
form traffic trovelling to- and from flelds. Dangers unclunde traffic
collisions, troffic colliding witiv pedestriany or animals.

Control measurres wirich are i place unclude a 15 mide and howr speed
Uit i Worstead Park, a one-way systenw to- reduce the chance of traffie
collisiony and. maintenance of road verges to- improve visihbility.

Traffie on sife will be managed i accordance witiv e Traffie
Management Strotegy un appendix 3.

3.2 Use of kitchen equipment including gas appliances

Third party caterers will be bringung n their own kifthen applionces,
some of wihviehe will be gas appliances: There will be a risk of wnjury, fire,
electrocwtion and explosion witich needy to- be manager carefully.

Only a lumited: number of trusted cotevery will be appounted from an
approved supplier Ust Eaciv caterer will need to- provide copiles of all
relevant healtiv and safety documents uncluding risk assessments, metivood.
statements, training and puplic Wab Uity wsurance detods. Thais will also-
unclude a selredude of servicing and maintenance of the equipment
witleh must be carried out un accordance withv he manunfacturers

Page 152



WORSTEAD

ESTATE

specifications, eacih caterer wll need to- shhow- exidence of Hils
mainfenance.

3.3 Gas Storage

Gas bottles can ondy be stored un the designated area (caged n a

Gas W storeds un thiy secured arvea ondy, wpright and ngpected on an
annnal bosisy: This Uy a no- smoking area. Applionces must be conunecteo
wsing the buidt-n connection nfrastrnctire wiriel also- hhas o
integrated antomatic cut off shhouwld tire fire alarm sound. There iy also- an
emergency et off button un Hhe kitchen clearly marked next to-tie
kitehen doov.

AW eguipment related to- gay storage and distribution to- He kitehen,

unclunding Hre cooker hoodl will be checked and serviced once a year by a
guolified enguneer.

3.4 Use of mechanical lifts

Four mechanical Ufty are wustalled ovn sifte wirich present a risk of unjury

AW venune management stoff will be trained oy to- how-to- use the Uiftsy and
Annual testing will be corried out to- ensnre tivat the Ufty are operating as
ey should do-

Page 153



WORSTEAD

ESTATE

During a fire or emergency e Ufts shhowlo not be used and. egress from
the building o possible withowt using Ufty or stodns

3.5 Use of electrical plant including ventilation systems and heating systems

Large electrical plant will be present on site to- manage He climate

AW venue management stoff will be trained ay to- vow-to- operate the
venue office at adl times: A aninunal service will be corried out by
gualified. electricians every 5 yeory to- ensnre that all electricol wirung
ond eguipment ovw site g safe and operoting correctly.

3.6 Over Capacity/Overcrowding

Eventsy and wedding guest numbers will be contracted clearly witiv e
cient and Hre venune manager will be respovsiple for ensuring covrect
numbery o site. Should numbery exceed e capacity agreed tive VM will
restrict access to- the site, may exclude guests and bring thve event to-a
dose early Uf necessary.

3.7 Violent Behaviour

The VM may hawe to- manage sitnation wirere guestsy become violent: If
they are wnable to- defuse the situation then the VM showld call tire
police. The event showld then be brought to- o close and guests askeol to-
leave the venue.

Page 154
10



WORSTEAD

ESTATE

3.8 Use of electrical appliances by staff

Hurd-porty staff Portable Appliance Testing (PAT) will be carried owt
annunally to- ensure eaci applionce W safe.

3.9 Management of waste on site including sewage

Waste from events wll need to- be managed safely inclunding any broken
glass. Sewnge from the foulets ow sife will be stored un a s ~terranean

Waste and recycling from tihe site will be collected weekly un accordance
withv the Waste Management Strategy v appendix 4.

3.10 Use of audio equipment

damage hearing Uf misuseo.

AW venue management stoff will be trained ay to- howto- use Hhe andio
at all Himes. The aundio system has built bn regulator witich precludes
noue reaching excessive levely.

Nouse on site wlll be managed U accordance witiv He Nolse Management
Strategy v appendix 2.

3.11 Slips trips and falls

Page 155
11



WORSTEAD

ESTATE

There are severol unfernal and external surfaces wivich could be slippery
wihen wet, inclnding steps and stodns between levels.

Decking owtside the venue s made form mil board, a composite
specifically designed to- provide grip to- wsers: Botiv iy suarface and tire
Alagstones will be cleaned once o year or as necessoanry v ovder to- preclunde
the buidld wp of sl or ippery material on them

Showld any sypillages ocenr, warning signs will be placed ow or near Hre
suaface vwntll the spillage has be cleared wp: This wll be part of
management stoff training.

3.12 Risk of fire

Ay a thoatehed building Hhere W greater risk of fure than usual. Muci of
the supporting structure by construeted from tumbper alsos lnformation un
appendin 8 must be provided to-tive local fire service and reviewed and
updated each year and the local fires service kept wp to- date.

No- naked flames will be allowed withvin Hre buidlding other Hian n e
kitehen, nor withvn 100 meters of buidding. Smoking wil be proiipited
Hie Mudbperry Room U the disabled, carpork and. away from the thateleo
roof

The Woodyard Uy futted witiv a fire and smoke detection system: Shouwlo
Hus system detect o flre tive alarm will souwnd, a gay shutoff system wlll
be triggered along witiv the shutdown of the ventUlation system (nclunding

cooker anol aundio ln ( ( M fire doov
hoodl) w%aQWWW fure s are

12



WORSTEAD

ESTATE

futted to- the building, all fire exity are clearly marked and fiure
extinguishers are futed near eacih fure exit: Eacl exit will be kept clear
fromv obstruction wiriehh will also- be port of stoff training.

AW management staff will be trained. i the Fure Evacunation Plan witicih
can be found botiv v appendin 1 and un Hie venue office. The Fire
Evacunation Plan will inclunde o Generie Emergency Evacuation Plan
(GEEP) wivch will be part of the staff training and provided to- clients as

Page 157
13



WORSTEAD

ESTATE

4 Procedures and Training

4.1

Staff Training

AW venune management stoff, incliding the VM, will read and haxe
access to- (U He venue office) Hie following documents

Method. Statement (Hhis dotment)

Fire Safety Policy (appendin 10)

Fire Risk Assessment (appendin 11)

Fire Evacuation Plan (appendix 1)

Generie Emergency Evacuation Plan (appendin 1)
Noise Management Plan (appendir 2)

Traffic Management Plan (appendizx 3)

Waste Management Strategy (appendiv 4)

AW venue management staff including the VM will be trained ay follows:

How- to- evacunate Hie building under Hie Fire Evacunation Plan
(appendin 1) which will include raising Hhe alarm, dealing with
guests duwing a fure, howto- sweep- te building and shat off
wtlities inclnding gas and how-to- assist guests withe restricted
How-to deliver an induction to- new staff and thivd-party staff also-
working at the vemue using the Fure Safety Briefing i appendiv 12.
How- to- deliver an induction on use of the Lifts within tive building
for those guests withv reduced mobility.

Howr to- use the avdio- equipment and how-to-deliver the Noise

Management Strategy (%ggogigé
14



WORSTEAD

ESTATE

o What to-do in the case of spllages and wet surfaces. Inclunding how-
to- protect the guests with signage and how-to- clear and clean Hhe
spillage safely.

o What to do- in Hhe event of guest injury.

o How to- evswrre that all fire exits are kept wnobstructed.

o They will be trained as to- how to- use and operate the Ufts safely.

o How to- wse plant on the site including the ventilation and heating
systems,

o How to- handle sitnations wirere guests become violent:

o  How to assist guests wiro- wourldl normally wse thve Ufty to- exit He
building during an emergency.

4.2 Client Communication

Ay an lmportont pait of venue management eaci cient will be made
oware of protocols and procedunres reloating to- e venune and eache event:
These will be provided to- thhe client on booking as part of Hie venue hire
contract and key elements will be vighligihvted to- e cient by tive VM
before the cient contract iy signed. These docuwments wlll unclunole:

Page 159
15



WORSTEAD

ESTATE
Docuwment Deseription H&S Reason
Venue Booking Contract setting owt | So-that eaci client
Contract Hhe terms of Hhe uwnderstonds traffic
venue booking management on

uncluding traffic sute ay well as
on sife anol noise. restrictlons fo-

noise.
Generie Emergency | Docvment So- that shoulod Hre
Evacuation Plan explaining how cient hhave
guests shoulol restricted mob ity
evacunate the or wite o guest
building. witiv restrictec
be shared witiv
Hhem.

4.3 Before an Event

Before allowing access to- anyone He VM will ensre that all doory are
winlotked so- that egress can be aclhieved during an emergency. The VM
will ervsure that all fure exits are dear from obstruction.

Page 160



WORSTEAD

ESTATE

The VM will wse the Pre-Event Checklist un appendin 6 to- ensure that
dated, signed and stored un a folder on site.

NO ACCESS FOR ANY PERSONS INCLUDING STAFF, SUPPLIERS,
CLIENTS, OR GUESTS SHOULD ALLOWED UNLESS THESE CHECKS HAVE
BEEN CARRIED OUT AND ARE COMPLETE.

The approved suppliers will ensurre Hiat all kithen appliances brought
to- sife are PAT tested wirere appropriate and that any gay applionces
howe beew subject to- appropriete tfesting and maintenance. Any
applionces to- be connected to-tie venume gas supply muwst be done by a
certified professional. AW docuwmentation relating to- this must be
provided to- and checked by tihe VM before Hie event

The venue will be cleaned, all waste removed from tire sife un accordance
withv the Waste Management Strategy (appendix 4). The VM will ersure
that no sippery surfoces or dangerons areas are present at the venue.

4.4 Staff Inductions

Ow the day of the event e VM will meet witiv all staff working ot He
venue (eitiver employed by Worstead: Farmy or a thvivd-party) before the
event and provide Hem withv an induction: The nduction will unform
ol stoff of wirat to- do- L the event of an emergency, uncluding fure. They
wlll run thurouglh thve checklist b appendin 12, sign tive checklist and.
store tiy o sute.

Page 161
17



WORSTEAD

ESTATE

4.5 During an event

The VM wlll carry o mobile telepirone wirviche wlll allow- the Couneil, the
emergency services, Worstead: Estote stoff or any concerned guest or
member of the puplic fo- contfact them via the Worstead Estotes VolP (Volce
over Intfernet Protocol) on 01692 536226 as well as directy to-the
mobhile mumber (07795 503514).

The VM will ensurre that all fire exits are alwayys clear from opstruction.

The VM will carry ouwt the event v accordance withv Helr training and
Hre event protocolsy Listed Un section 4.1 Staff Training abpove. The VM will
manage noise v general by following the Noise Management Strotegy
(appendin 2) and specifically emsunre tat all music L furned off by
23.30 and ask guests to- leane the venue.

The venue hasy CCTV butalled and any UWegal activity wll be reported to-

4.6 Following an event

Following aw event and no- later Han 23.55 tive VM will sweep e
bullding to- ensuare that all guests and. staff have vacated. The gas supply
will be shut off, Ughty turned off, windows and doory closed and Hre

The VM will stay ow site as guests leave Hre sife and will be tHhe last
person to- leave tive sife.

Page 162
18



WORSTEAD

ESTATE

The VM wlll pass on any complaints, Bsues and possible umprovements to-
Worstead. Estote management following eaci exvent:

The VM wlll wse Hre Post-Event Checklist unv appendin 6 to- ensurre Hiot
the venune g closed down properly following eaci event and eaciv
completed checklist will be dated, signed and stored un a folder ow site.

NO EVENT SHOULD BE CLOSED DOWN AND THE VM SHOULD REMAIN
ON SITE UNLESS THESE CHECKS HAVE BEEN CARRIED OUT AND ARE
COMPLETE.

4.7 Access to the building outside an event

AW exits i the building use Hhe same moster key. Showld o lone worker
require access to- the venue duwring a periods wiven tive venune sy not being
wsed. ano wirere all doory are not unlocked, they must keep o master key

4.8 On-going Improvement

Worstead Estate management will review this docwment and all protocolsy
withv the VM o ainv anunnal basis and sooner shoulod U become necessary.
When appropriote the VM will perform and/or oversea thve nspection of
the venune ay appended by appendix 7.

Page 163
19



WORSTEAD

ESTATE

5 Access

A detoided access stomen hay been prepared and ottacihed un appendin 5
whilclv sety out hhow-the building U to- be access, uincluding access by tiose
withv reduced mobhpiity. Thiy docuwment shouwld be read un conjunction
withv He Traffie Management Statement un appendix 3.

Page 164
20



WORSTEAD

ESTATE

6 Appendices

6.1 Appendix 1: Fire Evacuation Plan

Page 165

21



WORSTEAD

ESTATE

6.3 Appendix 2: Noise Management Plan

Page 166

22



WORSTEAD

ESTATE

6.5 Appendix 3: Traffic Management Plan

Page 167

23



WORSTEAD

ESTATE

6.7 Appendix 4: Waste Management Plan

Page 168

24



WORSTEAD

ESTATE

6.9 Appendix 5: Access Statement

Page 169

25



6.10 Appendix 6: Event Checklist

6.10.1 Pre-event checklist

WORSTEAD

ESTATE

Page 170

26



WORSTEAD

ESTATE

ROUTINE INSPECTION POINTS

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

Hold open park gate using code 2591 “entre”

Turn off alarm using code 5678

Means of Escape

Fire exit doors open freely

Fire exit routes not obstructed

Fire doors clearly marked

Floors free from trip hazards

Assembly point clearly marked

Escape routes not used for storage

Fire Precautions

Test fire alarm system

Fire extinguishers at fire points

Fire extinguishers in good condition

Fire blanket

Emergency action details up to date/displayed

All fire safety signs clearly visible

Carbon monoxide detector present/useable

Smoke/heat detectors useable

Electrical Safety

Electrical equipment in good condition

Fixed installations appear free of damage

Fuse board/switchgear cupboards closed

Plugs in good condition

Cables free from damage

No multi point adaptors in use

Lengths of flexible cable kept to a minimum

Flammable Materials

Minimum storage in workplace/safely stored

Heating

Portable appliances used as set parameters

Lighting

General workplace lighting effective

Emergency lighting effective

27



WORSTEAD

ESTATE

Housekeeping

Debris/combustible waste cleared

Waste bins provided/emptied

Smoking prohibited/restricted to controlled area

Place the “Turn Right” sign at East exit of the park

Switch on hot water circulation

Switch on beer cooler and CO2 gass

Switch on ventilation system

6.10.2 Post-event checklist

ROUTINE INSPECTION POINTS

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

Housekeeping

Debris/combustible waste cleared

Waste bins are NOT emptied if after 10pm

Flammable Materials

Gas is stored and secured properly

[Gas tanks are switched off]

Ventilation and Lighting

All internal and external lights are turned off

Ventilation system is turned off

Clearing the Building

Check each area of the building for people

Housekeeping

Switch off hot water circulation

Switch off beer cooler and CO2 gas

Page 172

28



WORSTEAD

ESTATE

Switch off ventilation system

Check clean down of kitchen and bar

Security

Lock each door in turn as the building is cleared

Close park gate using code 2591 “clear”

Turn on alarm using code 5678

Recover the “Turn Right” sign from the East exit.

Page 173

24




WORSTEAD

ESTATE

6.11 Appendix 7: Inspection Schedule

AW operotions and checks pertoining to-the bullding must be carried ount
appendix 9. The following ypection schedule must be completed and
recovoeo

Page 174
30



WORSTEAD

ESTATE

THE WOODYARD - MAINTENANCE OF FIRE PRECAUTIONS

INSPECTION SCHEDULE

FREQUENCY

ACTION

DaiLy

Walk Hhwrouglv premises and check escape rowtes to- ensure they
are dear of obstructionsy and combustible materials and that
self-closing doory are not wedged open;, and

Check the fure alarm control and ndicating equipment to-
ensre the system s active and fully operational.

WEEKLY / PRE
WEDDING
CHECKS

Test fire alorm system by activating a manual call point (wsing
a different call point for each successive weekly test), wsually
by wuerting a dedicated test key. This will check that the
control equipment i capable of receiving a signal and in trn,
activoting the woarning alorms. Manunal coll pointy may be
nuwmpered to- ensre they are sequentially tested. It iy good.
practice to- test the alarm ot the same time each week, but
consider the need fo- evsre that staff working shifty are gwwen
the opportunity to- hear the alarm. During a test, the alarm
showld not opevate for too- long so- that thwere can be o ready
Adistinction between o test and an wnplanned actnation. Wiere
the system by connected fo- an alarm receiving centre, the centfre
shoudd be notified prior to- testing;

A check should be made to- determine Hiot the testing of the
fire alorm also- resudts v the operation or disabling of other
Unked features sueh as the release of any doory on hold open
devices, te operation of doory on swing free arms and
antomatic opening doory reverting to- manual operation,

Chheck thvat all safety signg and notices are legible,

Page 175
31




WORSTEAD

ESTATE

INSPECTION SCHEDULE

FREQUENCY

ACTION

Chheck escape routes, and test exit locking mechanismsy such as
pande bars, pusiv pady and electromagunetic locking devices; ano

Evgure that fure door self-closing desices operate effectively.

MONTHLY

Functional tests of all emergency lighting systems shouwld be at
o appropriote time wihen, following the test, they will not be
wmmediotely reguived. However, some modern systems have
self-testing facilities Hiat reduce routine checks to-a minimumm,
Depending on the type of wutallation cerfoim routine cihecks
and rowtine maintenance work may be able to- be done n
howse. Test methods wlll vary. Furthver maintenance may need
to- be carried out by a service engineer;

Caurry owt brief visumal check of fire extinguisirers and hose reels
to- ensure there are no- obyiouns faults,

Fire doors shhould be checked to- evusunrre they are v good working

- lngpectdoory for any warping or distortion that will prevent
the door from closing flushe into- Hhe frame;

- Check any flre-resisting glazed panelsy are n good
conditlon and secure n their frame; ano

—  Check Hrot intumescent strips and smoke seals are Un good,

Deep fot fryers: any flters, grease traps, sump boxes, extractions
hoooly and canopies to be ceaned each montin

I"dge 176
32




WORSTEAD

ESTATE

INSPECTION SCHEDULE

FREQUENCY

ACTION

ANNUALLY

Maointenance of portable fire extinguisiers;

Annunal disciharge test of emergency Ughting;
Maointenance check to- hose reely; and

lngpection and test of residential sprukler system.

PAT testing of all electrical appliances

Check corbon monoxide and smoke detectory

Gas storage, delivery system, cut off system and appliances
check by a gualified persove

Cooker hood and extroctor cdeaned by a gualified person
Deep clean of kitchen and bor

Resvten fure risk assessment (appendix 11)

AW external areas will be checked for a buidd-up of slime or

THREE YEARLY

Check all emergency Ughting for proper function.  Test for the
frll dwration of self-contained and central boattery systems Hat
hawve a specifled duration category v excess of one howr. Any
defect/ foudt to- be recovded un Hre loghook and action taken to-
rectify

FIVE YEARLY

Fuwe alorm wiring tfest:  Test, wspection and competent
engineer’s report:
lnspection of tie thatthh by a gualified thatcher

Page 177
33




RECORD OF FIRE EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE AND TESTING

Date Natwre of Work Work Signed
Done/ recommended

Page 178




v

WORSTEAD

ESTATE

Page 179

35



WORSTEAD

ESTATE

6.12 Appendix 8: Information for fire services

This information W to- be kept wp to- date and provided to-tie
fure service eacih fume U B npdated:

Page 180 36



WORSTEAD

ESTATE

Fire Service Information Pack

Fovr: The Woodyard,

Premuises adduress and contoct The Woodyard,

nuwmber Worstead Park,
Worstead,
Novrwici,

Novfolk
NR28 9RS

T: 01692 535682 (on sife land
Lne)

Emily Hawrdesty (Venne Manager)
M: 07795 503514

E: weddings@worsteadestate.com

Plan date 10/049/21
Revtew date o4/08/22
Bulding Use

Wedding venune and. eventy space. Maximummn copocity wp to- 160
Juests.

Flavmvmable moteriods on Sute

Page 181 37



WORSTEAD

ESTATE

Gay (kitchen applionces), thatched roof, ttmber framed builoing.

Access Detods

Bulding s located i Worstead park at tive above addiess,
approximately 1 mide sowtiv of Worstead village.

The bullding may be accessed from eltiver tHhe West gate ov He East
gote as marked on tie Plan 1. The access code for bothh gates s
4201.

Porking for emergency vehicles can be found uv the disaipled
carpork marked on Plan 1. Worstead pork lake oy approximately
150m West of thhe disabled parking area wivich iy a stream filled
lake rowghdy 11 acres U size withv a volume of arownd 40,000 m3
of water. Velhicwdar access s possiple doww to- the lakeside via tive
grossed aveo between the disabled corpark and the lake.

Page 182 38




v

WORSTEAD

ESTATE

(L0zZp @po2)
ajeo) jseq

yedie)
pe|gesiq

(102t @po2)
a)eo) 1sep\

| ueld



WORSTEAD

ESTATE

Escape rowntes

The escape rowtes from the building are:

1.

The main doory of the Thatthed Barn leaning onto- the West
potio- or the Eastern counrtyaro

The door leading out of the kitchen uinto- the Eostern covrtyaro
The triple door leading owt of tie bor unto-tive Eastern
cowrtyarol

The dowble door leading owt of tie covridor howsing the tollety
The door leading owt to- the Sowtiv and He diabpled corpark ot
tHhe Sowtivern end of tie covridor

. The two sets of doubple doory leading owt of e Mudberry Room

to- the disabled corpark.

Page 184 40




WORSTEAD

ESTATE

b ]/
i

g o

Hi

Fire & o
Exit P £y 8 R =

rermzen

{\")5‘
il

O B
@ =

Fire e
Exit P £y




WORSTEAD

ESTATE

Fire assembly point

The assembly pount . The grassed areo to- thve Sowtiv of e
Adsapled carpark (see above).

Fighting fires — Extinguisher use

Fire extinguishers will only be used wirere:

o Stoff have received trainming and feel confldent un Hieir use

o Where Ut gy deemed safe to- do- so- Le. there iy a clear meany of
escape, fure v small

Personal safety always tokes priority and, f in any doubt; stoff

shouldr not attempt to- extinguisiv a fure

Lotation of key safety hazards or other fure reloted equipment

o Gay supply shunt off: Next to- the kitchen door

o Mainy fuse bow: ln the breakowt room to- the East of the kitehen

o Maing water indet: ln the breakowt room fo-the East of the
kiteen

o Gas cylndery outside i a compouwnd on Hie Nortiv wall of tie
il

Page 186 42




WORSTEAD

ESTATE

o Lotation of fire alarm panel: ln the venue mangers office, to- the
right of the main entrance.

R T

For ensmring plan U up to- date Emily Hardesty

For evusuring adequote staff- are on duty | Ay above
fo- carry owt the evacunation plan

For training stoff on the evacunation plan | Ay above
ool v teir roles and resporasihbilities

6.13 Appendix 9: Insurance Endorsements

The following endorsements must be complied witiv i ovder to-
meet the requivements of the estote’s buidlding bnsmnronce.

6.13.1 Endorsement 12: Electrical Installation Inspection

YOU warrant that He electrical unstallation wlll be nspected
andl tested envery Huree/ five years by an electrical contractor,
gualified to- work on commercial wustallationsy and approved

Page 187 43



WORSTEAD

ESTATE

by a UKAS accredited body. Any defecty must be remedied in
accordance withv e Regulationy of the lnstitution of
Enguneeriung and Teclhnology.

6.13.2 Endorsement 13: Thatch Insurance Conditions

IFYOU fall to- comply withv any part of Hhe following conditions
ool YOUR failire covses or contributes towanrds an insured Loss
YOU lose YOUR right to- indeminity or payments for o claim

1. AW chimneys wirich coudd be used for open fires, or tirose
being wsed for a wood burning or multi-fuel stove or any
other type of buwrner or stove, including the flnwe along Uy
entire lengtiv and any spark avvestor must be kept un o
goodl stote of repaiv and must be cleaned at least once a
year, between 1yt May and 1yt September, by a competent
sweep withv Public Liablity uvsurance un force withv a
minlimuwe Lumdt of Indemunity of £2.5 million.

2. YOU wuwst refoinm Hhe bwoice U respect of the works
uwndertoken for revienw by US ow request;

3. If YOU have a wood burning or mudti-fuel stove:

a) ondy fuely recommended un the stove manunfacturer's
wutructions are to- be used;

Page 188 44



WORSTEAD

ESTATE

b) before retring at night; or leaving YOUR PREMISES
unattended for perwody of longer than two- lhowry, the
doory of Hhe stove must be closed and all air venty

. Naked. flames or tooly producing naked flames must not

be wsed. in the attic or Loft space of YOUR PREMISES, or

within one metre of Hhe nside or outside of tive thaty

. At least two- fure extunguishers must be unstalled un
readily accessible posiflons uwn YOUR PREMISES. AW fure
extiunguisirers unstolled, must meet all relevont Britisiv
Stondarrds;

. A smoke detector must be futted and maintained on eaci
floor of YOUR PREMISES and in the attie or Loft space;

. The thatche must be ypected at least once every five
yeary and, wust have been ungpected within Hhe last five
years.

. The uypection wmust be carried owt by a competent
thatiher and any essential remedial work completed
without delay after He upection. YOU must refain the
wypectiow report; and the nwoilces U respect of any
remedial work, for revtew by US on request;

Page 189 45



WORSTEAD

ESTATE

q. The electrical system n the PREMISES wmuwut be inspecteo
ot least once every five years and must have been
wspected witihvn tive last fve years:

10. The wupection must be carried out by a gualified
electrician un accordance witiv adl relevant Britisin

Standards and any remediol work necessory to- ensre
that the system complies witiv the relevant Brtsiv

the bspection: YOU must retain tive Electrical lnspection
Certificate, and He Lnwoices U respect of any remediol
work, for revtew by US on request;

11. Any bonfire, flrework disploy or incinerator YOU
howe, or Hhat YOU permit onw YOUR land, must be situated
ot a distamee of ot least 100 metres from YOUR
PREMISES;

12. YOU muwut notify US withvin seven days if YOU
uwstall or re-commission o woodk buwrning or mudti-fuel
stove v YOUR PREMISES. Ow receipt of notification WE
reserve the right to- charrge o addittonal premiuvm and,

13, YOU muwut ensurre Hhat Hhe requivements of
conditions 1) to- 9) above are complied witiv by otiver

Page 190 46



WORSTEAD

ESTATE

otenponts and ony tenoanty of the PREMISES wnless
agreed. by US i writing.

Tume for compliance

If YOUR policy s new buginess witiv US or His s the furst time
WE have imposed these Thateh lnsrance Conditions then YOU
have 60 dayy from Hre stourt of He PERIOD OF COVER fo-
comply withv condiflons 1), 4), 5), 6) and 7) of these Thateh
lnsmvrance Conditions. AW otiver conditions apply witv

Wiere, i respect of any of these Thateh lnsurance Conditions,
WE have agreed. in writing to- gwe YOU an additional period. of
flme to- make the PREMISES compliant then thve relevant
condition(s) will only take effect on expiry of the agreed
periool.

6.13.3 Endorsement 14: Deep Fat Frying Warranty

IFYOU fail to- comply withv any part of Hre following and YOUR
fallre conses or contributes towards an nsred Loss YOU Lose
YOUR right to- indemnity or payments for a claim.

Where deep fot frying cooking equipment Uy useo:

Page 191 47



WORSTEAD

ESTATE

accordance witiv the manufacturrer's unstrctions;

. UF i fitted withv o thermostot designed to- prevent the
temperature of cooking oy and fot from risging above 205
degrees centfigrade;

. any flters, grease traps, sump boxes, extractions hoods
oand canopies to- be deaned at least montinly;

. all extraction systems inclunding flues, extraction motors,
fans and tie entire lengtiv of any durcting ave deep
cleaned ot least once every 12 montrngy by a sypeclalist
contract deaner or more frequently on Helr adwice;

. U s notto- be Left unattended wirilst in wse and all heat
sources (other than pilot lights) to- be switched off wien
Hhe BUSINESS PREMISES ave closed;

. fire extinguisinery and fire blankets suitable for

cooking area and employees troined. how-to- use them

Page 192 48



WORSTEAD

ESTATE

6.14 Appendix 10: Fire Safety Policy

6.14.1 Introduction

Worstead. Estote are responsible employers and take owr flre
safety oduties seriowsly. For this reason we hoave formulated this
vustors.

Owing to- Uy lmportance, this fure safety policy also forms port
of the company’y overadl healtiv and safety policy.

6.14.2 Legal Position

Under the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 every
establishument witv 5 or more employees or sy licensed or
providesy sleeping accommodation will carry ouwt o fure risk
assessent that Ly sultaple and sufficient for the level of fure
risk present i thve workplace.

Employees will be unformed. of any clhanges tat are made to-
owr flre safety procedunres and fure risk assessment:

We will also- ensinre that ol visitors to- o premises are briefed
v the evacuation procedirres and not Left alone wnless Hey are
owore of, and foamidior withy, all avaidlaiple escape rowtes.

6.14.3 Procedures

Page 193 44



WORSTEAD

ESTATE

We hawe introduced e following procedures un ovoer to-
maintfain high standarods of fure safety.

. A fure risk assessment hay been undertaken
witich will be reviewed annunally however more
frequent reviews will ocenr of there ave any
changes made tivat wll umpact ow Uty
effectieness.

. The Event manager wll ensure fure evocuotion
procedunires are explained prior to- eaci event

. Pre wedding briefings will be provided as
necessary to-any stoff gven fure safety
respovsipUlities such as fure marsivaly to- assist
wit evacuation

. It & owr policy that some employees may be
trained v the wse of flre extinguisiving
applionces

. AW new- and temporary employees will be
provided witiv induction traiming on how-to-
raise the oloarm and the avadable escape routes

. AW escape rontes wll be clearly signposted and
kept free of obstructions at all times

. AW fure-related equipment will be reqularly
serviceds and maintoained. If any employee notices
defective or missing equipment, they must report
Ut to- & manager

Page 194 50



WORSTEAD

ESTATE

Alarm systems will be tested regularly. Staff will
be told wien a test s seireduded

Any other safety systems will be checked
regulorly to- evusrre correct operation, wiere
necessory, eg. emergency Ughtung

Page 195 51



WORSTEAD

ESTATE

6.15 Appendix 11: Fire Risk Assessment

Page 196

52



WORSTEAD

ESTATE

6.16 Appendix 12: Fire Safety Briefing

Page 197

53



WORSTEAD

ESTATE

FIRE SAFETY BREIFING TO EVENT STAFF

This instruction shown below has been provided to staff members

FIRE SAFETY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Date: Time:

Instruction Provided By

Subjects Covered (Tick as necessary)

Hazards and safe practices

How to raise the alarm or action on hearing alarm

Calling the Fire Brigade

Location and use of fire fighting equipment

Escape routes (location, use and keeping clear) and Assembly Point

Assisting evacuation of visitors and disabled

Security measures (daily and in event of fire)

Safety signs, their meaning and measures to be taken

Function and care with any fire protection / detection system(s)

Use and importance of fire doors, door closers and release devices

Need to report hazards, faults, dangers etc.

Particular instructions (describe) related to specific duties such as nominated areas to sweep

| confirm that | received instruction on the topics ticked above on the date given

Name: Signature:
Name: Signature:
Name: Signature:
Name: Signature:
Name: Signature:

Page 198 54




WORSTEAD

ESTATE
Name: Signature:
Name: Signature:
Name: Signature:
Name: Signature:
Name: Signature:
Name: Signature:
Name: Signature:

Page 199

55




This page is intentionally left blank



i Boar -

L — L -
Wiy meiery
R

i i e

Page 201



This page is intentionally left blank



18/04/2022

To the Licensing Department, North Norfolk District Council

Dear Sir/Madam
Premises Licence Application: The Woodyard, Worstead,NR28 9RS

We object to the licence application for the above premises for Live music, Recorded Music and Sale
of alcohol.

The premises are the Dilham side of Worstead and are close to the residential properties on Chapel
Road.

The venue has been operating under a TEN and has caused Public Nuisance to the residents of
Chapel Road with large volumes of traffic using Chapel Road which is a narrow, single track lane with
no passing places, used by walkers, families, horse riders and cyclists. The traffic has been
substantial going to and from the venue (over 40 vehicles in an hour). The noise and increased
pollution from the traffic when an event has taken place is blighting the peaceful enjoyment of our
properties.

The noise from any outside music is easily audible to our property and although this was considered
at planning this has materially and substantially changed as the venue has now cut down a large
swathe of woodland, which shielded Chapel Road. The effect of this has created a sound corridor
which travels directly up Chapel Road. To have music and substantial traffic every weekend will
prevent peaceful enjoyment of our homes and gardens and safe use of Chapel Road to the residents.
We can hear the Worstead Festival, but this is one week a year and the Festival is several miles
away, not right on our doorstep where the venue is situated. The cutting of the trees now also
means there is substantial light pollution from the many external lights the applicants have put up.
The area is close to Smallburgh Fen and an SSl site. Dilham also hosts a colony of rare bats. The lights
are clearly visible from the venue in what was once a ‘dark sky’ area and is causing a public nuisance.
With regard to Crime and disorder, the venue is only accessible by car as it is not on a direct bus
route. The lanes are one car width with no passing places. If people are going to an event, the high
probability from the amount of traffic we have seen from a TEN, is that people have driven after
having consumed alcohol.

Public Safety — the fact this is a very rural isolated site with single track lane windy access means the
likelihood of accidents due to the traffic is very high especially as it is used by lots of walkers, riders
and cyclists. Also the drink driving risks.

We hope the Licensing committee will visit the venue and see for itself the unsuitability of the
premises in is location and proximity to houses. | know this cannot be a re-run of the planning
application but the applicants have substantially changed the surroundings by felling trees. They
have also no regard to planning conditions having breached then continuously since the site has
been operating.

Yours

Page 203



This page is intentionally left blank



Lara Clare

From: |
Sent: 18 April 2022 15:40

To: Licensing

Subject: Worstead Farms Ltd

Categories: -

You don't often get email from | Lc2n Why this is important

Dear Sir,

I have recently seen the application for a premises licence at The Wood yard, Worstead, Norfolk, NR289RS. I would like to
make an objection on the grounds of Public nuisance. This is a very quiet village and the presence of live music every
weekend would cause definite disturbance to the village. There have been instances when these venues have been held in
the past and the level of noise is unacceptable and intrusive.

Regards

18/4/22

Page 205



This page is intentionally left blank



Registered Office:
HOLLAND COURT, THE CLOSE
NORWICH NR1 4DY
Registered London no. 512155

Licensing Section,
NNDC
Holt Road
Cromer
NR27 9EN
4t April 2022
Worstead Farms Ltd
Dear Sir or Madam,

We live and run a farm business along Chapel Road and write to object to the application for
a new premises licence by Worstead Farms Ltd.

The planning application was granted for the Woodyard wedding venue in Worstead Park
after several conditions were set.

These conditions have not been complied with by the Applicant and so they are not fit to
hold a licence.

Crime and disorder. The venue will bring criminal activity to the area.

Public safety. This is a remote site accessed by car which will be a risk to the public on single
track, winding lanes. Alcohol will increase the risk on the homeward trip.

Public nuisance. Planning permission does not allow outside music with the associated noise
drift. The extension of Alcohol sales to 2355 will lead to late night public nuisance. This will
result in more noise and light pollution disturbance.

Children are at risk from cars on the blind single-track langs used to access the venue.

Page 207

DIRECTORS J. G. PATERSON A.S. C. PATERSON A.S. PATERSON



This page is intentionally left blank



60¢ abed

[and database rights] Pﬁﬂ} Ordnance Survey [100018623]. Use of this data Is subject to <a href="https://www.north-norfolk.gov.uk/infc




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 211



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	Pages from Model Councillor Code of Conduct 2020 V2 0121
	Guidance on Local Government A_ Local Government Association 41

	 
	4 Application for a new Premises Licence - New Inn, 54 Lower Street, Horning, Norfolk, NR12 8PF
	Appendix A - Application
	Appendix B - The New Inn Licensing Plan A1
	Appendix C - Accepted - Police
	Appendix C - Accepted - Fire
	Appendix C - Objection - Parish Council
	Appendix C - Objection - Redacted 1_Redacted
	Appendix C - Objection - Redacted 4_Redacted
	Appendix C - Objection - Redacted 8_Redacted
	Appendix C - Objection - Redacted 10
	Appendix C - Objection - Redacted 11
	Appendix C - Objection - Redacted 13_Redacted
	Appendix C - Objection - Redacted 14_Redacted
	Appendix C - Objection - Redacted 17
	Appendix C - Objection - Redacted 18_Redacted
	Appendix C - Objection - Redacted 19_Redacted
	Appendix C - Objection - Redacted 20_Redacted
	WITHDRAWN - Appendix C- Objection - Redacted 2
	WITHDRAWN - Appendix C - Objection - Redacted 3_Redacted
	WITHDRAWN - Appendix C - Objection - Redacted 5_Redacted
	WITHDRAWN - Appendix C - Objection - Redacted 6_Redacted
	WITHDRAWN - Appendix C - Objection - Redacted 7_Redacted
	WITHDRAWN - Appendix C - Objection - Redacted 9_Redacted
	WITHDRAWN - Appendix C - Objection - Redacted 12_Redacted
	WITHDRAWN - Appendix C - Objection - Redacted 15_Redacted
	WITHDRAWN - Appendix C - Objection - Redacted 16_Redacted
	WITHDRAWN - Appendix C - Objection - Redacted 21_Redacted
	WITHDRAWN - Appendix C - Objection - Redacted 22_Redacted
	Appendix D - Location Plan

	5 Application for a new Premises Licence - The Woodyard, Worstead Park, Worstead, Norfolk NR28 9RT
	Appendix A - Premise Licence Application
	Appendix A - Venue Method Statement v1.5
	Appendix B - Floor plan
	Appendix C - Objection - 1_Redacted
	Appendix C - Objection - 2_Redacted
	Appendix C - Objection - 3_Redacted
	Appendix D - Aerial Plan
	Appendix D - Site Plan




